
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

May 13, 2025
Mark W. McBrayer, Mayor
Christy Martinez-Garcia, Mayor Pro Tem, District 1
Gordon Harris, Councilman, District 2
David Glasheen, Councilman, District 3
Brayden Rose, Councilman, District 4
Dr. Jennifer Wilson, Councilwoman, District 5
Tim Collins, Councilman, District 6

    

W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Matt Wade, City Attorney

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas
 

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance, please contact the City
Secretary's Office at (806)775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. 

Executive Session Disclosure Statement: The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the course of the
meeting to discuss any item listed on this agenda as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, including but not necessarily limited to
§551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations),
§551.074 (Personnel Matters), §551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices), §551.086 (Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters),
§551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic Development Negotiations)  

A quorum of the City Council will be physically present in City Council Chambers located in Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, as it is
the intent of the City Council to have a quorum physically present at this location. One or more members of the City Council, however, may participate
in the meeting by video-conference call as permitted under Section 551.127 of the Texas Government Code.  

Note: On occasion, the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

  
 

1:30 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers and immediately recesses into Executive Session.
 

           
1. Executive Session   

 

1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to deliberate
the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

1. 1. 1. 123 North Avenue N   

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

Immediately following Executive Session, City Council reconvenes in Work Session in City Council Chambers.
 

2. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as appropriate.   

 

2. 1. Recognition of the 2025 Graduates of Lubbock 101   

 

http://www.mylubbock.us


2:00 p.m. - City Council continues in Regular Session in City Council Chambers.
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to appear
in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted on the City
Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting, no later than 2:00
p.m. on May 13, 2025. Citizen Comments provide an opportunity for citizens to make comments and
express a position on agenda items. 

  

 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. April 8, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting
 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without separate
discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed from the Consent
Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2025-O0050,
Amendment 17, amending the FY 2024-25 Fire Rescue Job Grade Summary, respecting the General Fund;
providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2025-O0051,
Amendment 18, respecting the General Fund, Impact Fee Streets Zone E Fund, and the Quaker
Avenue:146th Street to Woodrow Road Project, in the Streets Capital Project Fund; providing for filing;
and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2025-O0052,
Amendment 19, respecting the General Fund and the Godeke Branch Library Building Purchase Capital
Improvement Project in the General Capital Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause.

 

6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No. 2025-O0054,
Amendment 20, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes, respecting the Information
Technology Fund for the purchase of police laptops; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

 

6. 4. 1. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase

May 13, 2025



6. 4. 1. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 33001977, with SHI Government Solutions, Inc., for Getac Rugged Laptops for the Lubbock Police
Department.

 

6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 21,
respecting the Airport Capital Project Fund and the Grant Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a
savings clause.

 

6. 6. Resolution - Purchasing and Contract Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager
to execute Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 18857, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the City of Austin, to participate in cooperative purchasing programs, for the purchase of
municipal goods, products, and services from vendors selected through the competitive bidding process.

 

6. 7. Resolution - Purchasing and Contract Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager
to execute Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 18892, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the City of Slaton, to participate in cooperative purchasing programs, for the purchase of
municipal goods, products, and services from vendors selected through the competitive bidding process.

 

6. 8. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing right-of-way
located in Section 20, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, at 120th Street, east of Milwaukee Avenue, and
west of Iola Avenue, due to a change in the development of this property.

 

6. 9. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use
License, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Vestis Uniform, to build an
enclosed area for linen processing, on Magnolia Avenue, north of 36th Street.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street Use License,
and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Smaze Investments, LLC, for the purpose
of building encroachment, located at 3rd Street and Avenue U.

 

6. 11. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0053, adopting a revised City of
Lubbock Master Thoroughfare Plan Map.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change Order No. 1 to
Contract No. 18190, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Lone Star Dirt &
Paving, LTD, for the 66th Street Channel Drainage Project.

 

6. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works Contract
18697, and related documents, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for utility relocations ahead of the Upland
Avenue Project, approximately between 26th Street and 63rd Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond
Project.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional Services
Agreement Contract 18843, by and between the City of Lubbock and Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., for
the design of Avenue P from 130th Street to 146th Street, to be utilized for the 2024 Street Bond Project.

 

6. 15. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute

May 13, 2025



6. 15. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18631, with Riley Industrial Services, and Contract 18764, with Johnson Pumping, Inc., to provide
industrial cleaning and pumping services at City of Lubbock Water Utilities facilities.

 

6. 16. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18635, with Pro Serv Industrial Contractors, LLC., to provide welding and fabrication services at
City of Lubbock Water Utilities facilities.

 

6. 17. Resolution - Public Works Street Maintenance: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18639, with Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., to establish annual contract pricing for concrete
materials.

 

6. 18. Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Notice of
Abandonment of Intended Purpose and Reversion, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Guadalupe -
Parkway Neighborhood Center, Inc., reverting all rights, title, and interest, for property located at 123 North
Avenue N, Lubbock, Texas 79401.

 

6. 19. Resolution: Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Department
of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract No. HHS001439500038, and all related documents, under the
Public Health Emergency Preparedness Cooperative Agreement from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, by and between the City of Lubbock and the State of Texas, acting by and through DSHS, to
support public health emergency preparedness.

 

6. 20. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Job Order Contract 18830,
with Henthorn Commercial Construction, for installation of a new wind cone at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

 

6. 21. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 18713, with Clean
and Bright Window Cleaning Services, for window cleaning services at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

 

6. 22. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18618, with Pland Collaborative, for analysis and redesign of the right-of-way irrigation systems
in the North Overton Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District boundary.

 

6. 23. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18607, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for hardscape repairs in the public right-of-way in the
North Overton Tax Increment Financing District boundary. 

 

6. 24. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 18160, a Master Services Agreement with Vexus Fiber, to add internet
business services to additional City facilities.

 

6. 25. Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 31089895, with Lake Country Chevrolet Inc., for the purchase of ten (10) Replacement Vehicles for
the Lubbock Police Department.

 

6. 26. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Service Contract

May 13, 2025



6. 26. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Service Contract
18847, with Scott-Merriman, Inc., for document scanning and reproduction services in regard to City of
Lubbock birth and death records. 

 

6. 27. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0055, for Zone Case
3520, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for D & T Farms, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Light Industrial District (LI), generally located north of East Bluefield
Street and east of North Guava Avenue, on 404.5 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 43.

 

6. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0056, for Zone Case
1901-A, a request of 7B Building and Development, LLC for Buslon, Inc., for a zone change from Medium
Density Residential District (MDR) and Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban
Commercial District (AC), at 5106 Slide Road, located west of Slide Road and south of 51st Street, Buster
Long Addition, the west 95.16 feet of Lot 103, and the west 95.16 feet of the north 7 feet of Lot 102.

 

6. 29. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0057, for Zone Case
3519, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for a zone change from
Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 16002 Quaker
Avenue, located west of Quaker Avenue and north of Woodrow Road, on 14.123 acres of unplatted land
out of Block AK, Section 6.

 

6. 30. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0058, for Zone Case
3518, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Redeemer Church of Lubbock, for a zone change from Low
Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at 6303 and 6305 130th Street,
located south of 130th Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 3.486 acres of unplatted land out of Block
AK, Section 9.

 

6. 31. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0059, for Zone Case
3521, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Barbara Beck, for a zone change from Low Density
Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at 6602 104th Street, located
west of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 104th Street, on 15 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK,
Section 22.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Public Hearing - Planning: Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance for a request for annexation,
from Nicolett Land Company, LLC, to annex an area of approximately 121.80 acres, adjacent to the
southwestern city limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 130th Street (Loop 88) and west of Milwaukee
Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits.

 

7. 2. Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance of the City of Lubbock, Texas, authorizing
the issuance and sale of City of Lubbock, Texas, Tax Notes, in one or more series; levying a tax in payment
thereof; and enacting other provisions relating to the subject.

 

May 13, 2025



 AI# 13426 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
April 8, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting

Item Summary
April 8, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
4.8.2025 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

April 8, 2025
1:00 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 8th of April, 2025, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas at 1:00 p.m.

  
1:01 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Mark W. McBrayer; Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia; Council Member Tim
Collins; Council Member David Glasheen; Council Member Gordon Harris; Council Member
Brayden Rose; Council Member Dr. Jennifer Wilson; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City
Secretary Courtney Paz; City Attorney Matt Wade 

 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
Executive Session; 2.1-2.2; Citizen Comments; 4.1; 5.1-5.30; and 6.1.

               
1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 1:01 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 2:30 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 2:32 p.m.

 
1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
1. 1. 1. Luskey Tract A
 
1. 1. 2. MB3-LLC - Housing Discussion
 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,

to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
1. 2. 1. Luskey Tract A
 
1. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code Section 551.074, to

discuss personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to
the Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals.

  

 



 
1. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087, to

discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate,
stay, or expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the
governmental body is conducting economic development negotiations; and to deliberate the
offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect described herein above.

 
1. 4. 1. Central Business District
 
 
 
2:00 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.

City Council reconvened at 2:30 p.m.
 
2. Ceremonial Items
 
2. 1. Invocation

Dr. Andy Hurst, St. Luke's Methodist Church, led the invocation. 
 
2. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem
Christy Martinez-Garcia.

 
Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 2:32 p.m.
 
3. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 2:00 p.m. on April 8, 2025. Citizen Comments provide an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 

No one appeared to speak.
 
4. Minutes
 
4. 1. March 11, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting   

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Tim

Collins, to approve the March 11, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 8, 2025 Page 2 of 8



  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member

Brayden Rose, to approve items 5.1-5.30. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
5. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2025-O0047,

Amendment 16, respecting the Hazard Mitigation Generators Capital Improvement Project in
the Water/Wastewater Capital Project Fund and the Grant Fund; providing for filing; and
providing for a savings clause.

  

 
5. 2. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2024-O0043, abandoning and

closing portions of an Access Easement, located in Tracts 4C-4F, Huntington Business Park,
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, at the southeast corner of Indiana Avenue and
122nd Street.

  

 
5. 3. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0044, abandoning and

closing portions of Right-of-Way, located in Section 6, Block E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co.
Survey, Lubbock County, Texas, at the northeast and northwest corners of 82nd Street and
Cedar Avenue.

  

 
5. 4. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0048, abandoning and

closing alley right-of-way located in Section 77, Block A, recorded in Vol. 1843, Pg. 285,
City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, near the North Loop Industrial Park, north of East
Lehigh Street, and east of Ash Avenue.

  

 
5. 5. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2025-O0049, abandoning and

closing portions of streets located in Section 77, Block A, recorded in Vol. 474, Pg. 183, City
of Lubbock, Lubbock County, Texas, north of the North Loop Industrial Park, and south of
Northeast Loop 289. 

  

 
5. 6. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-R0154 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Street Use License, and all related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the
Air Force Civil Engineer Center, for a groundwater monitoring well in the right-of-way of
21st Street, east of Research Boulevard.

  

 
5. 7. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-R0155 authorizing the Mayor to accept, for

and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed, and
all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 7, Block E,
of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 24), on 82nd Street, east of
Ash Avenue, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project.

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 8, 2025 Page 3 of 8



 
5. 8. Resolution - Right-of-Way: Resolution No. 2025-R0156 authorizing the Mayor to accept,

for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, one (1) Street, Public Use, and Right-of-Way Deed,
and all related documents, in connection with certain real property located in Section 7, Block
E, of the GC & SF R.R. Co. Survey, Lubbock County, Texas (Parcel 25), on 82nd Street, east
of Ash Avenue, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project.

  

 
5. 9. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2025-R0157 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement Contract 17258, and related
documents, with Halff Associates, Inc., for engineering services for watershed boundary and
drainage studies.

  

 
5. 10. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2025-R0158 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Public Works Contract 18738, and all related documents, with Bo Simon, Inc., for the
construction of waterlines ahead of paving of multiple unpaved streets, which were approved
in the 2022 Street Bond Election.

  

 
5. 11. Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Resolution No. 2025-R0159 authorizing the

Mayor to execute Purchase Order 22105416, with Peerless Pump Company, for repairs and
maintenance to a vertical turbine pump located at Pump Station 9.

  

 
5. 12. Resolution - Public Works Wastewater: Resolution No. 2025-R0160 ratifying the actions of

the Assistant City Manager in executing Purchase Order 23105948, with Riley Industrial
Services, Inc., for emergency field services to clean a polymer spill located at the Southeast
Water Reclamation Plant.

  

 
5. 13. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2025-R0161 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 25101926, with ADB Safegate Americas, LLC, for Location and Directional
Airfield Lighted Sign Panels at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

  

 
5. 14. Resolution - Aviation: Resolution No. 2025-R0162 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 25101929, with Hi-Lite Airfield Services LLC, for Taxiway Paint Removal
and Remarking, at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

  

 
5. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0163 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to WT Grit,
LLC dba Primitive, located at 905 Avenue K, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0164 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to WT Grit,
LLC dba Primitive, located at 905 Avenue K, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0165 approving a Downtown   

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 8, 2025 Page 4 of 8



5. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0165 approving a Downtown
Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Spade Farms,
Inc., located at 1107 Avenue K, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0166 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Spade
Farms, Inc., located at 1107 Avenue K, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0167 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to LBK 1201-17
LLC, located at 1203 17th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 20. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0168 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to LBK
1201-17 LLC, located at 1203 17th Street, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended
and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 21. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0169 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Keeton
Events, LLC, dba Gayle's Event Rentals, located at 1615 Avenue F, pursuant to Article IV,
Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation.   

  

 
5. 22. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0170 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Keeton
Events, LLC, dba Gayle's Event Rentals, located at 1615 Avenue F, pursuant to Article IV,
Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development
Corporation.   

  

 
5. 23. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0171 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to ImageNet
Consulting, located at 1616 Mac Davis Lane, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 24. Resolution - Business Development: Resolution No. 2025-R0172 approving a Downtown

Grant Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to ImageNet
Consulting, located at 1616 Mac Davis Lane, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Market Lubbock Development Corporation.   

  

 
5. 25. Resolution - Parks and Recreation: Resolution No. 2025-R0173 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 90500067, with Kraftsman Commercial Playgrounds and Water
Parks, for playground safety surfacing demolition and replacement at Maedgen Park, located
at 1st Street and Boston Avenue.

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 8, 2025 Page 5 of 8



5. 26. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2025-R0174 authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 10028309, with Primary Arms LLC, for the purchase of Trijicon 3x Magnifiers for the
Lubbock Police Department.

  

 
5. 27. Resolution - Police: Resolution No. 2025-R0175 authorizing the Mayor of the City of

Lubbock to execute a Memorandum of Understanding, and all related documents, by and
between the City of Lubbock and Lubbock-Cooper Independent School District (ISD), for
law enforcement services at designated Lubbock-Cooper ISD events within the city limits
and/or within the municipal limits of the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City of Lubbock.

  

 
5. 28. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 2): Ordinance No. 2025-O0045, for Zone Case

1112-G, a request of Presto Hail Lifters for Lon Miller, for a zone change from Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial (AC), at 2110 and 2112 50th Street,
located north of 50th Street and west of Avenue U, Felix Addition, Lot 10 and the west 37.5
feet of Lot 9.

  

 
5. 29. Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning: Ordinance No. 2025-O0009, in accordance with

Section 43.0697(c)(3) of the Texas Local Government Code, regarding the City of Lubbock's
intent to annex an area of land consisting of approximately 374.74 acres of real property
commonly known as the Highland Oaks Subdivision, located within an area located south of
146th Street (F.M. 7500), east of Frankford Avenue, north of Woodrow Road (F.M. 7600), and
west of Slide Road (F.M. Road 1730), into Lubbock's corporate limits.

  

 
5. 30. Resolution - Planning: Resolution No. 2025-R0176 authorizing the Mayor to execute a

Dedicatory Certificate, associated Easements, and all related documents, in connection with
property described as Lot 1-A, Block 1, Tech Gardens Addition, Lubbock County, Texas,
located south of Erskine Street and west of Detroit Avenue.

  

 
6. Regular Agenda
 
6. 1. Board Appointments - City Secretary: Consider appointments to the Animal Services

Advisory Board, Audit & Investment Committee, Board of Health, Capital Improvements
Advisory Committee, Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory Committee, Lake Alan Henry Board
of Appeals, Park and Recreation Board, Public Transit Advisory Board, and Veterans
Advisory Committee.

Courtney Paz, city secretary; and Matt Wade, city attorney, gave comments and answered
questions from City Council. 

Animal Services Advisory Board: Reappointment of Katherine Wilkerson and Greg Taylor;
and the appointment of Kathleen Finley to replace Melissa Key. 

Board of Health: Appointment of Nicholas Skeen to replace ReJeanne Sylvester and Patsy
Cardona to replace Donna Griffis. 

Capital Improvements Advisory Committee: Reappointment of Thomas Payne; and the
appointment of Clay Enger to replace Andy Bean and Norma Johnson to replace Jonathan
Hill. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 8, 2025 Page 6 of 8



Hill. 

Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory Committee: Reappointment of Kent Meredith, Amanda
Olivo, Janis Henderson, and Christopher Mendez; and the appointment of Eman Attaya to
replace John Garcia. 

Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals: Reappointment of Cristofer Howe and Shannon
Hansen; and the appointment of Chris St. Clair to replace Marisa Allison-Scheef.

Park and Recreation Board: Reappointment of William Pasewark; and the appointment of
Timothy "Clint" Weaver to replace Margarita Olivarez and Veronica Lopez to replace Daniel
Bunye.

Public Transit Advisory Board: Reappointment of Kristin Murray; and the appointment of
Matthew Frosoni to replace Anne Polk.

Veterans Advisory Committee: Reappoinment of Jeffery Lowry, Dalton Keel, Benny
Guerrero, Steve Oien, and Norman Bearden.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, seconded by Council Member Dr.

Jennifer Wilson, to appoint and reappoint the aforementioned citizens to the Animal
Services Advisory Board, Board of Health, Capital Improvements Advisory Committee,
Keep Lubbock Beautiful Advisory Committee, Lake Alan Henry Board of Appeals, Park
and Recreation Board, Public Transit Advisory Board, and Veterans Advisory
Committee. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

Main Motion by Council Member David Glasheen, seconded by Council Member Tim
Collins, to reappoint Brandon Kidd and Edwin Schulz; and to appoint Cooper Cunningham to
replace Brad O'Dell to the Audit and Investment Committee.

 
Motion to Amend by Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia, no second, to amend the Main
Motion as follows:
 

to reappoint Brandon Kidd and Edwin Schulz; and to appoint Gilbert Quintero to
replace Brad O'Dell to the Audit and Investment Committee.

The motion died for lack of a second.
 

Vote on Main Motion
Vote: 5 - 2 Motion carried

 
NAY:  Mayor Pro Tem Christy Martinez-Garcia
            Council Member Gordon Harris 
 

2:48 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 8, 2025 Page 7 of 8



There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor McBrayer adjourned the meeting.

The April 8, 2025 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 13th day
of May, 2025.

____________________________________
MARK W. McBRAYER, MAYOR

ATTEST:

___________________________________
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Regular City Council Meeting 
April 8, 2025 Page 8 of 8



 AI# 13364 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2025-O0050, Amendment 17, amending the FY 2024-25 Fire Rescue Job Grade Summary,
respecting the General Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance.

I. Amend the FY 2024-25 Fire Rescue – Job Grade Summary and accept the position changes
as set forth in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

The purpose of this Budget Amendment is to move six (6) Probationary Firefighter positions
into permanent positions. Three (3) of the positions will promote to Fire Lieutenants and three
(3) positions will promote to Fire Equipment Technicians. Listed below are the entry-level
salary and benefit costs for each position.

• (3) Fire Lieutenant - $97,915 x 3 positions = $293,745
• (3) Fire Equipment Operator - $90,389 x 3 positions = $271,167
• (6) Probationary Firefighter - ($66,822) x 6 positions = ($400,932)
• Net Increase in Salary = $163,980

Fiscal Impact
The annual fiscal impact of this change is an additional $163,980 to the General Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 17 
Exhibit A 







Fire Rescue - Job Grade Summary

Actual Actual Budget Budget 1st Amend 2nd Amend Change from

SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 Budget

Fire Chief 145 1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

Fire Marshal 137 1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

Assistant Chief FCS7 -                            -                            -                            -                            2                           2                           -                            

Deputy Chief FCS6 2                           2                           2                           2                           5                           5                           -                            

Division Chief FCS6 3                           3                           3                           5                           -                            -                            -                            

Battalion Chief FCS5 11                         11                         11                         11                         11                         11                         -                            

Communication Supervisor (Battalion Chief) FCS5 -                            1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

Deputy Fire Marshal CRRO  (Battalion Chief) FCS5 1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Captain FCS4 29                         29                         29                         29                         29                         29                         -                            

Communication Supervisor (Fire Captain) FCS4 1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Assistant Fire Marshal (Fire Captain) FCS4 -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Deputy Fire Marshal  (Fire Captain) FCS4 -                            - - - -                            -                            -                            

Assistant Fire Marshal (Fire Lieutenant) FCS3 2                           2                           2                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Deputy Fire Marshal  (Fire Lieutenant) FCS3 2                           3                           4                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Prevention Lieutenant FCS3 -                            -                            -                            6                           6                           6                           -                            

Fire Inspector/Investigator  (Fire Lieutenant) FCS3 1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Lieutenant FCS3 59                         59                         59                         59                         59                         62                         3                           

Fire Prevention Equipment Operator FCS2 -                            -                            -                            6                           6                           6                           -                            

Fire Equipment Operator FCS2 75                         77                         77                         77                         77                         80                         3                           

Fire Inspector (Fire Equipment Operator) FCS2 1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Inspector/Investigator (Fire Equip. Oper.) FCS2 4                           4                           5                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Plans Examiner (Fire Equipment Operator) FCS2 -                            -                            1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Prevention Firefighter* FCS1 -                            -                            -                            -                            

Firefighter* FCS1 213                       215                       215                       233                       233                       227                       (6)                          

Probationary Fire Fighter (NCS)* FNCS1 -                            -                            18                         3                           3                           3                           -                            

TOTAL SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY 406                       410                       429                       434                       434                       434                       -                        

Actual Actual Budget Budget Amend #13 2nd Amend Change from

NON-SWORN JOB GRADE SUMMARY GRADE FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 FY 2024-25 Budget

Director of Emergency Management 134 1                           1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Deputy Director of Emergency Management 132 1                           1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Protection Engineer 124 1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Management Assistant 122 2                           2                           2                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

Public Safety Dispatcher II 121 9                           9                           10                         10                         10                         9                           (1)                          

Emergency Management Specialist 122 -                            1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Senior Equipment Technician 118 -                            2                           3                           2                           2                           2                           -                            

Equipment Technician 117 5                           3                           2                           3                           3                           3                           -                            

End User Support Technician 117 1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            

Administrative Assistant 112 5                           5                           5                           5                           5                           5                           -                            

Public Safety Dispatcher I 119 3                           3                           2                           2                           2                           3                           1                           

Emergency Management Planner 122 1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Storekeeper 111 1                           1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            

Laborer 108 1                           1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Lead Equipment Technician 123 -                            1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

Equipment Maintenance Foreman 123 1                           -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Fire Facilities Building Maintenance Leader 120 -                            1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

Fire Facilities Maintenance Technician 118 -                            -                            1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

Public Information Officer 123 1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           1                           -                            

*Since the Probationary Fire fighter position (FNCS1) exists for one year from the date of hire, the total combined number of Probationary Fire Fighters (FNCS1) and Fire Fighters (FCS1) shall not
exceed 230.



 AI# 13380 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2025-O0051, Amendment 18, respecting the General Fund, Impact Fee Streets Zone E
Fund, and the Quaker Avenue:146th Street to Woodrow Road Project, in the Streets Capital
Project Fund; providing for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend Capital Improvement Project 92828, Quaker Avenue from 146th Street to
Woodrow Road Project by replacing $1,274,850 General Fund Cash with $1,274,850
from Impact Fee Streets Zone E. Funding will be from the Impact Fee Streets Zone E
Fund.

I.

Transfer $1,274,850 from the Streets Capital Project Fund to General Fund. This is
moving General Fund Cash back to General Fund.

II.

Increase the transfer from the Impact Fee Streets Zone E Fund to the Streets Capital
Project Fund by $1,274,850. Funding is Impact Fees.

III.

The purpose of this Budget Amendment is to replace General Fund Cash with Impact Fee
Cash. No funding is being added.

Fiscal Impact
The funding in the amount of $1,274,850 from the Impact Fee Streets Zone E Fund will
replace the current $1,274,850 in General Fund Cash. The purpose of this is to use up the
Impact Fee Streets Zone E Funds first and give the General Fund Cash funding back to the
General Fund. There will be no additional funds added to the Capital Improvement Project at
this time. This is only to replace the funding sources.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 18 









 AI# 13381 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2025-O0052, Amendment 19, respecting the General Fund and the Godeke Branch Library
Building Purchase Capital Improvement Project in the General Capital Project Fund; providing
for filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92907, Godeke Branch Library Building Purchase
and appropriate funding in the amount of $3,200,000. Funding will be from the General
Fund.

I.

Increase transfer from the General Fund to the General Fund Capital Project Fund by
$3,200,000, from $20,079,233 to $23,279,233.

II.

The purpose of the Budget Amendment is to use the funding in the amount of $3,200,000 to
purchase the Godeke Branch Library Building.

Fiscal Impact
The funding in the amount of $3,200,000 from the General Fund will be used to purchase the
Godeke Branch Library Building.

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 19 







 AI# 13396 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2025-O0054, Amendment 20, amending the FY 2024-25 Budget for municipal purposes,
respecting the Information Technology Fund for the purchase of police laptops; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend the Information Technology operating budget and appropriate funding in the
amount of $755,982 for the purchase of police laptops. Funding will be from the
Information Technology Fund.

I.

This budget amendment provides for the first installment of a zero-interest lease agreement for
the purchase of police department laptops. The agreement includes three payments: one in the
current fiscal year, followed by additional payments in October 2025 and October 2026.

At the end of the lease term, the vendor, SHI, is offering a three-year interest-free purchase
which aligns with the payment timeframe. The City will have the option to purchase the
laptops for $1, effectively transferring ownership. This purchase will replace 345 active-use
laptops currently deployed in the field and provide an additional 45 spare devices to
accommodate new officers, transfers, and other operational needs.

The financing structure enables the City to secure current pricing while spreading costs over
multiple years without incurring interest, thereby preserving fiscal flexibility. By locking in
today’s prices, the City mitigates the impact of inflation and ensures the Police Department
remains equipped with up-to-date technology necessary for effective operations. This strategic
approach reflects the City’s ongoing commitment to responsible financial stewardship and
long-term planning.

Fiscal Impact
Funding in the amount of $755,982 is to be appropriated in the FY 2024-25 Information
Technology Operating Budget in the Information Technology Fund balance, and will be used
to purchase new laptops for the Police Department.

Staff/Board Recommending



Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment 20 







 AI# 13411 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 1. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Purchase Order 33001977, with SHI Government Solutions, Inc., for Getac Rugged
Laptops for the Lubbock Police Department.

Item Summary
Purchase Order 33001977, with SHI Government Solutions, Inc., is for 390 Getac S510
Rugged Laptops and accessories for the Police Department, and is being acquired through a
zero-interest lease agreement. The agreement includes 3 payments: one in the current fiscal
year, followed by additional payments in October 2025 and October 2026.

At the end of the lease term, the City will have the option to purchase the laptops for $1,
effectively transferring ownership. This purchase will replace 345 active-use laptops currently
deployed in the field, and provide an additional 45 spare devices to accommodate new officers,
transfers, and other operational needs.

The financing structure enables the City to secure current pricing while spreading costs over
multiple years without incurring interest, thereby preserving fiscal flexibility. By locking in
today’s prices, the City mitigates the impact of inflation and ensures the Police Department
remains equipped with up-to-date technology necessary for effective operations. This strategic
approach reflects the City’s ongoing commitment to responsible financial stewardship and
long-term planning.
 
The purchase of the Getac Rugged Laptops is made available through the OMNIA Partners IT
Solutions Contract 2018011-02.  Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes
local governments to acquire hardware, software, and other Information Technology products
through OMNIA Partners IT Solutions.  Pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Chapter
791.025, purchases from DIR contracts meet competitive bid requirements.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 33001977, to SHI Government Solutions, is a 3-year lease purchase agreement
with payments of $755,982.04 each year.  The first payment is due in Fiscal Year 2024-2025
and is funded by a fund balance transfer to the Information Technology Operating Budget. 
The subsequent years will be requested during the budget process for FY Operating Budgets
2025-26 and 2026-27.



Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Jennifer Fresaz, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Resolution _SHI Government Solutions PO 33001977 
Purchase Order 33001977_SHI Government Solutions 







This purchase order encumbers funds in the amount of$2,267,946.12 awarded to SHI Government 
Solutions, Inc. of Austin, TX, on May 13, 2025. The following is incorporated into and made part of this 
purchase order by reference: Quote dated March 7, 2025, from SHI Government Solutions, Inc. of Austin, 
TX, and Omnia 2018011-02. 

Resolution# 
----------

CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

Mark McBrayer, Mayor 

INSURANCE REQUIRED: 

Commercial General Liabilitl:'.: 

$1,000,000 occurrence/ $2,000,000 aggregate (can be combined 
with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). COL is required 
in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all 
insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the 
Contractor has broad liability coverage for contractual activities 
and for completed operations. 

Commercial General Liability to include Products -

Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, Contractual 
Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses 
(any one person). 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Cyber Liability Reguirements: $1 M of coverage is needed 
for Cyber Liability 

Technology Errors and Omissions Reguirements: $1 M of 
coverage is needed 

Additional Policies: 

*The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured status on a primary
and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. *Waivers of Subrogation are
required for COL, AL, and WC. *To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. *Carrier will provide a 30-day
written notice of cancellation, I 0-day written notice for non-payment. *Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better.
*Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above.









������������

Mark McBrayer, Mayor 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

Mitch Satterwhite, First Assistant City Attorney









INCUMBENCY CERTIFICATE 

Re: Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of __      ______ , 20__25_ (the "Agreement"), between SHI GOVERN-
MENT SOLUTIONS INC. ("Lessor'') and City ct I uhhock ("Lessee"). 

Being a knowledgeable and authorized agent of Lessee, I hereby certify to Lessor that the person(s) who executed the Agreement are legally authorized 
to do so on behalf of Lessee and that the signatures that appear on the Agreement are genuine. 

Lessee Name 
City of Lubbock 

1M 

Signature 
I 
Date 

1M 

en 
en Prunt Name 
1M 

Title 

'---'---------------------------'� 
(THE INCUMBENCY IS TO BE EXECUTED BY A PERSON OTHER THAN THE SIGNER OF 5l 
THE AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS. THIS MAY BE A BOARD CLERK/SEC- � 
RETARY, BOARD MEMBER OR SUPERINTENDENT.) � 

©2024 All Rights Reserved. Printed in the U.S.A. 24SHI059B 7/24 

Mark McBrayer

Mayor



���������� ������������� ��������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������������������!�����"�#�
���������"��������������������������������!�����"�#������������$�%&'(��)��������������������������������������������������!*)� ����+%�,-�

"������������������������������������������������������������ ��.������������������������������������#���������������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������������������/ ����������������������������0����������������������������������������
���������!�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������0����������������1����������������������
���������������������������������������������������������������������"���������������������������������������������������������� �����!��������������������
�������������������������2����������������3������������� ������������������������������������ ��.��������������������������������������#������������
�����

Mark McBrayer Mayor



33001977



Mayor 



 AI# 13413 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 21, respecting the Airport Capital Project Fund and the Grant Fund; providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause.

Item Summary

Amend Capital Improvement Project 92884, Replace Airfield Lighting/LED Conversion
by increasing the appropriation and funding by $1,000,000, from $200,000 to
$1,200,000. Funding will be Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant funds awarded
by the Federal Aviation Administration.

I.

The purpose of the budget amendment is the following:

In September 2024, the Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport (LBB) was selected to
receive a grant up to $1,000,000 through the Fiscal Year 2023 Airport Improvement Program
Supplemental Discretionary Grant competition, for the Runway Light Replacement (LED)
project.  The grant award is still pending a formal offer from the Federal Aviation
Administration.  The budget amendment moves the $1,000,000 grant offer from the FY
2025-26 Budget to the FY 2024-25 Budget, and will allow the airport to proceed with grant
acceptance and contract award immediately, upon receipt of the grant.

In accordance with the grant program requirements, the LBB solicited bids for the project and
submitted a final grant application. In anticipation of potential delays in receipt of the grant
offer, the LBB solicited bids with an extended bid period of 120 days.  Bids opened February
6, 2025, and are good through the end of May.  The timeliness of the budget amendment will
allow for contract award during this period and avoid the potential of a re-bidding process.

Fiscal Impact
The Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant funding in the amount of $1,000,000 for the
Capital Improvement Project 92884, Replace Airfield Lighting/LED Conversion will be
appropriated in the current FY 2024-25 budget. This item had originally been planned to be
appropriated in the FY 2025-26 budget. Funding will be from the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA).

Staff/Board Recommending



Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Budget Amendment #21 







 AI# 13437 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Purchasing and Contract Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the
City Manager to execute Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 18857,
by and between the City of Lubbock and the City of Austin, to participate in cooperative
purchasing programs, for the purchase of municipal goods, products, and services from
vendors selected through the competitive bidding process.

Item Summary
This Interlocal Agreement with the City of Austin enables the City to utilize cooperative
purchasing for goods and services from vendors selected through the competitive bidding
process, satisfying local government requirements. Membership with the City of Austin is
provided at no cost. Utilizing this cooperative purchasing agreement streamlines procurement
processes by eliminating the need for individual public bids, resulting in both time and cost
savings for City Staff through reduced administrative burden and competitive pricing
advantages.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer 

Attachments
Resolution 18857 
Master Agreement 18857 

















 AI# 13438 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Purchasing and Contract Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the
City Manager to execute Master Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement 18892,
by and between the City of Lubbock and the City of Slaton, to participate in cooperative
purchasing programs, for the purchase of municipal goods, products, and services from
vendors selected through the competitive bidding process.

Item Summary
In accordance with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, Chapter 791 of the Texas Government
Code and the Cooperative Purchasing Program, Chapter 271 of the Texas Local Government
Code, the proposed Interlocal Agreement will allow the City of Slaton to utilize Contract
18478 with Intermountain Slurry Seal, Inc., for micro-surfacing services as part of the 2025
Street Maintenance Program.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer 

Attachments
Resolution - Contract 18896 
Agreement with Slaton 



RESOLUTION 

BE IT RESOLVED BY TIIE CITY COUNCIL OF TIIE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

Tl IA T the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute 
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, an lntcrlocal Agreement, Contract No. 18892 by and 
between the City of Lubbock and the City of Slaton, TX for cooperative purchasing of goods 
and services, and related documents. Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this 
resolution as if fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the Council. 

Passed by the City Council this _________________ 2025. 

ATTEST: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Joe Jim�ncial Officer 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

. elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney 

Rl:S.lntcrlocal Contract 18857 Slaton 

4.28.25 

MARK W. MCHRAYER, MAYOR 













 AI# 13424 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing
right-of-way located in Section 20, Block AK, Lubbock County, Texas, at 120th Street, east of
Milwaukee Avenue, and west of Iola Avenue, due to a change in the development of this
property.

Item Summary
The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close right-of-way located on
120th Street, east of Milwaukee Avenue.
 
The total area of the right-of-way being closed is 27,985 square feet. The proponent desires to
close the road due to a change in the development of this property, which contains no
infrastructure.
 
All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
June Estates - Ordinance 
June Estates - Metes and Bounds 
June Estates - GIS Map 









UNSUBDIVIDED

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Right of Way Closure
Located in Section 20, Block AK

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

120TH ST

114TH ST

Proposed ROW Closure
27,985 sq ft

120TH ST

117TH ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

IO
LA

 A
V

E

H
O

M
ES

TE
A

D
 A

V
E

THE SPRIN
GS

FELLOWSHIP

HAYS

ESTATES

122ND ST

116TH ST

126TH ST

120TH ST

116TH ST

HAPPY

ACRES

0 0.5 10.25
Miles



 AI# 13427 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 9. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street
Use License, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Vestis Uniform,
to build an enclosed area for linen processing, on Magnolia Avenue, north of 36th Street.

Item Summary
Vestis Uniform requests a Street Use License utilizing a 160.5 square feet portion of Magnolia
Avenue, for the purpose of building an enclosed area for linen to be processed.
 
The term of the license is for twenty (20) years payable every five (5) years in advance and
each successive 5-year term not to exceed 20 years, unless either party gives written notice of
termination to the other party. The license fee for each 5-year period is $500 paid in advance,
pursuant to current City policy.

Fiscal Impact
$500 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Vestis - Resolution 
Vestis - Street Use License 
Vestis - Metes and Bounds 
Vestis - GIS Map 



















 AI# 13428 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 10. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Right-of-Way: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a Street
Use License, and related documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and Smaze
Investments, LLC, for the purpose of building encroachment, located at 3rd Street and Avenue
U.

Item Summary
Smaze Investments, LLC is requesting a Street Use License utilizing a 2.95 square foot portion
of 3rd Street for the purpose of building encroachment.
 
The term of the license is for ten (10) years payable every five (5) years in advance and each
successive 5-year term not to exceed 10 years, unless either party gives written notice of
termination to the other party. The license fee for each 5-year period is $500 paid in advance,
pursuant to current City policy.

Fiscal Impact
$500 to the General Fund

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer 

Attachments
Smaze Investments - Resolution 
Smaze Investments - Street Use License 
Smaze Investments - Survey 
Smaze Investments - GIS Map 

















12

1213

14 11

13

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Proposed Street Use License
Located in Section 19, Block A

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

3RD ST

C D CRUMP'S

MARSHA SHARP FWY

U
V

A
LD

E 
A

V
E

C D CRUMP'S

BLEDSOE'S

CHAPMAN J R

RITCHEY

2ND PL

3RD ST

BLEDSOE'S
COURTNEY

A
V

E 
U

TE
M

PL
E 

A
V

E

A
V

E 
V

CAVER'S

Proposed Street Use License
~2.95 sq ft

A
V

E 
U

FURR'S

SUPER

MARKET

BRYAN

WALKER

0 20 40 60 80 10010
Feet



 AI# 13325 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 11. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Engineering: Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0053, adopting a
revised City of Lubbock Master Thoroughfare Plan Map.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance unanimously.  

The Master Thoroughfare Plan (MTP) delineates the existing and proposed major streets
including freeways, arterials, and collector level streets. It is a graphical representation of the
street system needed to properly maintain the transportation needs of the City. The plan is used
to determine right-of-way needs and requirements of new subdivisions.

Periodically, the MTP is revisited by staff and revised to address changing community and
traffic needs, expanded city limits, updated extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) limits, and other
updates. In recent history, the Thoroughfare Plan was updated and adopted in 1986, 1998,
2007, and 2018.

This proposed update would change the classification of Avenue P from a Collector to a Minor
Arterial.  The Planning and Zoning Commission reviewed this proposal on April 3, 2025, and
recommended approval of the request by a unanimous vote.

Prior to the 2018 MTP adoption, Avenue P from 130th Street to Woodrow Avenue was
classified as an arterial. During the 2018 update, this segment was reclassified to a Collector
section. In the process of developing the 2018 MTP, traffic along Avenue P was predicted to
be at Collector levels, due to the proximity to Highway 87; however, as growth and
development have occurred in this area, Avenue P has become a critical road that carries high
levels of residential traffic, school traffic, and potentially future commercial traffic.

Improvements to Avenue P from 130th Street to 146th Street were included in the
voter-approved 2024 Street Bond Program. Increasing the ultimate build-out of Avenue P from
130th Street/Loop 88 to Woodrow Avenue, from a Collector to a Minor Arterial, will provide
a higher level of service to the public.

Fiscal Impact
None



Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Ordinance 
Location Exhibit A 
Location Exhibit B 







M
as

on
R

d

CR 7700

70th St

C
R

 2
9

5
0

A
ve

 L

A
ve

nu
e 

U

15th St

A
ve

A

B
ud

d
y

H
o

lly
A

ve

Q
ua

ke
rA

ve

Southeast D
r

A
ve

U

C
hi

ca
g

o
A

ve

C
R

1
9

0
0

Fr
an

kf
o

rd
 A

ve

73rd St

C
R

 2
4

0
0 C

R
2

50
0

CR 7650

FM

1
7

9

93rd St

C
R

2
4

50

42nd St

CR 6700

CR 7100

Iv
o

ry
 A

ve

U
ti

ca
 A

ve

Fl
in

t A
ve

26th St

Salem
A

ve

M

il
w

au
ke

e
A

ve

Io
la

A
ve

24th St

19th St

Q
ui

nc
y

A
ve

Marshall St

A
ve

 E

C
R

 3
2

4
0

122nd St

CR 6050

Drake St

Woodrow Rd

Kent St

Broadway

Ju
n

ea
u

A
ve

US Hw
y

6210th St

89th St

FM
 2

5
2

8

C
R

1
6

00

98th St

CR 7430

8th Dr

CR 7240

122nd St

FM 3523

Alaska Rd

C
R

 1
0

0
0

50th St

24th St

Auburn St

CR 7340

12th St

CR 7400

E
lg

in
 A

ve

C
R

 1
7

4
0

C
R

1
2

4
0

34th St

Kent St

Te
xa

s 
A

ve

E
lg

in
 A

ve

CR 6140

27th St

4th St

C
R

1
33

0

Esrkine St

M
em

p
h

is
A

ve

92nd St

C
R

 2
9

0
0

C
R

 3
1

0
0

C
R

 3
0

0
0

29thSt

Clovis Rd

CR 6240

Loop 289

58th St

M
ar

ti
n

Lu
th

er
K

in
g

Jr
B

lv
d

C
R

 1
1

5
0

11th St

CR 7 650

CR 7720

90th St

58th St56th StU
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

A
ve

13th St

C
R

 2
7

5
0

C
R

 1
4

4
0

CR 6700

FR
 1

7
2

9

A
ve

 K

107th St

19th St

C
R

 1
6

4
0

CR 5950

CR 7150

US 84

109th St

C
R

1
8

10

A
lc

o
ve

 A
ve

C
R

 1
7

3
0

C
R

 1
3

3
0

C
R

26
5

0

US Hwy 84

98th St

CR 1 3
0

0

C
R

14
20

C

R1
1

4
0

CR 6300

FM 2255

CR 7300

Elk Rd

44th St

CR 5850

C
R

 3
0

0
0

V
ic

ks
bu

rg
A

ve

CR 234
0

CR 6040

Filly Rd

Municipal Dr

Alligator Rd

CR 5450

Pe
ac

h 
A

ve

C
R

 2
1

2
0

9th St

C
R

1
55

0

Pony Rd

Deer Rd

C
R

21
3

0

W
au

sa
u 

A
ve

A
sh

 A
ve

CR 5850

C
R

 2
8

4
0

118th St

Sl
id

e Rd

CR 6300

Io
la

 D
r

Ze
ni

th
A

ve

In
d

ia
na

Ave

C
R

31
0

0

CR 6250

C
R

1940

Bear Rd

CR 6100
CR 6100

V
an

d
a

A
ve

C
hi

ca
g

o
 A

ve

CR 6000

C
R

2
2

0
0

G
lo

b
e 

A
ve

114th St

18th St
Main St

CR 6400

FM 41

Ursuline St

CR 7730

CR 6800

Lubbock Business Park Blvd

CR 7260

C
R

 2
1

4
0

G
ary

A ve

U
p

la
nd

 A
ve

5th St

C
R

 2
7

0
0

C
R

 2
8

0
0

C
R

 1
2

1
0

CR 5500

C
R

 1
9

1
0

C
R

3
0

5
0

151st St

C
R

 2
8

0
0

Princeton St

CR 6350

57th St

TX
-4

9
3

Loop

C
R

2
7

5
0

Dana St

CR 5700

O
liv

e 
A

ve

CR 5750

CR 7250

CR 7150

CR 5400

11th Pl

C
R

 1
5

4
0

H
o

ck
le

y
C

o
R

d
N

-S
Pr

op
o

se
d

C
R

 3
3

0
0

CR 6140

FM
 1

2
6

4

CR 6000

CR 7200

C
R

 2
0

0
0

C
R

 1
6

4
0

FM 1729

C
R

1
9

50

43rd St

FM 2641

C
R

 1
7

1
0

Tu
lip

 A
ve

H
w

y 
1

1
4

 E
st

A
ve

 U
W

insto
n

Ave

Texa
s

TechPkw
y

CR 7100

Iv
o

ry
 A

ve

C
R

 2
9

5
0

CR 5750

C
R

2
3

00

74th St

C
R

 2
9

0
0

CR 6940
C

R
 2

3
5

0

C
R

2
8

5
0

CR 5350

To
led

o
Ave

114th St

Elgin
A

ve
CR 6640

CR 6500

FM 1294

C
R

 1
1

0
0

138th St

CR
33

5
0

34th St

CR 7340

G
ua

va
 A

ve

45th
St

CR 6100

25th St

Yucca Ln

CR 6850

Ellis St

CR 7250

21st St

CR 6800

C
R

1
84

0

C
R

 1
0

0
0

CR 5500

C
R

 1
3

0
0

C
R

 2
5

0
0

CR 6950

CR 5550

CR 5650

CR 6750

C
R

 2
5

5
0

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

A
ve

CR 5650

CR 7500

FM 1729

C
R

 3
1

5
0

C
R

 2
3

3
0

CR 7140

CR 5700

FM 1294

CR 6220

CR 6540

CR 6650

CR 7440

CR 6150

C
R

2
0

5
0

C
R

1
6

1
0

C
R

2
5

0
0

C
R

 2
2

5
0

CR 6840

CR 7050

FM 1585

SH 114

C
R

 2
6

0
0

124th St

CR 6500

C
R

 2
7

4
0

CR 7550

C
R

 1
4

4
0

CR 6050

Erskine St

26th St

CR 6840

CR 6700

154th St

C
R

30
5

0

CR 5840

CR 6000

C
R

 2
5

4
0

Colorado Rd

CR 7000

CR 6430

C
R

 3
1

0
0

C
R

1
7

0
0

FM
 1

7
9

A
ve

P

C
R

3
140

C
R

1
34

0

50th St

C
R

3
2

0
0

CR 7850

Ursuline St

C
R

 1
0

4
0

CR 7250

C
R

 2
1

0
0

C
R

 1
6

5
0

Q
u

ak
er

A
ve

FM 1585

C
R

 2
4

5
0

CR 6850

CR 6650

FM 40

C
R

1
3

10

W
au

sa
u

A
ve

C
R

1
9

3
0

CR 6940

C
R

2
8

5
0

CR 7700

C
R

 1
3

5
0

U
S

87

C
R

 1
0

4
0

C
R

1
5

2
0

Q
uincy

A
v

e

121st St

W
as

sa
u

A
ve

87th St

CR 7300

FM
1

7
2

9

C
R

 2
7

0
0

CR 5750

66th St

C
R

2
30

0

C
R

12
0

0

93rd St

B
o

sto
n

A
ve

107th St

C
R

 2
3

5
0

CR 7000

C
R

 1
4

5
0

A
ve

 P

Auburn St
U

p
to

n 
A

ve

FM 2641

78th St

C
R

 1
5

0
0

CR 6440

CR 6400

C
R

 1
3

2
0

C
R

3
2

5
0

C
R

2
9

5
0

FM 1294

C
R

 3
0

0
0

60th St

C
R

 1
1

5
0

CR 6440

CR 5800

M
em

p
hi

s 
A

ve

C
R

 1
6

3
0

CR 6240

C
R

 2
1

0
0

C
R

20
10

CornellSt

CR 6340

CR 7440

P
he

as
an

t R
d

C
R

2
7

50

C
R

 3
1

5
0

C
R

20
50

US 82

FM
 8

3
5

C
R

 2
2

5
0

106th St

C
R

 1
4

3
0

CR 6200FM 2641

CR 6250

C
R

26
5

0

C
R

 1
3

0
0

Le
on

R
d

C
R

 1
5

4
0

C
R

 1
2

0
0

C
R

 1
2

6
0

Fr
an

kf
o

rd
 A

ve

C
R

3
1

50

CR 7750

C
R

 1
1

0
0 C
R

 3
3

3
0

C
R

 2
8

0
0

FM
 1

7
9

CR 6440

CR 6500

CR 6600

C
R

 3
2

0
0

C
R

 1
2

0
0

C
R

 1
3

4
0

C
R

1
1

4
0

Q
ui

nc
y 

A
ve

C
R

 3
2

0
0

66th St

CR 6300

C
R

 2
9

3
0

CR
22

5
0

A
ve

Q

CR 7540

Loop 88

C
R

2
8

4
0

CR 6450

C
R

1
7

4
0

C
R

 2
0

0
0

CR 7620

CR 5550

CR 7540

CR 6740

CR 6840

CR 6400

CR 7200

C
R

 1
4

4
0

CR 6900

CR 5800

CR 6100

CR 7850

E
lg

in
 A

ve

C
R

2
75

0

104th St

E
lkhart

A
ve

CR 6710

C
R 2400

C
R

 2
7

0
0

Ze
ni

th
 A

ve

Auburn St

C
R12

4
0

B
o

le
s 

R
d

CR 6500

CR2
9

0
0

Erskine St

Io
la

A
ve

CR
1

7
4

0

CR 7350

CR 5450

U
tica

Ave

9 0th St

CR 6350

CR 6750

In
d

ia
na

 A
ve

O
w

l R
d

Memphis Dr

S
lide

R
d

CR 7550

Q
ua

il 
R

d

CR 7450

C
R

1
2

5
0

FM 1585

C
R

 2
1

4
0

US 62/82

CR 6260

A
lb

a
ny

A
ve

CR 6300

CR 7650

CR 7120

CR 7220

C
R

 1
3

5
0

Marsha Sharp Fwy

C
R

 2
2

2
0

Avenue Q
A

sh
 A

ve

9 1st St

CR 7640

Ellis Rd

110t hSt

82nd St

4th St

G
ua

va
 A

ve

Erskine St

Coronado D r

Slaton Rd

CR 6150

D
et

ro
it

 A
ve

US
87

C
R

 2
3

0
0

U
S

87

C
R

 2
2

4
0

C
R

 2
6

0
0

Bluefield St

108th St

CR 6300

FM 835

Marsha Sharp Fwy

±

Proposed Change to 2018 Thoroughfare Plan
Avenue P From 130th to Woodrow Road

0 1 2 3 4
Miles

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-
ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

Proposed Ave P Change

Collector

Freeway

Industrial

T1

T2

N/A

Lubbock City Limits

Lubbock County

Other City Limits

Wolffo
rth

Shallo
water

New
Deal

Idalou

Buffa
lo

Sprin
gs

Ranso
m

Canyon

Slaton



FM 1585

CR 7450

A
ve

 U

CR 7340

Loop 88

C
R 2400

CR 7550

Woodrow Rd

Fl
in

t A
ve

CR 7640

In
d

ia
na

A
ve

C
R

 2
5

0
0

C
R

 2
1

4
0

C
R

 2
2

2
0

C
R

24
50

C
R

 2
1

3
0

C
R

 2
3

3
0

A
ve

 P

U
ni

ve
rs

it
y 

A
ve

TX-493
Loop

E
lg

in
 A

ve

C
R

2
2

0
0

138th St

CR 7500

C
R

23
00

C
R

 2
2

5
0

CR 7550

CR 7550

U
S 87

Loop 88

U
S 

8
7

CR 7700

CR 7500

C
R

 2
4

0
0

C
R

 2
5

0
0

Woodrow Rd

114th St

C
R

 2
6

0
0

In
d

ia
n

a 
A

ve

C
R

 2
2

0
0

C
R

 2
3

0
0

CR 7300

FM 1585

Q
u

ak
er

 A
ve

A
ve

 P

C
R

 1
9

4
0

U
n

iv
er

si
ty

 A
ve

Proposed Change to 2018 Thoroughfare Plan
Avenue P From 130th to Woodrow Road

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000
US Feet

Proposed Ave P Change

Collector

Freeway

T1

T2

N/A

Lubbock City Limits

Lubbock County

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-
ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

±



 AI# 13434 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 12. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Change
Order No. 1 to Contract No. 18190, and related documents, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD, for the 66th Street Channel Drainage Project.

Item Summary
This project involves excavating Playa Lake 100 and enhancing the drainage channel along
66th Street from Upland Avenue, along Santa Fe Drive, to Playa Lake 039. The project aims to
improve drainage capacity, and will ultimately lead to the removal of several properties from
the floodplain.

On November 12, 2024, a unit price construction contract was awarded to Lone Star Dirt &
Paving, LTD., per Request for Proposal (RFP) 24-18190-TF, with 280 calendar days of
construction time.

The scope of work of Change Order No. 1 includes the relocation of existing electric and gas
service lines, the removal of excess soil to be hauled to Meadowbrook Golf Course and offsite,
and a cost reduction for a material substitution. As a result, the contract price will increase by
$844,890.28, along with a 113-calendar-day extension to the contract.  This Change Order will
not require a budget amendment as the Capital Improvement Project has sufficient funds to
cover the costs associated with this change order.  

Fiscal Impact
Change Order No. 1 for $844,890.28 is funded in Capital Improvement Project 92654, Upland
Avenue and 66th Street Playa Lake Drainage Improvements.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 
Change Order No. 1 
Contract 18190 



Contract 18190 
Location Map 
CIP 92654 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92654 - Project Detail 









 

 

 

RCP-001.1 

 

Gas Service Relocation 

 

$154,946.57 

23 Days 



Request for Change Proposal

Project 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project Number

Owner City of Lubbock LUB24404

Builder Lone Star Dirt & Paving

Designer Freese and Nichols, Inc.

CM Kelly Smith

RCP No. RCP-001.1 Builder Submittal No.

Specification

Drawing / Detail PP-03 to PP-08

NOTIFICATION TO BUILDER

The Owner proposes to make the following additions, modifications or deletions to the work described in
the Contract Documents. Authorization to proceed with these changes must be approved by Field Order or
Change Order in accordance with the Contract Documents, prior to commencing the work involved.

Submit a Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown of labor, materials, equipment and all other costs
related to this change. Impacts on Contract Time shall be shown in a revised schedule, included with the
submitted proposal.

Comments Submit price for relocation of individual gas service lines in conflict with drainage
channel behind Santa Fe Dr. STA 20 00 to STA 63 00.

Attachment

Submitted By Kelly Smith Date 04/15/2025

BUILDER'S RESPONSE

We respond to your request as follows:

We submit the attached Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown and revised schedule for performing
the described change.

Cost Impact $154,946.57

Time Impact 23 Days

Comments Submit price for relocation of individual gas service lines in conflict with drainage
channel behind Santa Fe Dr. STA 20 00 to STA 63 00.

Attachments
RCP-001.1-Gas service relocation-Colin Coe-Pending.pdf



CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSE

Status Change Order will be Issued

Action Final Distribution

Comments

Returned By Kelly Smith Date 04/15/2025



Lone Star Dirt & Paving

11820 University Ave

Lubbock, TX  79423

ITEM DESCRIPTION BID QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

1 Relocate Existing Gas Service Line (110' ea) 30 EA $4,312.00 $129,360.00

2 Additional Length of Relocation (if needed) 116 LF $39.20 $4,547.20

3 Repair Gas Leaks - Plumber Labor 92.25 HR $181.50 $16,743.38

4 Repair Gas Leaks - Jody Pinkert Labor 63.00 HR $55.00 $3,465.00

5 Repari Gas Leaks - Materials $755.45 $ $1.10 $831.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL $154,946.57

23 CALENDAR DAYS

GRAND TOTAL $154,946.57

66th Street Channel RCP-001.1

PRINCING QUOTE - Gas Service Line Relocation

ADDITIONAL TIME

ADDITIONAL TIME FOR CREWS TO RELOCATE EXISTING GAS LINES



RCP-002

Relocation of SPEC Service Lines

$90,000.04

   21 Days



Request for Change Proposal

Project 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project Number

Owner City of Lubbock LUB24404

Builder Lone Star Dirt & Paving

Designer Freese and Nichols, Inc.

CM Kelly Smith

RCP No. RCP-002 Builder Submittal No.

Specification

Drawing / Detail PP-03 to PP-08

NOTIFICATION TO BUILDER

The Owner proposes to make the following additions, modifications or deletions to the work described in
the Contract Documents. Authorization to proceed with these changes must be approved by Field Order or
Change Order in accordance with the Contract Documents, prior to commencing the work involved.

Submit a Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown of labor, materials, equipment and all other costs
related to this change. Impacts on Contract Time shall be shown in a revised schedule, included with the
submitted proposal.

Comments Submit price for relocation of electrical service lines under drainage channel along
Santa Fe Dr. and tie into existing electrical conduit on property owner's side of
drainage channel. See attached pdf for list of properties requiring lowering.

Attachment RCP-002-Relocation of SPEC Service Lines-Kelly Smith-Pending.pdf

Submitted By Kelly Smith Date 12/17/2024

BUILDER'S RESPONSE

We respond to your request as follows:

We submit the attached Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown and revised schedule for performing
the described change.

Cost Impact $90,000.04

Time Impact 21 Days

Comments Submit price for relocation of electrical service lines under drainage channel along
Santa Fe Dr. and tie into existing electrical conduit on property owner's side of
drainage channel. See attached pdf for list of properties requiring lowering.



Attachments RCP-002-Relocation of SPEC Service Lines-Kelly Smith-Pending.pdf

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSE

Status Change Order will be Issued

Action Final Distribution

Comments

Returned By Kelly Smith Date 01/23/2025



Parcel Number Address Number Street Name Service Amperage Meter Location Distance to Panel Relocation By: Date Visited Status

1 7421 66th Street N/A

2 7401 66th Street N/A

3 6502 Upland Ave N/A

4 6601 Upland Ave N/A

5 7113 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

6 7111 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

7 7109 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

8 7107 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

9 7105 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

10 7103 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

11 7101 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

12 7009 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

13 7007 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

14 7005 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

15 7003 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

16 7001 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

17 6725 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

18 6723 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

19 6721 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

20 6719 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

21 6717 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

22 6715 Santa Fe Drive SPEC

23 6713 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

24 6711 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

25 6709 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

26 6707 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

27 6705 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

28 6703 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

29 6701 Santa Fe Drive LSDP

30 6602 MSF N/A



Lone Star Dirt & Paving

11820 University Ave

Lubbock, TX  79423

ITEM DESCRIPTION BID QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

1 Relocate Existing Service to Residence 13 ea $6,923.08 $90,000.04

Locate Intercept points on UG services $0.00 $0.00

Install UG J-boxes $0.00 $0.00

Build and install new meter and breaker at $0.00 $0.00

existing SPEC pedestal $0.00 $0.00

Bore and install conduit from Main to J-box $0.00 $0.00

Terminate all meters prior to scheduled $0.00 $0.00

outage to resident $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL $90,000.04

21 CALENDAR DAYS

GRAND TOTAL $90,000.04

66th Street Channel RCP-002

PRINCING QUOTE - SPEC SERVICE LINE RELOCATION

ADDITIONAL TIME

ADDITIONAL TIME FOR CREWS TO RELOCATE EXISTING GAS LINES



 

 

 

RCP-003.1 

 

Removal of Remaining Soil 

from Playa Lake 100 

 

$504,000.00 

22 Days 



Request for Change Proposal

Project 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project Number

Owner City of Lubbock LUB24404

Builder Lone Star Dirt & Paving

Designer Freese and Nichols, Inc.

CM Kelly Smith

RCP No. RCP-003.1 Builder Submittal No.

Specification

Drawing / Detail EX-01

NOTIFICATION TO BUILDER

The Owner proposes to make the following additions, modifications or deletions to the work described in
the Contract Documents. Authorization to proceed with these changes must be approved by Field Order or
Change Order in accordance with the Contract Documents, prior to commencing the work involved.

Submit a Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown of labor, materials, equipment and all other costs
related to this change. Impacts on Contract Time shall be shown in a revised schedule, included with the
submitted proposal.

Comments Removal of 56,000 cubic yards of Remaining Soil from Playa Lake 100 off project
limits

Attachment

Submitted By Kelly Smith Date 04/14/2025

BUILDER'S RESPONSE

We respond to your request as follows:

We submit the attached Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown and revised schedule for performing
the described change.

Cost Impact $504,000.00

Time Impact 22 Days

Comments Removal of 56,000 cubic yards of Remaining Soil from Playa Lake 100 off project
limits

Attachments
RCP-003.1-Removal of Remaining Soil From Playa Lake 100-Colin Coe-Pending.pdf



CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSE

Status Change Order will be Issued

Action Final Distribution

Comments

Returned By Kelly Smith Date 04/15/2025



Lone Star Dirt & Paving

11820 University Ave

Lubbock, TX  79423

ITEM DESCRIPTION BID QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

DISPOSAL OF UNSUITABLE MATERIAL 56,000 CY $9.00 $504,000.00

Hauling $0.00 $0.00

Dump Fee $0.00 $0.00

Knock Down $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL $504,000.00

22 CALENDAR DAYS

GRAND TOTAL $504,000.00

66th Street Channel RCP-003.1

PRINCING QUOTE - Disposal of Unsuitable Materials (Excavation)

ADDITIONAL TIME

ADDITIONAL TIME FOR CREWS TO HAUL OFF EXCESS DIRT



 

 

 

RCP-004.1 

 

Meadowbrook Golf Course 

Soil 18,960cy 

 

$151,680.00 

14 Days 



Request for Change Proposal

Project 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project Number

Owner City of Lubbock LUB24404

Builder Lone Star Dirt & Paving

Designer Freese and Nichols, Inc.

CM Kelly Smith

RCP No. RCP-004.1 Builder Submittal No.

Specification

Drawing / Detail EX-01

NOTIFICATION TO BUILDER

The Owner proposes to make the following additions, modifications or deletions to the work described in
the Contract Documents. Authorization to proceed with these changes must be approved by Field Order or
Change Order in accordance with the Contract Documents, prior to commencing the work involved.

Submit a Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown of labor, materials, equipment and all other costs
related to this change. Impacts on Contract Time shall be shown in a revised schedule, included with the
submitted proposal.

Comments Deliver 18,960 cubic yards of high PI soil from Playa Lake 100 to Meadowbrook Golf
Course and dump in designated area.

Attachment

Submitted By Kelly Smith Date 04/14/2025

BUILDER'S RESPONSE

We respond to your request as follows:

We submit the attached Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown and revised schedule for performing
the described change.

Cost Impact $151,680.00

Time Impact 14 Days

Comments Deliver 18,960 cubic yards of high PI soil from Playa Lake 100 to Meadowbrook Golf
Course and dump in designated area.

Attachments
RCP-004.1-Meadowbrook Golf Course Soil 18,960cy-Colin Coe-Pending.pdf



CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSE

Status Change Order will be Issued

Action Final Distribution

Comments

Returned By Kelly Smith Date 04/15/2025



Lone Star Dirt & Paving

11820 University Ave

Lubbock, TX  79423

ITEM DESCRIPTION BID QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

SOIL HAUL 18,960 CY $8.00 $151,680.00

Hauling $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL $151,680.00

14 CALENDAR DAY

GRAND TOTAL $151,680.00

66th Street Channel RCP-004.1

PRINCING QUOTE - SOIL HAUL TO MCKENZIE PARK

ADDITIONAL TIME

ADDITIONAL TIME FOR CREWS TO HAUL MATERIAL



 

 

 

RCP-005 

 

AT&T Cell Tower Electrical 

Service Relocation 

 

$49,943.92 

14 Days 



Request for Change Proposal

Project 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project Number

Owner City of Lubbock LUB24404

Builder Lone Star Dirt & Paving

Designer Freese and Nichols, Inc.

CM Kelly Smith

RCP No. RCP-005 Builder Submittal No.

Specification

Drawing / Detail EX-01

NOTIFICATION TO BUILDER

The Owner proposes to make the following additions, modifications or deletions to the work described in
the Contract Documents. Authorization to proceed with these changes must be approved by Field Order or
Change Order in accordance with the Contract Documents, prior to commencing the work involved.

Submit a Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown of labor, materials, equipment and all other costs
related to this change. Impacts on Contract Time shall be shown in a revised schedule, included with the
submitted proposal.

Comments Submit a cost to lower electrical service lines to at least minimum burial depths to
clear drainage channel excavation

Attachment RCP-005-AT&T Cell Tower Power Relocation-Kelly Smith-Pending.pdf

Submitted By Kelly Smith Date 04/09/2025

BUILDER'S RESPONSE

We respond to your request as follows:

We submit the attached Price/Credit Proposal with detailed cost breakdown and revised schedule for performing
the described change.

Cost Impact $49,943.92

Time Impact 14 Days

Comments Submit a cost to lower electrical service lines to at least minimum burial depths to
clear drainage channel excavation

Attachments RCP-005-AT&T Cell Tower Power Relocation-Kelly Smith-Pending.pdf
RCP-005-AT&T Cell Tower Power Relocation-Colin Coe-Pending.pdf



CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSE

Status Change Order will be Issued

Action Final Distribution

Comments

Returned By Kelly Smith Date 04/15/2025



Lone Star Dirt & Paving

11820 University Ave

Lubbock, TX  79423

ITEM DESCRIPTION BID QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

Midland Tower Construction $0.00 $0.00

Mobilization 1 LS $11,250.00 $11,250.00

Electrical 1 LS $12,115.63 $12,115.63

Power - Boring, Conduit, etc. 1 LS $9,750.00 $9,750.00

Civil - Clearing, Grading, Gravel 1 LS $4,687.50 $4,687.50

Materials 1 LS $12,140.79 $12,140.79

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL $49,943.92

14 CALENDAR DAY

GRAND TOTAL $49,943.92

66th Street Channel RCP-005

PRINCING QUOTE - RELOCATE CELLULAR TOWER UTILITIES

ADDITIONAL STIPULATIONS

ADDITIONAL TIME REQUIRED TO PERFORM THE WORK

THIS QUOTE DOES NOT INCLUDE BORING THROUGH ROCK OR OBSTRUCTIONS



Low
er E

lectrical S
ervice to A

T
&

T
 C

ell T
ow

er



CP-001

Flexamat Alternate to Articulating 
Concrete Block

($105,680.25)
     
     0 Days



Change Proposal

Project 66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements Project Number

Owner City of Lubbock LUB24404

Builder Lone Star Dirt & Paving

Designer Freese and Nichols, Inc.

CM Kelly Smith

CP No. CP-001 Builder Submittal No.

CP Description Flexamat Alternate to Articulated Concrete Block

Specification

Drawing / Detail Quote attached

NOTIFICATION BY BUILDER

The Builder proposes to make the additions, modifications, or deletions to the Work described in the
Contract Documents, as shown in Attachment and requests that you take the following action:

Issue a Change Order for performing the described change. Change in Contract amount is indicated in the
attached detailed cost breakdown of labor, materials, equipment and all other costs associated with this change.
Impacts on Contract Time are shown in the attached revised schedule.

Cost Impact ($105,680.25)

Time Impact 0 Days

Attachment CP-001-Flexamat Alternate to Articulated Concrete Block-Colin Coe-Pending.pdf

Submitted By Colin Coe Date 03/05/2025

CONSTRUCTION MANAGER'S RESPONSE

We respond to your request as follows:

Authorization to proceed with changes must be approved by the Owner through Change Order in
accordance with the Contract Documents.

Status Recommended for Approval

Action Final Distribution

Comments

Attachments CP-001-Flexamat Alternate to Articulated Concrete Block-Colin Coe-Pending.pdf



Response By Kelly Smith Date 03/24/2025



Lone Star Dirt & Paving

11820 University Ave

Lubbock, TX  79423

ITEM DESCRIPTION BID QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXTENDED

1 FLEXAMAT PLUS 10,839 SF $17.25 $186,972.75

$0.00 $0.00

2 ARMORFLEX 10,839 SF -$27.00 -$292,653.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

SUBTOTAL -$105,680.25

GRAND TOTAL -$105,680.25

66th Street Channel

PRINCING QUOTE

FLEXAMAT Alternate



Motz Enterprises, Inc. 
 3153 Madison Road 

Cincinnati OH  45209 
Office:  513-772-6689 

Fax:  513-772-6690 
www.Flexamat.com 

 
Composition of Materials – Flexamat Plus 

 

Blocks 5000 PSI, Wet-cast Portland Cement 

Interlocking 
Biaxial Geogrid 

Fornit 30/30 –  Polypropylene Geogrid with 2,055 lb/ft biaxial strength. Carbon black UV inhibitor shall 
be blended into the extruded yarns at a rate no less than 0.8% by weight. 

Property Unit Test Requirement 

Mass/Unit Area oz/yd2 ASTM D5261 6.5 oz/yd2 

Aperture Size English units Measured 1.4x 1.4 inch 

Ultimate Wide Width 
Tensile Strength (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 2,055 lb/ft 

Elongation at Ultimate 
Tensile Strength (MD x CMD) 

% ASTM D6637 6% 

Wide Width Tensile 
Strength @ 2% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 822 lb/ft 

Wide Width Tensile 
Strength @ 5% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 1,640 lb/ft 

Tensile Modulus 
@ 2% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 41,100 lb/ft 

Tensile Modulus 
@ 5% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 32,800 lb/ft 
 

Flexamat Plus 
Underlayment  

A four-layered system includes, in order from top to bottom, 1) Concrete block mat 2) 5-Pick Leno 
Weave 3) Recylex TRM and 4) Curlex® II.  The underlayment materials shall be packaged within the roll 
of the Flexamat Plus. 

Manufacturing Values 
 

Flexamat Properties Values 

Roll Width 4’, 5.5’, 8’, 10’, 12’, 15.5, & 16’ 

Roll Length 30’, 40’, 50’ / custom 

Material Weight 10 lbs./sf  

Block Size 6.5” x 6.5” x 2.25” 

Percentage Open Area (POA) 30% min. 

                         
Performance 

 

Test Tested Value Bed Slope Soil Classification Limiting Value 

ASTM 6460 Shear Stress 30% Sandy Loam (USDA) 24 PSF 

ASTM 6460 Velocity 20% Loam (USDA) 30 ft./sec 

 



 

1 - 5  

Flexamat Plus Specification 

1. DESCRIPTION 

A Tied Concrete Block Mat with Triple Layered Underlayment. This work shall consist of furnishing and 
placing the system in accordance with this specification and conforming with the lines, grades, design, and 
dimensions shown on the plans. 

2. MATERIALS 

Flexamat Plus is manufactured from individual concrete blocks tied together with high strength knitted 
polypropylene bi-axial geogrid.  Each block is tapered, beveled and interlocked and includes connections that 
prevent lateral displacement of the blocks within the mats when they are lifted for placement.   

Tied Concrete Block Mats with Triple Underlayment shall be Flexamat Plus, manufactured by Motz 
Enterprises, Inc.  

2.1. Blocks.  Furnish blocks manufactured with concrete conforming to the cement requirements of ASTM C150 
and to the aggregate requirements of ASTM C33. Blocks shall have a minimum weight of 3 lb. per block and 
placed no further than 2 in. apart. Material weight per square foot shall not exceed 10 lbs. Blocks shall have 
a 2.25” profile, a flat-top pyramid shape, and a coarse finish without protrusions. Concrete shall have a 
minimum compressive strength requirement of Table1 and certified by a third party.  

Table 1 
Concrete Compressive Strength Requirements 

Age Required Compressive 
Strength psi 

28 - Day 5000 psi 

 

2.2. Polypropylene Bi-Axial Geogrid.  The interlocking geogrid shall be an open knitted fabric composed of high 
tenacity, multifilament polypropylene yarns knitted and coated in tension with an acrylic based coating which 
is designed to resist degradation in environments with exposure to water and low pH (,4 pH) and high pH (>9 
pH).  Carbon black UV inhibitor shall be blended into the extruded yarns at a rate no less than 0.8% by 
weight. When combined with the revetment mat, this will yield a high tenacity, low elongating, and continuous 
filament polypropylene geogrid that is embedded within the base of the concrete blocks.  Ensure the geogrid 
meets the requirements of Table 2.  



 

2 - 5  

Table 2 
Polypropylene Bi-Axial Geogrid 

Property Unit Test Requirement 

Mass/Unit Area oz/yd2 ASTM D5261 6.5 oz/yd2 

Aperture Size English units Measured 1.4x 1.4 inch 

Ultimate Wide Width 
Tensile Strength (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 2,055 lb/ft 

Elongation at Ultimate 
Tensile Strength (MD x CMD) 

% ASTM D6637 6% 

Wide Width Tensile 
Strength @ 2% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 822 lb/ft 

Wide Width Tensile 
Strength @ 5% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 1,640 lb/ft 

Tensile Modulus 
@ 2% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 41,100 lb/ft 

Tensile Modulus 
@ 5% (MD x CMD) 

lb/ft ASTM D6637 32,800 lb/ft 

 

2.3. Underlayment Materials.  A four-layered system includes, in order from top to bottom, 1) Concrete block mat 2) 
5-Pick Leno Weave 3) Recyclex TRM-V and 4) Curlex® II.  The underlayment materials shall be packaged within 
the roll of the Flexamat Plus.  

 
 

 Five-Pick Leno Weave: 
This Five-Pick Weave provides added strength and support to the underlayments.  

 
Index Property   Units   Value    

 GSM    g/m²   118 (-3  ̃ +3) 
 Density    Picks/10cm  62 x 24 (+/- 2)   
 Warp Strength   N/5cm   > 350 
 Warp Elongation   %   20 - 50 
 Weft Strength   N/5cm    > 280 
 Weft Elongation   %   20 - 50 
 Warp Shrinkage   %   < 7 

Weft Shrinkage   %   < 9  
 

Recyclex® TRM: 
Recyclex TRM – V is a permanent non-degradable Turf Reinforcement Mat (TRM), consists of 100% post-consumer 
recycled polyester (green or brown bottles) with 80% five-inch fibers or greater fiber length.  It is of consistent 
thickness with fibers evenly distributed throughout the entire area of the TRM.  The top and bottom of each TRM is 
covered with heavy duty polypropylene net.  Fibers are tightly crimped and curled to allow fiber interlock, and to 



 

3 - 5  

retain 95% memory of the original shape after loading by hydraulic events. Fibers have a specific gravity greater 
than 1.0; therefore, the blanket will not float during hydraulic events.  Recyclex TRM – V meets Federal Government 
Executive Order initiatives for use of products made from, or incorporating, recycled materials.  Recyclex TRM – V 
shall be manufactured in the U.S.A. and the fibers shall be made from 100% recycled post-consumer goods. 

 
Index Property   Test Method  Value    

 Thickness   ASTM D 6525  0.294 in (7.47 mm) 
 Light Penetration   ASTM D 6567  57% 
 Resiliency   ASTM D 6524  86% 
 Mass per Unit Area   ASTM D 6566  0.50 lb/yd2 (271 g/m2) 
 MD-Tensile Strength Max.  ASTM D 6818   295.2 lb/ft (4.32 kN/m) 
 TD-Tensile Strength Max.  ASTM D 6818  194.4 lb/ft (2.85 kN/m) 
 MD-Elongation   ASTM D 6818  32.2% 
 TD-Elongation   ASTM D 6818  40.8% 
 Swell    ECTC Procedure  8% 

Water Absorption   ASTM D 1117/ECTC 33.8% 
Specific Gravity   ASTM D 792  1.21  
UV Stability   ASTM D 4355 (1,000 hr) 80% minimum 
Porosity    Calculated  97.5% 
Bench-Scale Rain Splash  ECTC Method 2  SLR = 5.86 @ 2 in/hr 1,2 

 Bench-Scale Rain Splash  ECTC Method 2  SLR = 5.00 @ 4 in/hr 1,2 
 Bench-Scale Rain Splash  ECTC Method 2  SLR = 6.33 @ 6 in/hr 1,2 
 Bench-Scale Shear   ECTC Method 3  2.41 lb/ft2 @ 0.5 in soil loss 2 

Germination Improvement  ECTC Method 4  432% 
 

1 SLR is the Soil Loss Ratio, as reported by NTPEP/AASHTO.  2 Bench-scale index values should not be used for design purposes 
 

Curlex® II: 
Curlex II erosion control blanket (ECB) consists of a specific cut of naturally seed free Great Lakes Aspen curled 
wood excelsior with 80% six-inch fibers or greater fiber length.  It is of consistent thickness with fibers evenly 
distributed throughout the entire area of the blanket.  The top and bottom of each blanket is covered with degradable 
polypropylene netting.   
 

Index Property   Test Method  Value    
 Thickness   ASTM D 6525  0.418 in (10.62 mm) 
 Light Penetration   ASTM D 6567  34.6% 
 Resiliency   ASTM D 6524  64% 
 Mass per Unit Area   ASTM D 6475  0.57 lb/yd2 (309 g/m2) 
 MD-Tensile Strength Max.  ASTM D 6818   127.0 lb/ft (1.9 kN/m) 
 TD-Tensile Strength Max.  ASTM D 6818  50.9 lb/ft (0.7 kN/m) 
 MD-Elongation   ASTM D 6818  28.64% 
 TD-Elongation   ASTM D 6818  29.84% 
 Swell    ECTC Procedure  89% 

Water Absorption   ASTM D 1117/ECTC 199% 
Bench-Scale Rain Splash  ECTC Method 2  SLR = 6.84 @ 2 in/hr 2,3 

 Bench-Scale Rain Splash  ECTC Method 2  SLR = 7.19 @ 4 in/hr 2,3 
 Bench-Scale Rain Splash  ECTC Method 2  SLR = 7.56 @ 6 in/hr 2,3 
 Bench-Scale Shear   ECTC Method 3  2.6 lb/ft2 @ 0.5 in soil loss 3 

Germination Improvement  ECTC Method 4  645%  
 
1 Weight is based on a dry fiber weight basis at time of manufacture.  Baseline moisture content of Great Lakes Aspen 
excelsior is 22%. 
 
2 SLR is the Soil Loss Ratio, as reported by NTPEP/AASHTO.  3 Bench-scale index values should not be used for design 
purposes. 

2.4. Mats will be rolled for shipment. Upon delivery, rolls may be left exposed for up to 30 days.  If exposure will 
exceed 30 days, cover or tarp the rolls to minimize UV exposure. 

 Chipping or missing concrete resulting in a weight loss exceeding 15% of the average weight of a concrete unit is 
grounds for rejection by the engineer.  Replace, repair or patch the damaged areas per the manufacturer’s 
recommendations. 



 

4 - 5  

3. PERFORMANCE 

 Full-Scale laboratory testing performed by an independent 3rd party testing facility with associated engineered 
calculations certifying the hydraulic capacity of the proposed Tied-Concrete Block Erosion Control Mat meets the 
following requirements:  

Test Tested Value Bed Slope Soil Classification Limiting Value 

ASTM 6460 Shear Stress 30% Sandy Loam (USDA) 24lb./ft2 

ASTM 6460 Velocity 20% Loam (USDA) 30 ft./sec 

4. ALTERNATIVE PRODUCTS 

 Such products must be pre-approved in writing by the Engineer prior to bid date. Alternative product packages 
must be submitted to the Engineer a minimum of fifteen (45) days prior to bid date. Submittal packages for 
alternate products must include, as a minimum, the following: 

4.1. Alternative Product Properties – Product must be comprised of materials as detailed in Section 2, including both in 
composition, underlayment layers and performance requirements.  

4.2. Full-Scale laboratory testing performed by an independent 3rd party testing facility with associated engineered 
calculations certifying the hydraulic capacity of the proposed Tied-Concrete Block Erosion Control Mat meets the 
performance requirements listed in Section 3 of this specification. 

4.3. A list of 15 comparable projects in terms of project size, application and material dimensions in the United States, 
where the results of the specific alternative material’s use can be verified and reviewed for system integrity and 
sustained after a minimum of 10 years of service life. 

 

5. EQUIPMENT 

Provide the proper equipment to place the mat that will not damage the mat material or disturb the topsoil 
subgrade and seed bed. 

 

6. CONSTRUCTION 

 Prior to installing Flexamat Plus, prepare the subgrade as detailed in the plans. All subgrade surfaces to be 
smooth and free of rocks, roots, debris, or other protrusions that would prevent intimate contact between the block 
and the subgrade. When seeding is shown on the plans, provide subgrade material that can sustain growth. 

 Ensure the prepared subgrade provides a smooth, firm, and unyielding foundation for the mats.  The subgrade 
shall be graded into a parabolic or trapezoidal shape to concentrate flow to middle of mat or mats.   

 When vegetation is required, distribute seed on the prepared topsoil subgrade before installation of the concrete 
mats in accordance with the specifications. 

 Install mats to the line and grade shown on the plans and per the manufacturer’s guidelines.  The manufacturer or 
authorized representative will provide technical assistance during preparation and installation of the concrete 
block mats as needed. 



 

5 - 5  

 Provide a minimum 18 in. deep concrete mat embedment toe trench at all edges exposed to concentrated flows.   
Recess exterior edges subject to sheet flow a minimum of 6 in. 

 Provide fastening or anchoring as recommended by the manufacturer or engineer for the site conditions. 

 

7. MEASUREMENT 

 This Item will be measured by the square foot as shown on the plans, complete in place. 

8. PAYMENT 

 The work performed, and materials furnished in accordance with this Item and measured as provided under 
“Measurement” will be paid for at the unit price bid for “Flexamat Plus”.   This price is full compensation for loading 
and transporting, placing concrete block mats; excavation and disposal; furnishing topsoil and bedding; and 
equipment, labor, materials, tools, and incidentals.  



Resolution No. 2024-R0344

Item No. 6. 8

August 13, 2024

RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK: 

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute
for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Public Works Contract No. 18190 for 66`" Street

Channel Drainage Improvements as per RFP 24- 18190-TF, by and between the City of
Lubbock and Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD of Lubbock, TX, and related documents. Said

Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if fully set forth herein and
shall be included in the minutes of the City Council. 

Passed by the City Council on August 13, 2024

ARK W. MC RAYER, M YOR

ATT T: 

Courtney Paz, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager

APPROVED AS TO PORM: 

elli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney

ccdocslRES. Public Works Contract 18190 66`' Street Channel Drainage Improvements

7. 25. 24



PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM

iJNIT PRICE PROPOSAL CONTRACT

DATE:  .-  

PROJECT NUMBER: RFP 24- 18190- TF, 66`" Street Channel Drainage Improvements

Proposal o pn  
i

hereinafter called Offeror) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lub ock, Texas ( hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The Offeror, in compliance with your Request for Proposals for construction of e referenced project, 
having carefully examined the plans, specifications, instrucrions to offerors, notice to offerors and all other
related contract documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the conditions
sunounding the construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and labor, 
hereby intends to fumish all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance with
the plans, specifications and contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated. 
The price to cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the contract documents. 

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION TIME: 

1. Contractors proposed CONSTRUCTION TIlVIE for completion: 

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS: a go ( to Substantial Completion) 

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS: . 3 4 ( to Final Completion) 

not to egceed 300 consecutive calendar days to Substantial Comoletlon / 330 consecutive calendar days to Final ComuleNon) 

Offeror hereby agrees to commence the work on the above project on a date to be specified in a written
Notice to Proceed" of the Owner and to substantially complete the project within 300 Consecutive
Calendar Days with finat completion within 330 Consecutive Calendar Days as stipulated in the
specification and other contract documents. Of%ror hereby further agrees to pay to Owner as liquidated
damages in the sum of $300 for each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion and liquidated
damages in the sum of $100 for each consecutive calendar day after final completion set forth herein above
for completion of this project, all as more fully set forth in the General Conditions of the Agreement. 

Offeror understands and agrees that this proposal submittal shall be completed and submitted in accordance
with instntcrion number 28 of the General Instructions to Offerors. Offeror understands that the Owner

reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any formality in the proposing. The Offeror
agrees that this proposal shall be good for a period of six 60 calendar days after the scheduled closing
time for receiving proposals. 

The undersigned Offeror hereby declares that he has visited the site of the work and has cazefully examined
the plans, specifications and contract documents pertaining to the work covered by this proposal, and he
further agrees to commence work on the date specified in the written notice to proceed, and to substantially
complete the work on which he has proposed; as provided in the contract documents. 

Offerors are required, whether or not a payment or performance bond is required, to submit a cashier's check
or certified check issued by a bank satisfactory to the City of Lubbock, or a proposal bond from a reliable
surety company, payable without recourse to the order of the City of Lubbock in an amount not less than five
percent ( 5%) of the total amount of the proposal submitted as a guarantee that offeror will enter into a
contract, obtain all required insurance policies, and execute all necessary bonds ( if required) within ten ( 10) 
days after notice of award of the contract to him. 

7/ 22/' 24 3: 14 PM



City of Lubbock, TX
Public Works

RFP 24- 18190- TF

66th Street Channel Drainage Improvements

Lone Star Dirt & Paving, LTD of Lubbock, TX
QTI' Unit Extended

Items +/- 
U 

Price Cost

Base Bid

1- 1 PROJECT MOBILIZATION 1 LS $ 200, 000. 00 200,000.00

1- 2 PREP ROW ( CLEARING AND GRUBBING) 30 AC 7, 500. 00 225, 000. 00

1- 3 SWPPP 6 MO 8, 500. 00 51, 000. 00

1- 4 TRAFFIC CONTROL

1- 5 ASPHALT REMOVAL

1- 6 CONCRETE REMOVAL

1- 7 FENCE REMOVAL

1- 8 EXCAVATION ( PLAYA LAKE) 

1- 9 EXCAVATION (CHANNEL) 

1- 10 EMBANKMENT

1- 11 CONCRETE RIPRAP ( 4") 

1- 12 30" RCP CLTLVERT

1- 13 SET Type II 30" 

1- 14 YARD HYDRANT REMOVAL AND RELOCATION

1- 15 SEPTIC SYSTEM REPLACEMENT

1- 16 SEPTIC SYSTEM LEACH LINE FIELD

RELOCATION

1- 17 SEEDING FOR EROSION CONTROL

1- 18 FENCE REPLACEMENT ( PIPE FENCE) 

1- 19 ARTICULATED CONCRETE BLOCK MATTRESS

AND GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

1- 20 CONCRETE PAVEMENT ( 6") 

1- 21 ASPHALT PAVEMENT (2") 

1- 22 CONCRETE DRNEWAY

Add Alternate Bid

2- 1 SEEDING FOR EROSION CONTROL ( DEDUCT) 4793 SY ( 3. 00) 

2- 2 10' CONCRETE VALLEY GUTTER 4330 LF $ 100

Total ( Items I- 1 through 1- 22): 

Total ( Items 2- 1 through 2- 2): 

Total ( Items 1- 1 through 2- 2): 

6

710

55

1789

198769

31596

392

757

64

4

1

1

MO

SY

SY

LF

CY

CY

CY

CY

LF

EA

EA

EA

5 EA

37066 SY

1123 LF

10839 SF

431 SY

614 SY

148 SY

10,000.00

50. 00

50.00

45. 00

9. 00

9.00

12. 00

600. 00

300. 00

6, 000. 00

2, 500.00

15, 000. 00

10,000.00

2. 00

125. 00

27. 00

90.00

43. 00

95. 00

60,000.00

35, 500. 00

2, 750. 00

80, 505. 00

1, 788, 921. 00

284,364.00

4, 704. 00

454,200.00

19, 200. 00

24, 000. 00

2, 500. 00

15, 000. 00

50,000. 00

74, 132. 00

140, 375. 00

292, 653. 00

38, 790. 00

26, 402. 00

14, 060. 00

14, 379. 00) 

433, 000. 00

3, 884, 056. 00

418, 621. 00

4,302, 677. 00



Enclosed with this proposal is a Cashier' s Check or Certlfled Check Enclosed with

this proposal is a Cashier' s Check or Cerdfled CLeck for
Dollars ($ ) or a Proposal Bond in the sum

of _" _ Dollars ($ ), wluch it is agreed shall be

collected and retained by the Owner as liquidated damages in the event the proposal is
accepted by the Owner and the undersigned fails to execnte the necessary contract
documents, insurance certificates, and the required bond ( if any) with the Owner within
ten ( 10) basiness days after the date of receipt of written notiBcaHon of acceptance of said
proposal; otherwise, said check or bond shall be returned to the undersigned upon
demand. 

Offeror understands and agrees that the cvntract to be executed by Offeror shall be bound
and include all contract documents made available to him for lus inspection in accordance with
the Notice to Offerors. 

Pursaant to Texas Local Government Code

252. 043( g), e competitive sealed proposal that
has been opened may not be changed for the
purpose of correcting an error in the proposal
price. TBEREFORE, ANY CORREGTIONS
TO THE PROPOSAL PRICE MUST BE MADE

ON THE PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM

PRIOR TO PROPOSAL OPENIIVG. 

Seal ifOfferor is a Corporation) 

ATTEST: 

Secretary

Offeror acknowledges receipt of the following addenda: 

Addenda No. _ Date

Addenda No. Date

Addenda No. Date

Addenda No. Date

M/WBE Firm: 

Date: 7   - a i

V

utho zed Signature

S ,- P l e  i ri' 1 P r' 
Printed or Typed ame) 

Lonp. r- / rL d
Company

a  % n i  

Address   

14  4 , 

City,  County
Y , 9 Z 3

State Zip Code
Telephone: JG - 7 5 L    
F:  - y s v  l
Email: / t =.- ., e, e 2 .. 
FEDERAL TA7iID or SOCI + SEC Y
No. 

oo r3. a r

7/ 22/' 24 3: 14 PM



SPUR 327

66TH ST

M
IL

W
A

U
K

E
E

 A
V

E

U
P

L
A

N
D

 A
V

E
MARSHA SHARP FW

Y

±

66th Street Drainage Channel Improvements
Contract 92654

Proposed Drainage Channel

Proposed Playas

Playas

Lubbock City Limits 0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the
Government Code, this product is for informational purposes and may
not have be prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or
surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground survey and
represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

Playa Lake 100

Proposed Playa Lake 100
Excavation



City of Lubbock
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
May 13, 2024

Capital Project Number: 92654
Capital Project Name: Upland Ave 66th Street Playa Drainage Imp.

Encumbered/Expended Budget
Contract with FNI for Design Services                      292,455
Contract 18233 with FNI, construction phase services                      492,003
Contract 18190 with Lone Star Dirt and Paving, Ltd.                   4,302,677
COL Staff time                        45,633
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 75-A                        19,950
Land Acquisition Cost Parcel 74 and 74-A                      574,675

Agenda Item May 13, 2025
Contract 18190 - Change Order No. 1                      844,890

Encumbered/Expended To Date                   6,572,283

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation
Remaining Appropriation                   1,577,717

Total Appropriation  $               8,150,000



Project Scope

This project will over excavate an existing playa lake, southwest of the intersection of Upland Ave and

66th Street, with the outfall being channelized adjacent to 66th Street and discharging to the existing

playa lake, lying northwest of the intersection of Marsha Sharp Fwy and Milwaukee Ave, via a proposed

earthen channel within the existing drainage easement lying adjacent to Marsha Sharp Fwy. At the

completion of the construction, the floodplain will be studied and remapped to remove homes and

businesses from the floodplain in Pine Grove Estates.

Project Justification

The intersection of 66th Street and Upland Ave has historically flooded during even small rain

events. Excavation of the existing playa lake, southwest of the intersection of Upland Ave and 66th

Street, with channel improvements adjacent to 66th Street and within the existing drainage easement

lying adjacent to Marsha Sharp Fwy will increase stormwater conveyance while reducing the runoff

within the streets. 

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:

Public Safety

Community Improvement

Growth and Development

FY 2019-20 $300,000 was appropriated by Ord.

2019-O0129

FY 2020-21 $1,000,000 was appropriated by

Ord. 2020-O0123

FY 2021-22 $4,000,000 was appropriated by

Ord. 2021-O0126

FY 2023-24 $2,850,000 was appropriated by

Ord. 2020-O0108

Project Dates Project Location

Design / Land Acquisition Completed

Bid Date - Construction: 07/2024

Award Date for Bid - Construction: 08/2024

Project Start Date - Construction: 10/2024

Project End Date - Construction: 10/2025

LOMR Submittal Date: TBD

Upland Ave and 66th Street

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Acquisition $800,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Construction $7,050,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Design $300,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $8,150,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

CIP 92654CIP 92654 Upland Ave and 66th St Playa Upland Ave and 66th St Playa
Drainage ImprovementsDrainage Improvements

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Kerry KoehlerProject Manager: Kerry Koehler   - Engineering- Engineering



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Stormwater Fund Cash $5,054,079 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Stormwater Fund Bonds $3,095,921 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $8,150,000 $500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13422 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 13. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public
Works Contract 18697, and related documents, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for utility
relocations ahead of the Upland Avenue Project, approximately between 26th Street and 63rd
Street, to be utilized for the 2022 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary

Upland Avenue will be widened under the 2022 Street Bond Program. Water and sewer
facilities along Upland Avenue need to be relocated before the construction of the roadway
improvements can proceed. MH Civil Constructors, Inc. will relocate water vaults, fire
hydrants, water lines and sewer lines that are in conflict with the proposed pavement.
  

Contractor Price
MH Civil Constructors, Amarillo, Texas $1,502,300
Utility Contractors of America, Lubbock, Texas $1,790,580

The proposals were evaluated based on the following criteria: Price - 60 points, Contractor
Qualifications - 30 points, and Construction Time - 10 points. The Evaluation Committee
arrived at the following scores:
  

Contractor Score
MH Civil Constructors, Amarillo, Texas 95.75
Utility Contractors of America, Lubbock, Texas 88.16

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of this unit price contract to the highest
ranked proposer, MH Civil Constructors, Inc. of Amarillo, Texas, in the amount of $1,502,300.

Time for substantial completion is 180 consecutive calendar days from Notice to Proceed, with
210 days until Final Completion. This contract is awarded by the unit price, and actual
expenditures may be more or less depending on field conditions.

Fiscal Impact



Contract 18697, in the amount of $1,502,300, is funded in Capital Improvements Project
92752, Water Lines Ahead of Arterial Roadways.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer

Attachments
Resolution 18697 
Contract 18697 
Location Map 
CIP Spreadsheet 
Budget Detail 
18697 - Project Summary (c) 





PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL FORM 

UNIT PRICE PROPOSAL CONTRACT 

DATE: _______________________________________ 

PROJECT NUMBER:  RFP 25-18697-TF Utility Relocations Ahead of Upland Avenue   

Proposal of _________________________________________________________________ (hereinafter 

called Offeror) 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council City of Lubbock, Texas (hereinafter called Owner) 

Ladies and Gentlemen:  

The Offeror, in compliance with your Request for Proposals for construction of the referenced project, having 

carefully examined the plans, specifications, instructions to offerors, notice to offerors and all other related 

contract documents and the site of the intended work, and being familiar with all of the conditions 

surrounding the construction of the intended project including the availability of materials and labor, hereby 

intends to furnish all labor, materials, and supplies; and to construct the project in accordance with the plans, 

specifications and contract documents, within the time set forth therein and at the price stated.  The price to 

cover all expenses incurred in performing the work required under the contract documents.  

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION TIME: 

1. Contractors proposed CONSTRUCTION TIME for completion:  

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS:                              (to Substantial Completion) 

TOTAL CONSECUTIVE CALENDAR DAYS:                              (to Final Completion) 

(not to exceed 180 consecutive calendar days to Substantial Completion / 210 consecutive calendar days 

to Final Completion). 

 

Offeror hereby agrees to commence the work on the above project on a date to be specified in a written "Notice 

to Proceed" of the Owner and to substantially complete the project within 180 Consecutive Calendar Days 

with final completion within 210 Consecutive Calendar Days as stipulated in the specification and other 

contract documents. Offeror hereby further agrees to pay to Owner as liquidated damages in the sum of $400 

for each consecutive calendar day after substantial completion and liquidated damages in the sum of $200for 

each consecutive calendar day after final completion set forth herein above for completion of this project, all 

as more fully set forth in the General Conditions of the Agreement. 

 

Offeror understands and agrees that this proposal submittal shall be completed and submitted in 

accordance with instruction number 28 of the General Instructions to Offerors.  Offeror understands that the 

Owner reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any formality in the proposing.  The 

Offeror agrees that this proposal shall be good for a period of sixty (60) calendar days after the scheduled 

closing time for receiving proposals. 

 

The undersigned Offeror hereby declares that he has visited the site of the work and has carefully 

examined the plans, specifications and contract documents pertaining to the work covered by this proposal, 

and he further agrees to commence work on the date specified in the written notice to proceed, and to 

substantially complete the work on which he has proposed; as provided in the contract documents. 

 

 

maclaneu
Text Box
3/20/2025

maclaneu
Text Box
MH Civil Constructors, Inc

joset
Text Box
180

joset
Text Box
210



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works

 RFP 25-18697-TF

Utility Relocations Ahead of Upland Avenue

# Items

QTY

+/- U/M

Unit

Cost

Extended

Cost

#1-1
12-Inch PVC Sanitary Sewer (SDR-26) Open Cut (10' Depth or Less)

67 LF           350.00 23,450.00 

#1-2 Connection to Ex 12" Sewer Line 1 EA        2,000.00 2,000.00 

#1-3 Asphalt Pavement Repair 20 SY           280.00 5,600.00 

#1-4 Trench Safety 790 LF 1.00 790.00 

#1-5 Seeding 4393 SY 1.00 4,393.00 

#1-6 Traffic Control Plan - Sewer 1 EA        7,500.00 7,500.00 

#1-7 12-inch PVC Water Line and Fittings C-900 (DR-18) by Open Cut 723 LF           150.00          108,450.00 

#1-8 12-inch PVC by Other than Open Cut 114 LF           170.00 19,380.00 

#1-9 20-Inch Steel Casing Pipe by Other Than Open Cut 114 LF        4,500.00          513,000.00 

#1-10 Connection to Ex 12" Waterline 2 EA        5,000.00 10,000.00 

#1-11 Traffic Control Plan - Water 1 EA  10,000.00 10,000.00 

#1-12 Abandon Fire Hydrant Assembly (Cut & Plug) 1 EA        2,000.00 2,000.00 

#1-13 Mobilization 1 EA  57,837.00 57,837.00 

#1-14 Railroad Bore Coordination / Insurance 1 EA  250,000.00          250,000.00 

#2-1 19th to 34th - Traffic Rated Adjustments 3 EA  20,000.00 60,000.00 

#2-2 19th to 34th - Vent Relocation 2 EA  15,000.00 30,000.00 

#2-3 34th to 50th - Traffic Rated Adjustments 1 EA  20,000.00 20,000.00 

#2-4 34th to 50th - Vent Relocation 4 EA  15,000.00 60,000.00 

#2-5 50th to 66th - Traffic Rated Adjustments 4 EA  20,000.00 80,000.00 

#2-6 50th to 66th - Vent Relocation 5 EA  15,000.00 75,000.00 

#2-7 50th to 66th - Lower/Raise Vault Only 3 EA  10,000.00 30,000.00 

#2-8 Cathodic Protection Station Traffic Rating 1 EA  20,000.00 20,000.00 

#2-9 Cathodic Protection Station Box Installation and Traffic Rating 1 EA        5,000.00 5,000.00 

#2-10 Traffic Control Plan 3 EA  20,000.00 60,000.00 

#2-11 Mobilization 1 EA  65,000.00 65,000.00 

#3-1 36" Waterline and Fittings Class 150 AWWA C303 by Open Cut 200 LF        1,440.00          288,000.00 

#3-2 Tie-in to Ex 36" Low Head C Pipeline 1 EA  73,000.00 73,000.00 

#3-3 36" Butterfly Valve and Vault 1 EA  260,000.00          260,000.00 

#3-4 Asphalt Pavement Repair 420 SY           280.00          117,600.00 

#3-5 Trench Safety 200 LF 10.00 2,000.00 

#3-6 Cathodic Protection 1 LS  25,000.00 25,000.00 

#3-7 Traffic Control Plan 1 EA  20,000.00 20,000.00 

#3-8 Mobilization 1 EA  85,000.00 85,000.00 

 $   1,014,400.00 

 $    505,000.00 

 $    870,600.00 

 $   2,390,000.00 

Total (Items 2-1 through 2-11):

Total (Items 3-1 through 3-8):

Total (Items 1-1 through 3-8):

Total (Items 1-1 through 1-14):

MH Civil Constructors, Inc. of Amarillo, TX

Project 1 - Upland Avenue Water and Sewer Extension

Project 2 - Upland Avenue Vault Improvements

Project 3 (Add. Alternate) - West Lubbock Pipeline Connection (Upland/26th Street) 

$4,350 $495,900

$997,300.00

$2,372,900.00

Total (Items 1-1 through 1-14 & Items 2-1 through 2-11):  $1,502,300.00

152279
Line

152279
Line

152279
Line

152279
Line



Offerors are required, whether or not a payment or performance bond is required, to submit a cashier's 

check or certified check issued by a bank satisfactory to the City of Lubbock, or a proposal bond from a reliable 

surety company, payable without recourse to the order of the City of Lubbock in an amount not less than five 

percent (5%) of the total amount of the proposal submitted as a guarantee that offeror will enter into a contract, 

obtain all required insurance policies, and execute all necessary bonds (if required) within ten (10) days after 

notice of award of the contract to him. 

                                        

 





G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G! G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!
G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!
G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!
G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

30TH ST

34TH ST

TI
FF

IN
 A

V

26TH ST

V
IO

LA
 A

V

27TH ST

P
R

IM
R

O
SE

 A
V

V
E

N
IT

A
 A

V

W
IN

FI
E

LD
 A

V

Y
U

K
O

N
 A

V

U
R

B
A

N
A

 P
L

32ND ST

29TH ST

34TH PL

36TH ST

43RD ST

W
A

U
SA

U
A

V

R
O

C
H

E
ST

E
R

 A
V

29TH ST

36TH ST

40TH ST

37TH ST

35TH ST

37
TH

 S
T

28TH ST

32ND ST

VIO
LA

A
V

35TH ST

37TH ST

O
A

K
R

ID
G

E
 A

V

SA
R

A
TO

G
A

A
V

RO
C

H
ES

TE
R 

A
V

TR
EN

TO
N

 A
V

P
R

E
N

TI
SS

 A
V

34TH PL

VIO
LA

AV

U
R

B
A

N
A

 P
L

33RD ST

31ST ST

V
A

LE
N

C
IA

 A
V

30TH ST

38TH ST

28TH ST

Q
U

IN
C

Y 
A

V

U
R

B
A

N
A

 P
L

V
A

LE
N

C
IA

 A
V

30TH ST

VEN
ITA

A
V

U
R

B
A

N
A

 A
V

31ST ST

39TH ST

38TH ST

ROSS AV

Q
U

IN
C

Y 
A

V

33RD ST

33RD PL

TU
R

N
E

R
 A

V

35TH PL

V
E

N
ITA

AV

U
R

B
A

N
A

 A
V

31ST ST

43RD DR

VO
LN

EY AV

28TH ST

37TH ST

P
O

N
TI

A
C

A
V

31ST PL

36TH ST

W
A

V
E

R
LY

 A
V

V
O

LN
E

Y 
A

V

35TH ST

Q
U

IT
M

A
N

A
V

O
A

KR
ID

G
E

A
V

30TH ST

V
IR

G
IN

IA
A

V

27TH ST

28TH ST

V
IRG

IN
IA

AV

TR
E

N
TO

N
 A

V

TU
R

N
E

R
 A

V

29TH ST 30TH ST

TI
FF

IN
 A

V
40TH ST

41ST ST

28TH ST

SA
R

A
TO

G
A

 A
V

RID
G

EL
Y

AV

G!

Miscellaneous Utility Improvements
Contract 18697

Upland Ave From 26th Street to 43rd Drive

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

50TH ST

W
 L

O
O

P 
28

9

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

34TH ST

0 250 500 750 1,000
US Feet

Proposed Vaults

Proposed Manhole

Proposed Sewer Lines

Proposed Water Lines

G! Accepted Hydrants

G! Complete Hydrants

G!
Abandoned and
Removed Hydrants

G! Proposed Hydrants

G!
Under Development
Hydrants

Accepted Water Mains

Complete Water Mains

Abandoned Water
Mains

Proposed Water Mains

Proposed Abandoned
Water Mains

Under Development
Water Mains

Proposed Gravity Mains

Proposed Stub

Accepted Gravity
Mains

Complete Gravity
Mains

Accepted Stub

Accepted Trunk

Accepted Manholes

Complete Manholes

Proposed Manholes

Lot Block Lines

Lubbock City Limits

A
LC

O
V

E 
A

V
E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-
ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

±19TH ST

66TH ST

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y



G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G! G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!
G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!
G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!
G!

G!

G!

G!

G! G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

G! G!

G!

G!

G!

G!

MARSHA SHARP FW

50TH ST

60TH ST

51ST ST

Q
U

IN
C

Y
A

V

R
ID

G
EL

Y
A

V

58TH ST

57TH ST

Q
U

IT
M

A
N

 A
V

R
ID

G
E

LY
 A

V

RO
SSA

V
53RD ST

X
E

N
IA

 A
V

P
O

N
TI

A
C

 A
V

YO
N

K
E

R
S 

A
V

45TH ST

SPUR 3

2

7TR

54TH ST

53RD ST Q
U

IN
C

Y 
A

V

57TH ST

43RD DR

52ND ST

55TH ST

W
A

U
SA

U
 A

V

N
O

R
W

IC
H

 A
V

VEN
ITA AV

V
IO

LA
 A

V

59TH ST

V
A

LE
N

CIA
AV

W
A

V
E

R
LY

 A
V

V
O

LN
E

Y 
A

V

P
R

IM
R

O
SE

 A
V

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 A

V
REM

IN
G

TO
N

A
V

P
O

N
TI

A
C

 A
V

56TH ST

44TH ST

59TH ST

55TH ST

Z
A

D
A

R
 A

V

X
E

N
IA

 A
V

P
R

E
N

TI
SS

 A
V

Z
A

D
A

R
 A

V

P
R

O
SP

E
C

T 
A

V

W
A

U
SA

U
 A

V

61ST ST

63RD ST

W
IN

FI
E

LD
 A

V

U
R

B
A

N
A

A
V

TR
E

N
TO

N
 A

V

P
R

IM
R

O
SE

A
V

URBANA PL

57TH ST

47TH ST

52ND ST

Q
U

IT
M

A
N

A
V

63RD ST

62ND ST

46TH ST

R
E

M
IN

G
TO

N
A

V

60TH ST

45TH ST

61ST ST

59TH ST

45TH ST

42N

D
ST

51ST ST

56TH ST

SANTA FE D
R

54TH ST

G!

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

0 250 500 750 1,000
US Feet

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-
ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

±

Proposed Vaults

Proposed Manhole

Proposed Abandoned
Water Lines

Proposed Sewer Lines

G!
Proposed Abandoned
Hydrants

G! Accepted Hydrants

G! Complete Hydrants

G! Proposed Hydrants

G!
Under Development
Hydrants

Accepted Water Mains

Complete Water Mains

Proposed Water Mains

Under Development
Water Mains

Proposed Gravity Mains

Under Development
Gravity Mains

Proposed Stub

Under Development
Stub

Accepted Gravity
Mains

Complete Gravity
Mains

Accepted Interceptor

Accepted Stub

Complete Stub

Accepted Trunk

Accepted Manholes

Complete Manholes

Proposed Manholes

Under Development
Manholes

Lot Block Lines

Lubbock City Limits

Miscellaneous Utility Improvements
Contract 18697

Upland Ave From 43rd Drive to 63rd Street

66TH ST

W
 L

O
O

P 
28

9

U
PL

A
N

D
 A

V
E

50TH ST

A
LC

O
V

E 
A

V
E

M
IL

W
A

U
K

EE
 A

V
E

34TH ST

82ND ST

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
May 13, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92752
Capital Project Name: Water Lines Ahead of Arterial Raods

Encumbered/Expended Budget

City of Lubbock Staff Time 98,011
Water Line Improvement Materials 20,601

Agenda Items, May 13, 2025
Contract 18697 With MH Civil for Utility Relocations Ahead of Upland Avenue 1,502,300

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                    1,620,912

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Remaining Appropriation                                    1,079,088

Total Appropriation  $                                2,700,000



Project Scope

Installation of water lines ahead of Upland Avenue, 19th Street to 66th Street.

Project Justi�cation

Replacing aging infrastructure ahead of arterial roadways by coordinating line change-outs with the
paving improvements project to reduce paving costs associated with line change-outs, reducing
emergency maintenance expenditures, system failures, and customer inconvenience.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement
Growth and Development

FY 2021-22 $1,350,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2021-O0126
FY 2021-22 $1,250,000 was reassigned by BCR
2022-07
FY 2023-23 $1,450,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2023-O0108
FY 2024-25 $1,150,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2024-O0128

Project Dates Project Location

Project Start Date - Construction: 06/2025
Project End Date - Construction: 12/2025

Citywide

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $2,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Design $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Water/Wastewater Fund Revenue Bonds $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Water/Wastewater Fund Cash $2,600,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $2,700,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

CIP 92752CIP 92752 Water Lines Ahead of Arterial Water Lines Ahead of Arterial
RoadwaysRoadways

Infrastructure ImprovementsInfrastructure Improvements

Project Manager: Kerry KoehlerProject Manager: Kerry Koehler  - Engineering- Engineering

https://opengov.com/


Purchasing and Contract Management 

Project Summary 

RFP 25-18697-TF  

Utility Relocations Ahead of Upland Avenue 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on March 2 & March 9, 2025. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from March 2 to March 20, 2025. 

6 individuals attended the pre-proposal meeting. 

54 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

15 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted proposals. 



 AI# 13425 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement Contract 18843, by and between the City of Lubbock and
Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., for the design of Avenue P from 130th Street to 146th Street,
to be utilized for the 2024 Street Bond Project.

Item Summary
On November 5, 2024, Lubbock voters approved the issuance of a $103 million street
improvements bond package, for the purpose of providing permanent public improvements. 
The funding provides for street improvements, including, but not limited to sidewalks, utility
line relocations, traffic signals, necessary and related storm drainage facilities, and the
acquisition of land and right-of-way.

Avenue P from 130th Street to 146th Street is currently a 2-lane asphalt paved road to 146th
Street with the 146th Street intersection being unpaved.  Professional Services Agreement
Contract 18843 will provide full design of a 3-lane paved road, 1-lane in each direction with a
center turn lane, for Avenue P, from 130th Street to 146th Street and the 146th Street
intersection.  Professional services to be provided include design, plan and specification
preparation, and bid phase services. 

Staff conducted contract negotiations with Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. after establishing
them as qualified under RFQ 25-18527-TF, to provide engineering services. Fair and
reasonable hourly rates were agreed upon for a total contract amount of $953,125, with a
12-month contract duration. Staff recommends Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. be awarded
the professional service contract for Avenue P from 130th Street to 146th Street, a 2024 Street
Bond Project.

Fiscal Impact
This contract is not to exceed $953,125 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92898,
Avenue P: 130th Street to 146th Street – 24B.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
John Turpin, P.E., Division Director of Engineering/City Engineer



Attachments
Resolution 18843 
Contract 18843 
Location Exhibit 
CIP 92898 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92898 - {Project Detail 



























City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 1 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Engineering Scope of Services  

Avenue P Reconstruction  

State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street 

City of Lubbock  

Project Understanding  

1. Existing Corridor 
a. Existing HMAC Strip Paving 

i. City limits positioned at section line. Approximately located at center of 
existing strip paving 

ii. Curb and gutter exists on south bound direction 
1. C&G positioned for 7 lane section in majority 

iii. Franchise utilities exist in easements along west edge of strip paving 
b. State Loop 88 (130th Street) 

i. Plans for TxDOT construction in Segment 3C of Loop 88 Design Plans 
ii. ROW utility work underway 

c. 146th Street 
i. Located at city limits 

ii. Strip paving terminates at intersection 
iii. Unpaved west, east, and south directions 

2. Proposed improvements 
a. Develop PS&E package for one lane in each direction with a continuous turn lane 
b. Develop intersection layout for 146th and Avenue P with cooperative effort between 

146th Street consultant and County of Lubbock 
c. Intersection at 146th and Avenue P will be designed for future traffic signal. 

Improvements to include conduit routing perpendicular to roadways along each 
connection, TxDOT Type D Ground Control boxes without aprons, and traceable wire 
with tape. 

3. Special consideration 
a. Franchise utilities located in dedicated easements 
b. Drainage infrastructure and flow depths in the proposed roadway 
c. ROW acquisition needs at intersection of 146th and Avenue P 

 
1. Project Management 

1.1 Host one (1) project kick off meeting with the design team and the City of Lubbock 
1.2 Biweekly progress meetings scheduled and hosted (virtually) throughout the 

design phase of the project. 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 2 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

1.3 Milestone deliverables meetings at 30%, 60%, 90% and final design review 
scheduled and hosted (in person).  

1.4 Schedule and coordinate franchise utility meeting with the City of Lubbock and 
franchisees within the project corridor. 
 

2. Design Survey  
2.1 Prepare right-of-entry agreements for all adjacent property owners in the project 

corridor and mail via registered mail. 
2.2 Survey Data: 

2.2.1 Develop an existing Right of Way (ROW) boundary survey and existing 
topographic data within the limits of this project. 

2.2.2 Data Collection and Property Research 
• Consultant will collect available data to determine the boundary 

locations and owner information for all adjacent properties within 
the project limits. 

2.2.3 Design Survey 
• The limits of the survey along Avenue P will extend from 

approximately 100’ North of State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 500’ 
south of 146th Street intersection.  The survey will extend east of 
Avenue P from 146th Street approximately 500’ and west to 
approximately Avenue S. The survey will consist of the existing and 
proposed ROW width of 110’ and where subdivisions and 
structures are encountered adjacent to Avenue P.  Data will be 
collected a minimum of 20-feet beyond the ROW limits. 

• The following areas shall also be surveyed: 
− Minor Cross Streets - 100-feet east and west of the 

proposed Avenue P centerline at every minor cross 
street. 

− Finished floor elevations of existing structures adjacent 
to the ROW as needed. 

− Place five (5) permanent control monuments with 
aluminum caps in concrete. Establish horizontal state 
plane coordinates (NAD 83) using GPS.  Establish 
vertical control coordinates on NAVD 88. Monuments 
will be set to accommodate the limits of construction 
where possible. 

− Perform a field survey to identify and locate existing 
topographic elements within the roadway corridor 
consisting of the following: 

− Evidence of property boundary locations adjacent to the 
corridor. 

− Existing pavement, curbs, sidewalks, barrier free ramps, 
etc. 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 3 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

− Roadway and lane striping along 114th Street and 
intersecting streets. 

− Driveways (including material). 
− Parking lots within 20-ft of proposed ROW. 
− Alleys (including material). 
− Existing culvert sizes and invert elevations, including 

cross sections approaching culvert crossings and 
headwalls/wingwalls. 

− Existing driveways and swales. 
− Visible utilities consisting of: manholes, vaults, water 

valves, water meters, telephone poles, power poles, 
utility markers, water well features, other public utilities, 
and franchise utilities. 

− Traffic signal poles, cabinets, and other signal 
equipment, if present. 

− Signs (excluding temporary signs). 
− Trees (larger than 6” caliper) and tree clusters. 
− Buildings and permanent structures. 
− Retaining walls. 
− Fence/wall limits and material types (excluding 

temporary fences). 
− Other applicable physical features that could impact 

design. 
− Perform field survey to collect utility location marking as 

marked by the SUE subconsultant. 
2.3 Final topographic drawing 

2.3.1 Prepare a final topographic drawing in digital format (Autodesk Civil 3D) 
(including contours and break lines) showing the features located in the 
field as well as ROW strip map information, an ASCII coordinate file of the 
points located in the field, and a hard copy of the coordinates and feature 
descriptions. Include control monuments placed in the field in final 
topographic drawing with associated coordinate table. Provide Existing 
ROW Base Map. 

2.4 ROW Basemap 
2.4.1 The existing ROW base map will consist of the following: 

• Parcels and easements with current recording information. 
• Current property owner. 
• Existing platted easements and easements available in the public 

record including easements provided by utility companies. 
• Relate ROW to roadway center line if Section Line differs. 

 
3. Right-of-way Survey and Services 

3.1 Prepare ROW instruments (up to 5 parcels) for proposed right of way limit needs. 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 4 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

3.2 Individual parcel exhibits shall be on 8 ½”x11” paper, shall be sealed, dated, and 
signed by a Registered Professional Land Surveyor and shall consist of the 
following: 

• Parcel number. 
• Area required. 
• Area remaining. 
• Legal description. 
• Current owner. 
• Easements locatable in the public record. 
• All physical features. 
• Metes and bounds description of parcel to be acquired. The 

description shall be provided on a separate sheet from the exhibit. 
Each right of way and type of easement shall be described 
separately. 
 

4. Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) (by Subconsultant) 
4.1 The scope will consist of Quality Level (QL) B Subsurface Utility Engineering (SUE) 

Investigation, which is inclusive of (QL) D and C.  The Engineer will obtain 
information on existing utilities from utility owners and shall identify and evaluate 
known existing and proposed public and private utilities.  The Engineer will 
prepare a base map depicting the utility locations. 

4.2 Utility investigations, both subsurface and above ground, will be prepared in 
accordance with ASCE/C1 Standard 38-02 
[(http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/asce.cfm)] and according to the Utility 
Quality Levels as described below: 
Utility Quality Levels are defined in cumulative order (least to greatest) as follows: 
• Quality Level D - Existing Records: Utilities are plotted from review of 

available existing records, oral recollections, One-call markings, and data 
repositories.  Level D is included in this scope of work. 

• Quality Level C - Surface Visible Feature Survey: Quality level "D" 
information from existing records is correlated with surveyed surface-
visible features. Includes Quality Level D information.  Quality level value 
assigned to a utility segment or utility feature after surveying aboveground 
(i.e., visible) utility features and using professional judgement to correlate 
the surveyed locations of these features with those from existing utility 
records. Hugo Reed will perform Survey of the aboveground features and 
AtkinsRéalis will use this data to upgrade QLD to QLC. Level C is included 
in this scope of work.  

• Quality Level B - Designate: Quality level value assigned to a utility 
segment or subsurface utility feature whose existence and position is 
based upon appropriate surface geophysical methods combined with 
professional judgment and whose location is tied to the project survey 
datum. Horizontal accuracy of Designated Utilities is 18” (including 

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/asce.cfm


City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 5 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

survey tolerances) unless otherwise indicated for a specific segment of 
the deliverable. Quality Level B incorporates quality levels C and D 
information. A composite plot is created. 

• Quality Level A – Locate (Test Hole):(OMITTED). 
4.3 Deliverables: 

4.3.1 Signed and sealed SUE plans delivered in PDF. 
4.3.2 Copy of the record research obtained from the utility owners. 

 
5. Scope of Work for Geotechnical Sub-Consultant  

5.1 Project Overview: 
5.1.1 This scope of work outlines the responsibilities of the geotechnical sub-

consultant in support of the collector roadway design project (Avenue P-
State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street. The goal is to provide 
geotechnical data, analysis, and recommendations required for the design 
and construction of the proposed roadway, including soil testing, borehole 
drilling, soil classification, and pavement section recommendations. 

5.2 Site Exploration & Borehole Drilling 
5.2.1 Borehole Locations 

• The geotechnical sub-consultant is required to drill 7 boreholes at 
designated locations along the proposed roadway alignment as 
per the project plans. 

• Locations will be provided by the project manager, but the sub-
consultant should verify and make recommendations based on-
site conditions. 

5.3 Depth of Boreholes: 
5.3.1 Boreholes should be drilled to a minimum depth of 15 feet or until a 

competent bearing stratum is reached, whichever is greater. For certain 
areas where more detailed investigation is needed (e.g., soft soils, 
wetlands), deeper boreholes may be required. 

5.4 Soil Classification: 
5.4.1 Each borehole shall be sampled at regular intervals and classified 

according to ASTM D2488 (Standard Practice for Description and 
Identification of Soils).  

5.4.2 The classification should include the following information: 
• Soil type (e.g., clay, silt, sand, gravel) 
• Consistency or relative density (e.g., soft, stiff, loose, dense) 
• Moisture content and plasticity (e.g., liquid limit, plastic limit, 

plasticity index) where applicable 
• Stratigraphy (soil layers and their respective depths) 
• Visual observations (color, texture, and evidence of any organic 

materials) 
5.5 Field Testing: 

5.5.1 Standard Penetration Tests (SPT): 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 6 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

• Perform SPT tests in each borehole at regular intervals (typically 
every 5 feet) to obtain N-values (blow counts). 

5.6 In-situ Testing: 
5.6.1 Perform cone penetration testing (CPT) if deemed necessary by the project 

manager for more detailed information on subsurface conditions. 
5.7 Laboratory Testing 

5.7.1 Soil Properties: 
• Laboratory testing shall be conducted on selected soil samples 

from the boreholes to determine engineering properties. Tests 
should include, but are not limited to: 

• Grain size analysis (sieve analysis and hydrometer test) as per 
ASTM D422 

• Atterberg limits (liquid limit, plastic limit) as per ASTM D4318 
• Compaction characteristics (Modified Proctor test) as per ASTM 

D1557 
• Shear strength (direct shear test or triaxial test) as per ASTM 

D3080 or ASTM D4767 
• Consolidation test (if soft soils are encountered) as per ASTM 

D2435 
5.8 Other Tests: 

5.8.1 California Bearing Ratio (CBR) test for subgrade evaluation, per ASTM 
D1883, to determine soil bearing capacity. 

5.8.2 Resilient modulus (if required for flexible pavement design). 
5.9 Pavement Design Recommendations 

5.9.1 The geotechnical sub-consultant is required to provide recommendations 
for two pavement design sections: one rigid and one flexible. The 
recommendations should be based on the results from field exploration, 
laboratory testing, and analysis of subsurface conditions. 

5.10 Rigid Pavement Design: 
5.10.1 Provide flexural strength of concrete and base/subbase materials. 
5.10.2 Estimate modulus of subgrade reaction (k-value) for the rigid pavement 

design, based on soil stiffness or bearing capacity. 
5.10.3 Recommend the thickness of each pavement layer (concrete slab, base, 

subbase) according to recognized design methodologies (e.g., AASHTO, 
TxDOT or local standards). 

5.10.4 Identify any potential subgrade treatment if weak or compressible soils are 
encountered. 

5.11 Flexible Pavement Design: 
5.11.1 Recommend the thickness of asphalt layers (surface, base, and subbase) 

based on the resilient modulus of the subgrade and CBR values. 
5.11.2 Provide structural number (SN) or equivalent recommendations, 

considering traffic load and soil characteristics. 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 7 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

5.11.3 Suggest any required soil stabilization or treatment for subgrade 
improvement if weak soils are encountered. 

5.12 Reporting and Deliverables 
5.12.1 The geotechnical sub-consultant shall provide the following deliverables: 

5.13 Preliminary Report: 
5.13.1 Submit a preliminary report within 4 weeks of the borehole drilling 

completion. 
5.13.2 This report should include: 

• Summary of field and laboratory testing results. 
• Initial recommendations for pavement sections (rigid and flexible). 
• A description of the site conditions (soil types, groundwater levels, 

etc.). 
5.14 Final Geotechnical Report: 

5.14.1 Submit the final geotechnical report within 6 weeks of the completion of all 
testing and analysis. This should include: 
• Detailed borehole logs. 
• Comprehensive soil classification and analysis. 
• Pavement design recommendations (rigid and flexible). 
• All laboratory test results and interpretations. 
• A summary of site preparation recommendations (e.g., clearing, 

excavation, dewatering). 
• Recommendations for handling potential geotechnical challenges 

(e.g., expansive soils, groundwater management). 
 

6. Preliminary Design: 
6.1 Preliminary design overview 

6.1.1 Preliminary design will establish the general layout and conceptual 
elements of the roadway, including the geometric design, alignment, and 
key infrastructure elements. Key tasks under this phase will include: 
• Roadway Alignment and Geometry 
• Traffic and Safety Analysis 
• Utility Coordination 
• Preliminary Signalization 
• Environmental Review and Permitting 

6.2 Preliminary PS&E Package 
6.2.1 Roadway Alignment and Geometry: 

• Develop preliminary roadway alignments based on project 
requirements and existing conditions. 

• Perform analysis for lane widths, shoulder widths, medians, and 
design speed. 

• Analyze turning radii for intersections and driveways. 
6.3 Traffic and Safety Analysis: 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 8 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

6.3.1 City of Lubbock to provide traffic counts and turning movement 
information.  

6.3.2 Perform safety analysis including sight distance, horizontal and vertical 
curvature, and any potential hazardous conditions. 

6.3.3 Develop preliminary traffic control plans for construction phase. 
6.4 Utility Coordination: 

6.4.1 Identify existing utilities (water, sewer, gas, electric, etc.) that may be 
impacted by the new roadway design. 

6.4.2 Coordinate with utility agencies to assess any necessary relocations or 
adjustments. 

6.5 Preliminary Illumination and Signalization: 
6.5.1 Develop a preliminary lighting plan that considers safety and aesthetics. 
6.5.2 Identify key locations for traffic signalization, including intersections 

requiring signals and any special signal needs for pedestrian or cyclist 
safety. 

6.6 Preliminary PS&E Package: 
6.6.1 Prepare preliminary design plans, specifications, and cost estimates. 
6.6.2 Compile an initial project schedule and scope for review and approval by 

the city. 
6.6.3 Provide a summary of the anticipated project impacts, including potential 

right-of-way needs. 
 

7. Drainage Analysis and Design 
7.1 Data Acquisition/Research 

7.1.1 Compile the hydrological and hydraulic data.   
• Use data from as-built plans and FEMA maps to locate drainage 

outfall(s) and to determine existing storm sewer and culvert sizes, 
design flows, and water surface elevations for use in the design of 
roadway geometry. 

• Previous studies and hydraulic models including FEMA data, 
master drainage plans, and relevant adjacent development 
drainage analysis 

• Existing drainage facilities record drawings 
7.1.2 Aerial imagery and LiDAR elevation data 
7.1.3 Develop Digital Elevation Model (DEM) from City of Lubbock (COL) dataset 

using most up-to-date 
7.2 Develop the project drainage area map 

7.2.1 Review drainage delineations from previous latest COL MDP study and 
design files from Avenue P roadway design from 146th Street to Woodrow 
Road. 

7.2.2 Determine playa level watershed limits for watersheds intersected by 
project corridor. 

7.2.3 Sub-divide portions of playa level watersheds contributing to project limits 
into sub-areas. Delineate local drainage areas to points of contribution to 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 9 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

roadway appropriate for hydraulic analysis for existing and future fully 
developed conditions. 

7.2.4 Identify upstream playa overflows potentially contributing to project based 
on prior studies and determine playa watershed limits. 

7.3 Existing Conditions Drainage Analysis 
7.3.1 Develop existing conditions hydrologic data 

• Land use and Curve Number 
• Time of concentration based on existing flow paths 

7.3.2 Develop existing conditions 1D/2D StormWise (Formerly ICPR 4) model. 
• Evaluate upstream playa overflow contributions to project limits 
• 2D as necessary to evaluate existing hydraulic conditions to 

determine flow patterns and splits for crossing flows and existing 
inundation risks 

• Analyze 50%-, 10%, 4%, 2%, and 1% Annual Exceedance 
Probability 24-hour storm events 

• Determine principal discharge locations, depths, and rates along 
the project corridor 

7.4 Future Fully Developed (FFD) Conditions Drainage Analysis 
7.4.1 Develop FFD hydrologic data 

• Land use and Curve Number 
• Time of concentration based on assumed FFD flow paths 

7.4.2 Execute existing conditions StormWise model with FFD conditions 
hydrology. 

7.4.3 Evaluate adequacy of existing drainage improvements 
7.4.4 Select design storm event for drainage improvements. 
7.4.5 Identify locations and type of proposed drainage improvements. 

• Evaluate the need for parallel drainage improvements, storm 
sewer and/or drainage structures. 

• Evaluate need for off-corridor drainage easements and 
improvements. 

• Determine Playa Lake 192 peak water surface elevation for 
roadway profile 

7.4.6 Develop 1D/2D StormWise model as necessary for future fully develop 
hydrologic conditions and proposed roadway and drainage improvements. 
• Model will include proposed roadway profile and drainage 

improvements. 
• Iterate modeling throughout the design process until profile and 

drainage improvements are finalized. (Max 4 iterations) 
• 2D as necessary to evaluate FFD hydraulic conditions to evaluate 

proposed roadway improvements impacts 
• Analyze 50%-, 10%, 4%, 2%, and 1% Annual Exceedance 

Probability 24-hour storm events 
• Size drainage improvements based on selected design storm 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 10 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

7.5 Coordinate Proposed Roadway Profile to accommodate drainage requirements 
and design criteria. 

• Incorporate final roadway profile and proposed drainage 
improvements for existing and future fully developed hydrologic 
conditions. 

• Design of drainage improvements including ditch sections, culvert 
and drainage structure sizing and layout 

7.6 Analyze drainage improvements required to accommodate the new roadway 
7.7 Evaluate the adequacy of the ROW needed to accommodate the proposed 

roadway and drainage system 
7.7.1 Identify the need for and size of any necessary drainage easements to 

accommodate the proposed offsite drainage improvements. 
7.8 Deliverables 

7.8.1 30% Schematic Roll Plot and OPCC 
7.8.2 60% Plan Set, Outline Specifications, and OPCC 

 

8. Final Design: 
8.1 Final Design Overview 

8.1.1 The final design phase will refine and develop the preliminary design into a 
complete and detailed PS&E package. The deliverables from this phase will 
be ready for the bidding and construction of the roadway. 

8.2 Roadway Final Design: 
8.2.1 Refine the horizontal and vertical geometry of the roadway, ensuring all 

elements are in compliance with local design standards and 
specifications. 

8.2.2 Finalize lane configurations, including dedicated turn lanes, medians, 
shoulders, and pavement markings. 

8.2.3 Design crosswalks, sidewalks, and bike lanes (if applicable), considering 
accessibility requirements and safety features. 

8.3 Drainage Design: 
8.3.1 Develop a detailed stormwater management plan, including storm 

drainage systems (inlets, pipes, culverts, etc.), detention ponds, and 
stormwater quality measures. 

8.3.2 Finalize hydrological analysis and calculations to ensure compliance with 
environmental standards and floodplain management regulations. 

8.3.3 Delivery of completed drainage analysis report detailing corridor drainage 
improvements functionality. 

8.4 Final Traffic Signalization and Illumination: 
8.4.1 Based upon the results of the Traffic counts provided by City of Lubbock 

Traffic Engineering, the Engineer shall identify and prepare Traffic Signal 
Plans for all warranted traffic signals.  The Engineer shall confirm the power 
source for all signals and coordinate with the appropriate utility agency. 
Traffic Signal Plans must be signed and sealed by a Texas Registered 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 11 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

Professional Engineer. The Engineer shall develop all quantities, general 
notes, specifications and incorporate the appropriate agency standards 
required to complete construction. Traffic signal poles, fixtures, signs, and 
lighting must be designed per the Green Ribbon Report recommendations 
and standards. The Engineer shall prepare Traffic Signal Plans for the 
following intersections: 
• Avenue P and 146th Street 

8.4.2 The Engineer shall provide the following information in the Traffic Signal 
Plans: 
• Layout 
• Estimate and quantity sheet  

− List of all bid items 
− Bid item quantities 
− Specification item number 
− Paid item description and unit of measure 

• Basis of estimate sheet (list of materials) 
• General notes and specification data. 
• Plan sheet(s) 

− Existing traffic control that will remain (signs and 
markings) 

− Existing utilities 
− Proposed highway improvements 
− Proposed installation 
− Proposed additional traffic controls 
− Proposed illumination attached to signal poles. 
− Proposed power pole source 

• Notes for plan layout 
• Phase sequence diagram(s) 

− Signal locations 
− Signal indications 
− Phase diagram 

• Construction detail sheets(s) 
− Poles (standard sheets) 
− Detectors 
− Pull Box and conduit layout 
− Controller Foundation standard sheet 
− Electrical chart 

• Marking details (when applicable) 
• Aerial or underground interconnect details (when applicable) 

8.4.3 General Requirements 
• Contact local utility company 

−  Confirm power source 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 12 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

•    Prepare governing specifications and special provisions list 
• Prepare project estimate 
• Conduct traffic counts and prepare Traffic Signal Warrant Studies 

for all proposed and existing traffic signals at designated 
locations. 

8.4.4 Summary of Quantities 
8.5 Traffic Control Plans for Construction: 

8.5.1 Develop detailed construction phase traffic control plans to ensure safe 
and efficient traffic flow during the construction period. 

8.5.2 Coordinate with local authorities for any road closures, detours, and 
signage necessary for the duration of the project. 

8.6 Franchise Utility Coordination: 
8.6.1 Coordinate with utility agencies on relocations, adjustments, and 

connections  
8.6.2 COL staff will engage providers where conflicts arise or recorded 

easements exist requiring relocation compensation. 
8.7 Deliverables 

8.7.1 95% Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E) 
8.7.2 Final (100% Complete) PS&E Package: 
8.7.3 Prepare final construction plans with complete specifications for all 

materials, pavement structures, drainage features, and other project 
components. 

8.7.4 Prepare a comprehensive cost estimate, including all construction costs 
and contingencies. 

8.7.5 Provide final bid documents and technical specifications for contractors. 
 

9. Bid Phase Support: 
9.1 Support City during the bid phase to address and respond to questions from 

prospective bidders.   
9.2 Prepare and submit addenda changes that are necessitated by questions during 

the bid phase. 
9.3 Incorporate addenda changes into the Final Plan Set. 
9.4 Assist the City in evaluating the bids and prepare a recommendation letter. 
 

10. Additional Services and Exclusions 
Services not specifically identified in this Scope of Services shall be considered out of 
scope and be performed upon authorization by the City of Lubbock. Services shall 
include but are not limited to the following: 

• Construction Contract Administration 
• Construction Staking Services 
• Construction Phase Engineer of Record support services 

o Including the collection of as built information 
o Preparation of as built records 



City of Lubbock – Avenue P Reconstruction from State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street Page 13 of 13 
Engineering Scope of Services  April 24, 2025 

• Construction Phase Resident Project Representative (RPR) services 
• Municipal water and sewer relocation or design services 
• Preparation and attendance of Public Meetings beyond those identified 
• Redesign to reflect project scope changes requested by the City of Lubbock  

o Including change in project outline 
o Due to changing regulatory laws 
o Alternatives or substitutions proposed by the selected contractor 

 
 



 

 

Exhibit B 
Proposed Fees for Professional Services  

for 
Avenue P – State Loop 88 (130th Street) to 146th Street 

City of Lubbock, Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Task Description Hugo 
Reed 

AtkinsRealis Atlas  

1 Project Management and 
Quality Assurance 

$20,688    

2 Design Survey, Geotechnical 
Exploration and Roadway 
Design Control  

$59,808  $14,530  

3 Existing Right-of-Way Base 
mapping 

$56,312    

4 Franchise Utility Coordination 
& SUE Services 

$57,336 $63,956   

5 Right-of-Way Acquisition 
Services 

$9,420    

6 Drainage Analysis, Design, 
PS&E 

$89,592    

7 Preliminary Design $140,736 $26,132   

8 Final Design $343,920 $55,095   

9 Bid Phase Support $15,600    

Totals $793,412 $145,183 $14,530  

Project Total     $953,125 



144TH ST

143RD ST

146TH ST

138TH STW
A

C
O

 A
V

133RD ST

144TH ST

U
V

A
LD

E
 A

V

137TH ST
136TH ST

135TH ST

145TH ST

130TH ST

V
E

R
N

O
N

AV

PA
R

IS
 A

V

137TH ST

139TH ST

140TH ST

SH
E

R
M

A
N

 A
V

140TH ST

U
V

A
LD

E
 A

V

136TH ST

U
V

A
LD

E
A

V

134TH ST

141ST ST

142ND ST

139TH ST

134TH ST

143RD ST

142ND ST

132ND ST

141ST ST

143RD ST

139TH ST

132ND ST

135TH ST

F M 1585-C R 7400

132ND

A
V

E
 SP
 R

2
2

3
0

A
V

E J

C
 R

2
3

0
0 AVE

L

136TH

138TH

140TH

142ND

134TH
H

W
Y

8
7

Bond Project
Avenue P from 130th Street to 146th Street

Contract 18843

Digital Orthophotography - March 2024

146TH ST

IN
D

IA
N

A
 A

V
E

A
V

E 
P

130TH ST

0 250 500 750 1,000
US Feet

Bond Project

Lot Block Lines

Lubbock City Limits

U
N

IV
ER

SI
TY

 A
V

E

C
R 

25
00

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code, this
product is for informational purposes and may not have been prepared for or be
suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-
ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property
boundaries.

±Q
U

A
K

ER
 A

V
E

114TH ST

WOODROW RD

H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 8
7



City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
May 13, 2025

Capital Project Number: 92898
Capital Project Name: Avenue P, 130th Street to 146th Street - 24B

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Agenda Items, Month Day, Year
Contract 18843 with Hugo Reed and Associates for Design Services 953,125

Encumbered/Expended To Date                                   953,12

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Avenue P, 130th Street to 146th Street - 24B                                1,446,87

Remaining Appropriation                                1,446,87

Total Appropriation  $                            2,400,00





 AI# 13361 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18631, with Riley Industrial Services, and Contract 18764, with Johnson
Pumping, Inc., to provide industrial cleaning and pumping services at City of Lubbock Water
Utilities facilities.

Item Summary
On occasion spills are encountered during equipment failures in the water and wastewater
system. This creates a need for immediate response to cleaning and pumping services to
mitigate risks associated with these spills. These risks have the potential to create hazards for
employees and jeopardize treatment processes, which could result in non-compliance with
regulations required by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

As a proactive approach to preventing hazards associated with spills, it is important for the
City to have contracts for cleaning and pumping services to remove the spills and restore
treatment processes, avoiding interruption of services for the citizens of Lubbock and
protecting employees.

City staff issued an invitation to Bid (ITB) for hourly pricing for these services.

In response to ITB 25-18631-YB, bids were received from the following contractors.
  

Contractor Hourly Amount
Riley Industrial Services, Inc., Farmington, New Mexico $4,155.17
Johnson Pumping, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $7,300.40

Due to the critical nature of these services, it is recommended that a primary and secondary
contract be awarded for these services.

Staff recommends award of Primary Contract 18631, to the lowest bidder, Riley Industrial
Services, of Farmington, New Mexico, for a contact not to exceed $50,000 annually.

Staff recommends award of Secondary Contract 18764, to the second-lowest bidder, Johnson
Pumping, Inc., of Lubbock, Texas, for a contract not to exceed $50,000 annually.



The contracts, which are being awarded based on an hourly rate, will be for a term of one year,
with an option to renew for 4, additional one-year terms. A Bid Tab Sheet is attached.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18361 and Contract 18764 are funded up to $50,000 each, in various Water Utilities
Operating Departmental Budgets for these services, as needed. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - Riley Industrial Services, Inc. 
Contract - Riley Industrial Services, Inc 
Resolution - Johnson Pumping 
Contract - Johnson Pumping 
Tabulation Sheet 
Project Summary 





Contract 18631 

City of Lubbock 

 Contract for  

Specialty Cleaning and 
Pumping Services 

 

 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of  , 2025, by and between the 

City of Lubbock ("City"), and Riley Industrial Services, Inc.  ("Contractor"). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Specialty Cleaning and 
Pumping Services and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 

financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 
 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached 
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Specialty Cleaning and 
Pumping Services, and more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through 4-3 on the bid 
submitted by the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto. 

 

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done 

the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the 

attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein. 

 
3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one (1) year 

extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 
automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 
terminate the Contract. 

 

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 

pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 

determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 

contract. 
 

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 

including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance 

is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or 

contract may be terminated for non-compliance. 
 

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 

may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 

etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 

such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 

further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 

at the end of the current contract period. 

 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 

Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 

ongoing adjustment. If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 

revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

 

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 

(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 

notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 

and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 
 

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 

City with regard to performance of the Services. Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 

itself out as, an agent or representative of City. In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 

enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 
 

9. Insurance Requirements 
 

SECTION A. Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C. Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 

 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate. 

  

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed. 

 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 

independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation 

coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 



* The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional 

insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional 

liabilities and workers' comp. 

 

 * Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

 

 * To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

 

 * Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. 

 

 * Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

 

 * Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 
IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 

insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 

and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 

the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
City of Lubbock 
1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

SECTION D. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 



as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 

interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 
 

11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 

exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 

cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 

between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 
 

12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 

the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 

under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments 

by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 

days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts 

owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 
 

13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 

appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 

Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 

will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 

then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 

or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds 

are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 

Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 

City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 
 

14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent be 

given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 

Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
 

15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 

material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 

disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 

the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 

The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 

prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
 

16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 

organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 

Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 

to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 



terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 

Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 

contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 

contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental 

body; and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental 

body all contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the 

entity; or (B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 
 

18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 

contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 

public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 

with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 

company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 

contract. 

 

19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 

duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 

of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 

contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 

Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 

during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 

debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 

20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 

prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Lubbock and its elected officials, 

officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 

any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 

person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 

the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 

agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 

under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 

obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 
 

22. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 25- 

18631-YB Specifications, and the Bid Form. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 





City of Lubbock, TX 

ITB 25-18631-YB 

Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services 

Specifications 

 

Intent 
 

The City of Lubbock Water Utilities is requesting proposals from qualified contractors to perform 

industrial cleaning, pumping, vacuuming, sandblasting, and hydro blasting services to remove waste 

sludge from tank vessels, buildings, vaults, pits, piping, and similar structures including water and 

wastewater facilities. The contractor shall be capable of providing these services within 24 hours, as 

may be required to minimize downtime of the equipment and process controls. The contractor shall 

have verifiable experience successfully performing these services with the City of Lubbock. 

 

Multiple Award  
 

The City may award up to three vendors (primary, secondary, tertiary), as available, according to 

services needed and contractor equipment capability. The City will endeavor to utilize vendors in 

order of award. However, the City may utilize other vendors if 1) a contract vendor is unable to 

comply with any contract or delivery requirement; 2) it is in the best interest of the City to do so 

regardless of reason.  

 

Estimates 
 

The City reserves the right to secure pricing prior to commencement of work and solicit competitive 

bidding, if in the opinion of the City, pricing received is determined to be unreasonable compared to 

industry standards. 

 

Repairs and New Installations Firm Quotes 

 
The City will request price quotes for new installation and repair projects. These quotes shall 

be firm pricing and are not to exceed the specified amount quoted for any specific project unless the 

scope of the project changes and the change order(s) are approved in writing by the respective City 

department. Prior to the City issuing a notice to proceed, Contractor shall provide the City with a 

written proposal detailing the scope of services and providing the cost for the proposed work. These 

quotes must utilize the contracted labor rates and contracted materials cost plus markup in 

order to utilize this contract. 

 

Scope of Work  

 
 The scope of work includes, but is not limited to the following: 

 
 Vault cleaning up to 20 ft. 

 Floor and wall cleaning in buildings or structures where sludge is spilled. 

 Media skimming from top of clarifier tank structures 

 Unclog drain lines 

 Cleaning scum boxes and pits 

 Stormwater vaults 



 Clarifier cleaning 

 Grit Chambers 

 Jetting large lines up to 42” 

 Tank structures to 60’ deep 

 Ability to pump or vacuum large rags and debris 

 Tank structure washing and jetting service 

SAFETY 

 
Contractors shall adhere to established industry safety standards. If multiple contractors are on City 

property simultaneously, the more stringent safety standards shall apply. Contractors will be required 

to provide their employees with all necessary personal protective equipment such as hard hats, safety 

boots, safety vests, gloves, eye protection, ear protection, etc. The City will provide contractors with 

applicable material safety data sheets (MDS) that may be required. The contractor and their onsite 

personnel shall be responsible for familiarizing themselves with the applicable MDS information that 

may be required for chemicals used at City facilities. 

 

 





City of Lubbock

ITB 25-18631-YB

Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services

Bid Form

Location

Total Cost

Hourly 

Rate

Cost per Truck

Rental/Materials

&

Supplies/Additional

Fees

Total 

Cost

1

#1-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew           250.00 0         250.00 

#1-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew           300.00 0         300.00 

#1-3 Support Truck             15.00 0           15.00 

#1-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment           260.00 0         260.00 

#1-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment           230.00                             145.00         375.00 

2

#2-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew           280.00 0         280.00 

#2-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew           345.00 0         345.00 

#2-3 Support Truck             15.00 0           15.00 

#2-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment           290.00 0         290.00 

#2-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment           260.00                             145.00         405.00 

3

#3-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew           310.00 0         310.00 

#3-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew           390.00 0         390.00 

#3-3 Support Truck             15.00 0           15.00 

#3-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment           320.00 0         320.00 

#3-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment           290.00                             145.00         435.00 

4

#4-1 Percentage Mark-up for Materials and Supplies 15%

#4-3 Vehicle Cleaning Fees           150.00 0         150.00 

Riley Industrial Services, Inc.

Farmington, NM

$4,155.00









Contract 18764 

City of Lubbock 
 Contract for  

Specialty Cleaning and 

Pumping Services 
 

 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of  , 2025, by and between the 

City of Lubbock ("City"), and Johnson Pumping, Inc.  ("Contractor"). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Specialty Cleaning and Pumping 
Services and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 

financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 
 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached 
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Specialty Cleaning and 
Pumping Services, and more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through 4-3 on the bid 
submitted by the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto. 

 

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done 

the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the 

attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein. 

 
3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one (1) year 

extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 
automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 
terminate the Contract. 

 

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 

pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 

determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 

contract. 
 

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 

including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance 

is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or 

contract may be terminated for non-compliance. 
 

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 

may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 

etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 

such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 

further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 

at the end of the current contract period. 

 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 

Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 

ongoing adjustment. If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 

revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

 

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 

(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 

notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 

and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 
 

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 

City with regard to performance of the Services. Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 

itself out as, an agent or representative of City. In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 

enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 
 

9. Insurance Requirements 
 

SECTION A. Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C. Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 

 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate. 

  

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed. 

 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an independent 

contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation coverage, they 

must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's license. Employer 

Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 



* The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional 

insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional 

liabilities and workers' comp. 

 

 * Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

 

 * To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

 

 * Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. 

 

 * Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

 

 * Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 
IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 

insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 

and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 

the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
City of Lubbock 
1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

SECTION D. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 



as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 

interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 
 

11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 

exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 

cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 

between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 
 

12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 

the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 

under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by 

the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 days 

of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing 

the City from any payments due Contractor. 
 

13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 

appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 

Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 

will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 

then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 

or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds 

are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 

Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 

City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 
 

14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent be 

given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 

Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
 

15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 

material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 

disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 

the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 

The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 

prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
 

16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 

organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 

Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 

to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 



terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 

Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 

contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 

contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; 

and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all 

contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or 

(B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records 

retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 
 

18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 

contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 

public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 

with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 

company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 

contract. 

 

19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 

duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 

of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 

contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 

Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 

during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 

debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 

20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 

prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Lubbock and its elected officials, 

officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 

any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 

person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 

the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 

agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 

under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 

obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 
 

22. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 25- 

18764-YB Specifications, and the Bid Form. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 





City of Lubbock, TX 

ITB 25-18631-YB 

Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services 

Specifications 

 

Intent 
 

The City of Lubbock Water Utilities is requesting proposals from qualified contractors to perform 

industrial cleaning, pumping, vacuuming, sandblasting, and hydro blasting services to remove waste 

sludge from tank vessels, buildings, vaults, pits, piping, and similar structures including water and 

wastewater facilities. The contractor shall be capable of providing these services within 24 hours, as 

may be required to minimize downtime of the equipment and process controls. The contractor shall 

have verifiable experience successfully performing these services with the City of Lubbock. 

 

Multiple Award  
 

The City may award up to three vendors (primary, secondary, tertiary), as available, according to 

services needed and contractor equipment capability. The City will endeavor to utilize vendors in 

order of award. However, the City may utilize other vendors if 1) a contract vendor is unable to 

comply with any contract or delivery requirement; 2) it is in the best interest of the City to do so 

regardless of reason.  

 

Estimates 
 

The City reserves the right to secure pricing prior to commencement of work and solicit competitive 

bidding, if in the opinion of the City, pricing received is determined to be unreasonable compared to 

industry standards. 

 

Repairs and New Installations Firm Quotes 

 
The City will request price quotes for new installation and repair projects. These quotes shall 

be firm pricing and are not to exceed the specified amount quoted for any specific project unless the 

scope of the project changes and the change order(s) are approved in writing by the respective City 

department. Prior to the City issuing a notice to proceed, Contractor shall provide the City with a 

written proposal detailing the scope of services and providing the cost for the proposed work. These 

quotes must utilize the contracted labor rates and contracted materials cost plus markup in 

order to utilize this contract. 

 

Scope of Work  

 
 The scope of work includes, but is not limited to the following: 

 
 Vault cleaning up to 20 ft. 

 Floor and wall cleaning in buildings or structures where sludge is spilled. 

 Media skimming from top of clarifier tank structures 

 Unclog drain lines 

 Cleaning scum boxes and pits 

 Stormwater vaults 



 Clarifier cleaning 

 Grit Chambers 

 Jetting large lines up to 42” 

 Tank structures to 60’ deep 

 Ability to pump or vacuum large rags and debris 

 Tank structure washing and jetting service 

SAFETY 

 
Contractors shall adhere to established industry safety standards. If multiple contractors are on City 

property simultaneously, the more stringent safety standards shall apply. Contractors will be required 

to provide their employees with all necessary personal protective equipment such as hard hats, safety 

boots, safety vests, gloves, eye protection, ear protection, etc. The City will provide contractors with 

applicable material safety data sheets (MDS) that may be required. The contractor and their onsite 

personnel shall be responsible for familiarizing themselves with the applicable MDS information that 

may be required for chemicals used at City facilities. 

 

 





City of Lubbock
ITB 25-18631-YB

Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services

Bid/No 
Bid 

Decision
# Description

Hours
QTY
(+/-)

Hourly 
Rate

Cost per Truck
Rental/Materials &
Supplies/Additional

Fees

1
Bid #1-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew 1 300.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #1-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew 1 400.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #1-3 Support Truck 1 250.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #1-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid
No Bid #1-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid

2
Bid #2-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew 1 500.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #2-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew 1 600.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #2-3 Support Truck 1 250.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #2-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid
No Bid #2-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid

3
Bid #3-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew 1 500.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #3-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew 1 600.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #3-3 Support Truck 1 250.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #3-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid
No Bid #3-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid

4

Bid
#4-1 Percentage Mark-up for Materials 

and Supplies 40.0%
Bid #4-2 Environmental Fees 2.00
No Bid #4-3 Vehicle Cleaning Fees No Bid 

Johnson Pumping, Inc.
Lubbock, TX







City of Lubbock
ITB 25-18631-YB

Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services

Bid/No 
Bid 

Decision
# Description

Hours
QTY
(+/-)

Hourly 
Rate

Cost per Truck
Rental/Materials &
Supplies/Additional

Fees

Hours
QTY
(+/-)

Hourly 
Rate

Cost per Truck
Rental/Materials &
Supplies/Additional

Fees

1
Bid #1-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew 1 300.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 250.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #1-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew 1 400.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 300.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #1-3 Support Truck 1 250.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 15.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #1-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid 1 260.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #1-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid 1 230.00 145.00

2
Bid #2-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew 1 500.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 280.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #2-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew 1 600.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 345.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #2-3 Support Truck 1 250.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 15.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #2-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid 1 290.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #2-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid 1 260.00 145.00

3
Bid #3-1 Vacuum Truck 2 - Man crew 1    500.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 310.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #3-2 Vacuum Truck 3 - Man Crew 1    600.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 390.00 Included in Hourly Rate
Bid #3-3 Support Truck 1    250.00 Included in Hourly Rate 1 15.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #3-4 Hydroblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid 1 320.00 Included in Hourly Rate
No Bid #3-5 Sandblasting Crew and Equipment No Bid 1 290.00 145.00

4

Bid #4-1
Percentage Mark-up for Materials and 
Supplies 40% 15%

Bid #4-2 Environmental Fees 2.00 2.00 
No Bid #4-3 Vehicle Cleaning Fees No Bid 150.00

Johnson Pumping, Inc. Riley Industrial Services, Inc.
Lubbock, TX Farmington, NM



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 25-18631-YB  

Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on February 2 & February 9, 2025. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 31 to February 19, 2025. 

27 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

2 vendors were notified separately.  

2 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 13362 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 16. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Water Utilities: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 18635, with Pro Serv Industrial Contractors, LLC., to provide welding and
fabrication services at City of Lubbock Water Utilities facilities.

Item Summary
When the City of Lubbock Water Utilities Department experiences equipment failures
in systems, immediate welding services are occasionally needed to restore treatment processes.
Failure to promptly restore operations to treatment process equipment could result in
non-compliance with regulations required by the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality.

As a proactive approach to minimizing equipment downtime, it is important that the City have
a contract established for specialized welding and fabrication. Prompt repairs to this
equipment minimize the interruption of services for the citizens of Lubbock.

City staff issued an invitation to Bid (ITB) for hourly pricing for these services.

In response to ITB 25-18635-YB, bids were received from the following contractors.
  

Contractor Hourly Amount
PSIC - Pro Serv Industrial Contractors, LLC., Houston, Texas $13,000
B&N Machine & Welding, LLC., Lubbock, Texas $30,000
Johnson General Contractors Group, LLC., Lubbock, Texas $36,000

Staff recommends award of Contract 18635, to the lowest bidder, Pro Serv Industrial
Contractors, LLC., of Houston, Texas, for a contract not to exceed $50,000 annually.

The contract being awarded is based on an hourly rate and will be for a term of one year, with
an option to renew for 4, additional one-year terms.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18635 is funded up to $50,000 in various Water Utilities Operating Departmental
Budgets for these services, as needed.



Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution - Pro Serv 
Contract - Pro Serv Industrial 
Tabulation Sheet 
Project Summary 





Contract 18635 

City of Lubbock    
Contract for  

Welding and Fabrication Services 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this     day of  , 2025, by and between 

the City of Lubbock ("City"), and PSIC - Pro Serv Industrial Contractors, LLC , ("Contractor"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Welding and Fabrication 
Services and bids were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Welding and Fabrication Services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 

financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Welding and Fabrication
Services, and more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through 1-4 on the bid submitted by
the Contractor or in the specifications attached hereto.

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done

the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the

attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein.

3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one (1) year
extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew
automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to
terminate the Contract.

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by

pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be

determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting

contract.

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract

including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance

is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or

contract may be terminated for non-compliance.

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate

may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI)

or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate.



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 

etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 

such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 

further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 

at the end of the current contract period. 

 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 

Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 

ongoing adjustment. If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 

revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

 

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 

(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 

notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 

and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 
 

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 

City with regard to performance of the Services. Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 

itself out as, an agent or representative of City. In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 

enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 
 

9. Insurance Requirements 
 

SECTION A. Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C. Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 

 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate.  

 

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed. 

 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 

independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation 

coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's 

license. Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 



 
 

 * The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional 

insured status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional 

liabilities and workers' comp. 

 

 * Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

 

 * To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

 

 * Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. 

 

 * Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

 

 * Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 
IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 

insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 

and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 

the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
City of Lubbock 
1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

SECTION D. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 



as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 

interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 
 

11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 

exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 

cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 

between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 
 

12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 

the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 

under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by 

the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 days 

of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing 

the City from any payments due Contractor. 
 

13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 

appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 

Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 

will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 

then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 

or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds 

are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 

Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 

City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 
 

14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent be 

given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 

Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
 

15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 

material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 

disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 

the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 

The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 

prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
 

16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 

organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 

Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 

to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 



terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 

Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 

contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 

contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; 

and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all 

contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or 

(B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records 

retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 
 

18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 

contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 

public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 

with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 

company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 

contract. 

 

19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 

duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 

of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 

contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 

Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 

during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 

debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 

20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 

prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials, 

officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 

any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 

person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 

the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 

agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 

under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 

obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 
 

22. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 25- 

18635-YB, Specifications, and the Bid Form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK----- 





City of Lubbock, TX 

ITB 25-18635-YB 

Welding and Fabrication Services 

Specifications 

 

Intend 

 

The City of Lubbock is requesting bids from qualified contractors to perform welding, milling, 

machining, and fabrication services to restore or establish process controls in various City facilities. 

The contractor shall be capable of providing these services within 24 hours, as may be required. 

This is required to ensure minimal downtime due to the critical nature of the equipment and process 

control requirements. Contractor shall provide their own tools, equipment, vehicles, supplies, and 

staffing to perform the work. The contractor shall have verifiable experience successfully performing 

these services with the City of Lubbock. 

 

Multiple Award  

 

The City may award up to three vendors (primary, secondary, tertiary), as available, according to 

services needed and contractor equipment capability. The City will endeavor to utilize vendors in 

order of award. However, the City may utilize other vendors if 1) a contract vendor is unable to 

comply with any contract or delivery requirement; 2) it is in the best interest of the City to do so 

regardless of reason.  

 
Estimates 
 

The City reserves the right to secure pricing prior to commencement of work and solicit competitive 

bidding, if in the opinion of the City, pricing received is determined to be unreasonable compared to 

industry standards. 

 

Repairs and New Installations Firm Quotes 

 

The City will request price quotes for new installation and repair projects. These quotes shall be firm 

pricing and are not to exceed the specified amount quoted for any specific project unless the scope of 

the project changes and the change order(s) are approved in writing by the respective City department. 

Prior to the City issuing a notice to proceed, Contractor shall provide the City with a written proposal 

detailing the scope of services and providing the cost for the proposed work. These quotes must 

utilize the contracted labor rates and contracted materials cost plus markup in order to utilize 

this contract. 

  

Scope of Work  

 

Welding and fabrication may include work on tank structures and ancillary equipment, augers, piping, 

process equipment, rotating devices, equipment supports, and other equipment, as necessary. Scope 

of work includes, but is not limited to the following: 

 

 Onsite and/or shop fabrication and welding work 

 Stainless steel welding 

 Aluminum Welding 

 Brass Brazing 

 Dressing and fabricating bearings 



 Dress and fabricate head shafts 

 Steel or neoprene milling 

 Shop machine work 

 Pressing of bearings and shafts 

 

Safety 

 

Contractors shall adhere to established industry safety standards. If multiple contractors are on City 

property simultaneously, the more stringent safety standards shall apply. Contractors will be required 

to provide their employees with all necessary personal protective equipment such as hard hats, safety 

boots, safety vests, gloves, eye protection, ear protection, etc. The City will be required to provide 

contractors with applicable material safety data sheets (MDS) that may be required for chemicals 

used at City facilities. The contractor and their onsite personnel shall be responsible for familiarizing 

themselves with the applicable MDS information. 
 

 

 





City of Lubbock

ITB 25-18635-YB

Welding and Fabrication Services

Bid Form

Locations

Total Cost

# Items

Quantity 

Required

(+/-) UOM

Unit 

Price

Total 

Cost

#0-1 Labor - Regular (8-5) - Per Specifications.               200.00 HR                     65.00                                13,000.00 

#0-2 Labor - After Hours/Holiday - Per Specifications.                 50.00 HR                   130.00                                  6,500.00 

#0-3 Labor - Emergency - Per Specifications.                 50.00 HR                   130.00                                  6,500.00 

#0-4

Material/Parts - Percentage of markup on estimated 

$15,000 parts/material based on actual cost to 

contractor. 15% Percentage

$26,000.00

PSIC - Pro Serv Industrial Contractors, LLC

Houston, TX







City of Lubbock

ITB 25-18635-YB

Welding and Fabrication Services

B&N Machine & 

Welding, LLC

Johnson General 

Contractors Group, 

LLC

PSIC - Pro Serv 

Industrial 

Contractors, LLC

Lubbock, TX Lubbock, TX Houston, TX

Description

Hourly 

Rate

Hourly 

Rate

Hourly 

Rate

#0-1 Labor - Regular (8-5) - Per Specifications.                               150.00                              180.00                             65.00 

#0-2 Labor - After Hours/Holiday - Per 

Specifications.                               300.00                              270.00                           130.00 

#0-3 Labor - Emergency - Per Specifications.                               185.00                              325.00                           130.00 

#0-4
Material/Parts - Percentage of markup on 

estimated $15,000 parts/material based on 

actual cost to contractor. 15% 20% 15%



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 25-18635-YB  

Welding and Fabrication Services 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on February 2 & February 9, 2025. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 31 to February 19, 2025. 

24 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

1 vendor were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted bids. 

 



 AI# 13406 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 17. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works Street Maintenance: Consider a resolution authorizing the
Mayor to execute Contract 18639, with Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., to establish annual
contract pricing for concrete materials.

Item Summary
City staff issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) to establish the pricing for certain concrete
products used in the construction, maintenance and repair of public streets, alleys and utility
installations.

In response to ITB 25-18639-TF, a sole bid was received and opened on March 6, 2025, from
the following vendor:
  

Company Amount
Martin Marietta Materials, Inc., Lubbock, Texas $623,420

Staff has reviewed the proposed bid and recommends award of Contract 18639 to Martin
Marietta Materials, Inc., of Lubbock, Texas, for $623,420.

The contract is awarded by the unit price.  The total amount of the award is estimated based on
expected quantities, and actual expenditures may be more or less, depending on actual
quantities.  The price per unit will not change, and the Bid Tab Sheet is attached.

The term of this contract is one year, with the option of 4, one-year extensions.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18639, for $623,420, to establish pricing for needed concrete materials, is funded in
the Street Maintenance, Water, and Wastewater Operating Funds, and individual cost centers
will be charged as the products are used.

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
L. Wood Franklin, P.E., Division Director of Public Works



Attachments
Resolution - Contract 18639 
Contract - Contract 18639 
Bid Tab Sheet - Contract 18639 
Project Summary - Contract 18639 































ITB 25‐18639‐TF Concrete Materials Martin Marietta

Bid Form
Total Cost $623,420.00

# Items Bid Amount

Unit

of

Measure  Qty(+/‐)  UnitCost  TotalCost

#1‐1

Class A Concrete (refer to City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum 

Design Standards and Specifications, section 8.07)

33,400.00 CY 200 167.00 33400.00

#1‐2

Class A Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement (refer to City of Lubbock 

Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications, section 

8.07)

86,000.00 CY 500 172.00 86000.00

#1‐3

Class B Concrete (refer to City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum 

Design Standards and Specifications, section 8.07)

34,800.00 CY 200 174.00 34800.00

#1‐4

Class B Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement (refer to City of Lubbock 

Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications, section 

8.07)

35,800.00 CY 200 179.00 35800.00

#1‐5

Class C Concrete (refer to City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum 

Design Standards and Specifications, section 8.07)

35,600.00 CY 200 178.00 35600.00

#1‐6

Class C Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement (refer to City of Lubbock 

Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications, section 

8.07)

36,600.00 CY 200 183.00 36600.00

#1‐7

Class E Concrete (refer to City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum 

Design Standards and Specifications, section 8.07)

0.00 CY 200 No Bid No Bid

#1‐8

Class E Concrete with Fiber Reinforcement (refer to City of Lubbock 

Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications, section 

8.07)

0.00 CY 200 No Bid No Bid

#1‐9

Type I, Type II or a Type I‐II Bulk Cement (refer to City of Lubbock 

Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications, section 

8.07)

175,000.00 Ton 500 350.00 175000.00

#1‐10

Type I, Type II or a Type I‐II Bulk Cement‐To include price to deliver on‐

site (refer to City of Lubbock Engineering Minimum Design Standards 

and Specifications, section 8.07)

0.00 Ton 600 No Bid No Bid

#1‐11

Flowable Fill (1.5 sacks per cubic yard) (refer to City of Lubbock 

Engineering Minimum Design Standards and Specifications, section 

8.07)

186,000.00 CY 1500 124.00 186000.00

#1‐12

Minimum Load for Delivery (Will appear as a dollar amount but will 

not be included in total)

0.00 EA 0 4.00 0.00

#2‐1 Additional demurrage charge after the first hour on location 120.00 HR 1 120.00 120.00

#2‐2

Charge for a split load, forcing driver to clean and lift chute to move 

to new location

80.00 EA 1 80.00 80.00

#2‐3 Delivery Charge:  Monday ‐ Friday during business hours 20.00 EA 1 20.00 20.00

#2‐4 Delivery Charge:  Saturday and Sunday 0.00 EA 1 No Bid No Bid

#2‐5 Pour Charge:  Monday‐Friday 0.00 EA 1 No Bid No Bid

#2‐6 Pour Charge: Saturday and Sunday 0.00 EA 1 No Bid No Bid



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
ITB 25-18639-TF Concrete Materials  

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on January 26, 2025 &  
February 2, 2025.  
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 26 to March 6, 2025. 
2 individuals attended the pre-proposal/pre-bid meeting. 
39 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
42 vendors were notified separately.  
1 vendor submitted bid.  

 



 AI# 13421 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 18. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Facilities Management: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
a Notice of Abandonment of Intended Purpose and Reversion, by and between the City of
Lubbock and the Guadalupe - Parkway Neighborhood Center, Inc., reverting all rights, title,
and interest, for property located at 123 North Avenue N, Lubbock, Texas 79401.

Item Summary
In 2018, the City Council approved a Deed Without Warranty for the Guadalupe-Parkway
Sommerville Center, Inc for property located at 123 North Avenue N. The public purpose for
the building was defined in the deed as ongoing services to children and families in the
surrounding area and to the residents of Lubbock including offerings such as literacy training,
language skills, and academic support.  The deed also states that if the property ever ceases to
be used for this public purpose, that the property reverts back to the City of Lubbock.

We have been notified by the Guadalupe-Parkway Neighborhood Center that the public
purpose has ceased, and accordingly, we are recommending that the City Council approve the
attached Notice of Abandonment. The Notice of Abandonment has already been executed by
the Guadalupe-Parkway Neighborhood Center and will allow the property to revert to the City
for a purpose to be determined at a later date by the City Council.  

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Mark Zavicar, Director of Facilities Management
 

Attachments
Resolution - Guadalupe Parkway Neighborhood Center 
Notice of Abandonment 
Executed Deed without Warranty December 28, 2017 





Notice of Abandonment of Purpose and Reversion – City of Lubbock/Guadalupe-Parkway Neighborhood Centers Page 1 of 2 

NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU 
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM THIS 
INSTRUMENT BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: 
YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER’S LICENSE NUMBER. 

NOTICE OF ABANDONMENT OF INTENDED PURPOSE AND REVERSION 

This Notice of Abandonment of Intended Purpose and Reversion is made as of this _____ day of 
May, 2025, by the City of Lubbock, by and through its Mayor (the “City”), and Guadalupe-Parkway 
Neighborhood Centers, Inc., a Texas nonprofit corporation (“GPNC”). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Deed Without Warranty (the “Deed”), dated December 28, 
2017, by and between the City and GPNC, recorded at Volume _____, Page _____ of the Official Public 
Records of Lubbock County, Texas, the City conveyed that certain real property (the “Property”) more 
particularly described in the Deed to GPNC; and 

WHEREAS, the conveyance of the Property in the Deed was made in fee simple determinable, so 
long as a public purpose, as that term was set forth and defined in the Deed, were satisfied by GPNC; 
and 

WHEREAS, at such time the public purpose were deemed no longer to have been satisfied, the 
Property, and all rights, title, and interest therein conveyed by the Deed were to automatically revert 
and vest in the City, its successors, and assigns; and 

WHEREAS, the City and GPNC acknowledge and agree that the public purpose contemplated by 
the parties to the Deed is no longer being satisfied to any meaningful extent, and further that GPNC no 
longer has a need for the Property, nor intends to accomplish the public purpose set forth in the Deed; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City and GPNC agree that by virtue of the foregoing, all rights, title, and interest 
having been conveyed in the Deed to GPNC have automatically reverted to and vested in the City, and 
further agree that a memorandum of said reversion and vesting should be filed of record in Lubbock 
County, Texas. 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the terms and provisions of the Deed, the undersigned representatives 
from the City and GPNC do hereby execute this Notice of Abandonment of Intended Purpose and 
Reversion as evidence that the clear and unambiguous condition of a public purpose as set forth in the 
Deed will no longer be met, and that all rights, title, and interest in and to the Property having been 
conveyed in the Deed to GPNC have automatically reverted to, and vested in, the City for all purposes. 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY] 

















 AI# 13404 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 19. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution: Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Department of State Health Services (DSHS) Contract No. HHS001439500038, and all related
documents, under the Public Health Emergency Preparedness Cooperative Agreement from
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, by and between the City of Lubbock and the
State of Texas, acting by and through DSHS, to support public health emergency preparedness.

Item Summary
This is an existing grant through the Department of State Health Services (DSHS). The Public
Health Emergency Preparedness Contract (PHEP) was initially awarded to the Public Health
Department in 2003 by the Department of State Health Services. The purpose of this
amendment is to renew the contract for FY2026, to perform activities in support of the Public
Health Emergency Preparedness ("PHEP") Cooperative Agreement from the Centers for
Disease Control and Prevention ("CDC") in support of public health emergency preparedness.

The contract term is July 1, 2024, through June 30, 2026. The contract amount is $288,016.

This contract requires an electronic signature.

Fiscal Impact
The total amount of federal funds is $261,833. 
The total local match is $26,183.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution 
Amendment No. 2 PHEP 































































































































 AI# 13415 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 20. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Job Order
Contract 18830, with Henthorn Commercial Construction, for installation of a new wind
cone at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
The scope of work includes installing a new primary wind cone at Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport.

FAA Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5340-30J, section 6.6.2 requires a primary wind cone
(PWC) for any airport certificated per Title 14 CFR Part 139. LBB does not currently have a
PWC, though supplemental wind cones are currently located near each runway end.
 
The project was initially bid out with an extended bid period, but no bids were received.
Therefore, the contract with Henthorn Commercial Construction is made through Sourcewell
Purchasing Cooperative, using an electronic system known as EZIQC, to access indefinite
quantity construction contracts (job order contracts) that are competitively bid to accomplish
maintenance, repair, and minor new construction. The contracts are based on a pre-set price
book otherwise known as a Construction Task Catalog (CTC) provided by Gordian.

Sourcewell is a Service Cooperative and governmental agency created by Minnesota Statute
123A.21, to enable participating governmental agencies to reduce the cost of goods and
services by leveraging their combined purchasing power. Texas Government Code Chapter
791 allows political subdivisions of Texas Chapter 271.102 to participate in purchasing
cooperatives with other local governments and cooperative purchasing organizations, which
satisfies state law requiring the City to solicit competitive bids. Work to be performed
by Henthorn Commercial Construction will be according to the terms and conditions of
Sourcewell EZIQC Contract No. 660-21.

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend approval of Job Order Contract
18830, for $158,652.43, to Henthorn Commercial Construction of Lubbock, Texas, for
installation of a new wind cone at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Fiscal Impact
Job Order Contract 18830, with Henthorn Commercial Construction, for $158,652.43, is



Job Order Contract 18830, with Henthorn Commercial Construction, for $158,652.43, is
funded in Capital Improvement Project 8684 - Airfield Pavement Maintenance Phase II.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Henthorn Commercial Construction 
JOC Contract Henthorn Commercial Construction 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 

















City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
May 13, 2025

Capital Project Number: 8684
Capital Project Name: Airfield Pavement Maintenance Phase II

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

Parkhill  $                           49,200
RS&H, Inc.                               40,479

Agenda Item May 13, 2025
Henthorn Commercial Construction                             158,652

  Encumbered/Expended To Date                             248,332

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation                          51,668.25
  Remaining Appropriation                          51,668.25

Total Appropriation  $                         300,000



Project Scope

This project sets funds aside annually to develop a multi-year schedule of pavement repairs and/or

rehabilitate larger areas of pavement. Set aside funds also give staff the ability to design smaller

projects and use plans to compete for supplemental and/or discretionary funding opportunities as they

arise.

The first effort includes the installation of a primary wind cone is essential to enhance the safety and

efficiency of air traffic operations. This project aims to adhere to the guidance provided by the Federal

Aviation Administration (FAA) through advisory circulars (FAA Advisory Circular 150/5345-45:

"Specification for Wind Cone Assemblies"), ensuring compliance with regulatory standards and best

practices.

Project Justification

Airfield maintenance staff is responsible for 250 acres of concrete and 135 acres of asphalt. Some

areas of the airfield need minor pavement repairs that exceed the expertise of staff but does not

qualify for grant funding. The primary wind cone installation is required per FAA certification

inspector(s).

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:

Growth and Development

FY 2023-24 $100,000 was appropriated by Ord.

2023-O0108

FY 2024-25 $200,000 was appropriated by Ord.

2024-O0128

Project Dates Project Location

Phase I: Primary Wind Cone Installation

Construction Contract Award: May 2025

Construction Start Date: July 2025

Construction Completion: December 2025

5401 N. Martin Luther King Boulevard, Lubbock,

TX 79403

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $200,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Design $100,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $0

TOTAL $300,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Airport Fund Cash $300,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $0

TOTAL $300,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $0

CIP 8684CIP 8684 Airfield Pavement Maintenance Airfield Pavement Maintenance

Phase IIPhase II

Upgrade/Major MaintenanceUpgrade/Major Maintenance

Project Manager: Kelly Campbell - Aviation Oper - Field MaintProject Manager: Kelly Campbell - Aviation Oper - Field Maint



Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13418 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 21. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
18713, with Clean and Bright Window Cleaning Services, for window cleaning services at
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport has continuous windows around the terminal
building. The airport staff issued an Invitation to Bid (ITB) for window cleaning services.

In response to ITB 25-18713-AE, bids were received from the following companies.
  

Company Annual Amount
Clean and Bright Window Cleaning, Wolfforth, Texas $23,999.98
Yosan Inc. dba International Building Services, Austin, Texas $31,450.00
Squeegee Squad, Wolfforth, Texas $34,320.00
LN Pro Services, LLC, Lubbock, Texas $49,710.00
CCNG Building Services, Dallas, Texas $53,376.34
Kleen-Tech Services, LLC, Lubbock, Texas $97,336.00

Airport staff and the Airport Advisory Board recommend this contract award to the lowest
bidder, Clean and Bright Window Cleaning of Wollforth, Texas, for $23,999.98 per year.

The contract calls for labor and materials to clean the windows every 2 months, and an annual
cleaning to be conducted 1 time, per contract term.

The contract is awarded by unit price. The amount of the award is based on estimated
quantities and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on the actual need. The
price per unit will not change and expenditures will not exceed appropriated funds. The
contract term will be for a term of one year with the option of 4, one-year extensions.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18713, with Clean and Bright Window Cleaning Services for $23,999.98, is funded



Contract 18713, with Clean and Bright Window Cleaning Services for $23,999.98, is funded
in the Airport Operating Budget.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Clean and Bright 
Contract - Clean and Bright 
Bid Tabulation 
Project Summary 18713 





Contract 18713 

City of Lubbock 
Contract for 

         ITB 25-18713-AE 
Airport Window Cleaning 

 

 

THIS CONTRACT made and entered into this   day of  , 2025, by and between the 

City of Lubbock ("City"), and Clean and Bright Window Cleaning, ("Contractor"). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Lubbock duly advertised for bids for Airport Window Cleaning and bids 
were received and duly opened as required by law; and 

 

WHEREAS, after careful consideration of the bid submitted by Contractor, the City authorized 
the execution, in the name of the City of Lubbock a contract with said Contractor covering the purchase 
and delivery of the said Airport Window Cleaning. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreement contained herein, as well as the 

financial consideration hereinafter referred to, the parties hereby covenant and agree as follows: 
 

1. In accordance with City’s specifications and Contractor’s bid, copies of which are attached 
hereto and made part hereof, Contractor will deliver to the City, Airport Window Cleaning, and 
more specifically referred to as Items 1-1 through 2-3 on the bid submitted by the Contractor 
or in the specifications attached hereto. 

 

2. The City promises and agrees to employ, and does employ, the Contractor to cause to be done 

the work provided for in this Contract and to complete and finish the same according to the 

attached specifications, offer, and terms and conditions contained herein. 

 
3. The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of four (4), one-year extensions, 

said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew automatically for 
the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to terminate the Contract. 

 

4. All stated annual quantities are approximations of usage during the time period to be covered by 

pricing established by this bid. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be 

determined by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 

compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and resulting 

contract. 
 

5. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the term of this contract 

including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that valid insurance 

is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management Department as required by contract or 

contract may be terminated for non-compliance. 
 

6. A) Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The rate 

may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) 

or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. 



B) Further, if the Contractor can provide documentation for actual charges for material, labor, 

etc. that demonstrates that the change in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide 

such documentation to the City, and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be 

further adjusted. If agreement regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate 

at the end of the current contract period. 

 

C) If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must provide the 

Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly documentation to justify the 

ongoing adjustment. If no such documentation is timely received, the rate will automatically 

revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

 

7. This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration date, 

(2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day written 

notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the next lowest 

and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 
 

8. Contractor shall at all times be an independent contractor and not an agent or representative of 

City with regard to performance of the Services. Contractor shall not represent that it is, or hold 

itself out as, an agent or representative of City. In no event shall Contractor be authorized to 

enter into any agreement or undertaking for or on behalf of City. 
 

9. Insurance Requirements 
 

SECTION A. Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a completed 
Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent authorized to bind the named 
underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination provisions shown thereon, and which shall 
furnish and contain all required information referenced or indicated thereon. THE CITY SHALL HAVE 
NO DUTY TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH CERTIFICATE 
SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 
SECTION B. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages and their limits 
when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes in statutory law, court decisions, 
or the claims history of the industry as well as the Contractor. 
SECTION C. Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts as 
are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and effect for the duration 
of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole expense, insurance coverage written by 
companies approved by the State of Texas and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and 
amount(s): 

 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate (can be combined 
with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the 
most important of all insurance policies in a contractual relationship. It insures the Contractor has 
broad liability coverage for contractual activities and for completed operations. 

 
Commercial General Liability to include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and Advertising Injury, 
Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical Expenses (any one person). 

Automobile Liability Requirements: $1M/occurrence is needed 
 

 

Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the vendor is an 
independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from providing Workers' Compensation 
coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their 
driver's license... Employer Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 



 

 
* The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall be afforded additional insured 

status on a primary and non-contributory basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and 

workers' comp. 

* Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 

* To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 

* Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written notice for non-payment. 

* Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 

* Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 
IMPORTANT: POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all endorsements 
thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or modification of particular policy 
terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where policy provisions are established by law or 
regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto or the underwriter of any of such policies). Upon 
such request by the City, the Contractor shall exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in 
policy coverages, and shall pay the cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor. 

 

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts and 
certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its attachment, the 
following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected representatives as additional 

insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its officers, employees, 

and elected representatives for injuries, including death, property damage, or any other loss to 

the extent same may be covered by the proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard of care 

together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by contractual liability 

coverage sufficient to include such obligations within applicable policies. 

 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such notices 
not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a replacement 
CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
City of Lubbock 
1314 Avenue K, 9th Floor 
Lubbock, Texas 79401 

SECTION D. Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by 
the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and accidents 



as set forth in the contract documents. Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or denial of liability by 
the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

10. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall assign, transfer or encumber any rights, duties or 

interests accruing from this Contract without the written consent of the other. 
 

11. The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 

otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court of 

competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior to 

exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 

cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 

between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this document, this provision shall 

control. 
 

12. At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 

representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 

the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 

under this Contract. In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments by 

the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 days 

of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts owing 

the City from any payments due Contractor. 
 

13. All funds for payment by the City under this contract are subject to the availability of an annual 

appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds by the City 

Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the contract, the City 

will terminate the contract, without termination charge or other liability, on the last day of the 

then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the then-current year for the goods 

or services covered by this contract is spent, whichever event occurs first. If at any time funds 

are not appropriated for the continuance of this contract, cancellation shall be accepted by the 

Seller on 30 days prior written notice, but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the 

City shall not be obligated under this contract beyond the date of termination. 
 

14. The Contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 

written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management. Should consent be 

given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof on insurance from the 

Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements. 
 

15. Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, fully 

understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the descriptive 

material contained herein and any additional associated documents and Amendments. The City 

disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless agreed upon in writing by 

the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and conditions and any terms and 

conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions provided herein shall prevail. 

The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms agreed upon by the parties, and any 

prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 
 

16. The Contractor (i) does not engage in business with Iran, Sudan or any foreign terrorist 

organization and (ii) it is not listed by the Texas Comptroller under Section 2252.153, Texas 

Government Code, as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or services 

to a foreign terrorist organization. As used in the immediately preceding sentence, “foreign 



terrorist organization” shall have the meaning given such term in Section 2252.151, Texas 

Government Code. 

17. The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code, may apply to this 

contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be terminated if the 

contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a requirement of that 

subchapter. 

To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code applies to this agreement, Contractor 

agrees to: (1) preserve all contracting information related to the contact as provided by the 

records retention requirements applicable to the governmental body for the duration of the 

contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental body any contracting information related to 

the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity on request of the governmental body; 

and (3) on completion of the contract, either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all 

contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or 

(B) preserve the contracting information related to the contract as provided by the records 

retention requirements applicable to the governmental body. 
 

18. Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This section applies only to a 

contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company with 10 or more full-time 

employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from 

public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity may not enter into a contract 

with a company for goods or services unless the contract contains a written verification from the 

company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) will not boycott Israel during the term of the 

contract. 

 

19. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the 

duration of the contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 

of the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against 

a firearm entity or firearm trade association; and will not discriminate during the term of the 

contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the 

Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract. 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a 

value of at least $100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code 

Chapter 2274, it does not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies 

during the term of the Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a 

governmental entity determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental 

entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of 

debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

 

20. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the City and the City's 

business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to third parties without 

prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 



21. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its elected officials, 

officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, claims, or liability of 

any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the generality of the 

foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for injury or death to any 

person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person or persons or property, to 

the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent acts of the Contractor, its 

agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the performance, operations or omissions 

under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of city owned property. The indemnity 

obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration or termination of this agreement. 
 

22. This Contract consists of the following documents set forth herein; Invitation to Bid No. 25- 

18713-AE, Specifications, and the Bid Form. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  





City of Lubbock, TX 

ITB 25-18713-AE  

Airport Window Cleaning 

Specifications 

 

 
INTENT 
 
The City of Lubbock seeks bids for a one-year contract with four additional one-year extension options, to 
provide full-service exterior and interior window cleaning services for the Lubbock Preston Smith 
International Airport. The bid includes the request for pricing on annual and bi-monthly services for cleaning 
window surfaces on the exterior and interior of the Airport building. These service requirements are based 
on the needs of the Airport.  
 

SCOPE OF WORK  

1. Standard Warranty: Any materials and labor provided shall carry standard warranty coverage 
furnished by the trade in general. 

2. OSHA/WISHA: The Contractor agrees to comply with the conditions of the Federal Occupational 
Safety and Health Act of 1970, the Texas Industrial Safety and Health Act of 1970, and the standards 
and regulations issued thereunder, and certifies that all items furnished and purchased under the order 
will conform to and comply with said standards and regulations. Contractor further agrees to indemnify 
and hold harmless Purchaser from damages assessed against Purchaser as a result of Contractor’s failure 
to comply with the Acts and the standards issued thereunder and for the failure of the items furnished 
under this order to so comply. 

3.  GENERAL REQUIREMENTS: 

1. All glass surfaces shall be cleaned leaving the glass surfaces free of spots, scale, grime, mineral 
deposits and hard water stains. All metal edges shall be free of dust and debris. 

2. All interior metal windowsills will be cleaned/dusted/wiped down to remove any fluids, dust or debris. 

3. All window cleaning shall be done in a manner as not to interfere with the daily operations of the 
building. 

4. Cleaning compounds shall not damage glass or seals on windows. Upon request, the successful bidder 
must submit MSDS or other product literature for any cleaning compounds or chemicals brought on to 
airport property. The contractor shall be responsible for any etching or scratching of glass or metal frame 
surface caused by cleaning compounds or cleaning methods.  

5. When scaffolding, ladders and/or lifts are required they will be clearly marked/coned so as to not create 
a safety hazard or interfere with day-to-day operations of the terminal building. Scaffolding, ladders 
and/or lifts will not be left unattended unless specific authorization from the maintenance supervisor is 
received.  

6. Any debris or trash that accumulates during window cleaning work shall be removed from the site and 
disposed of in a proper manner.  

7. The successful bidder shall comply with airport security requirements as they pertain to the 
performance of the work.  

8. Any cracked or damaged windows will be reported to the airport's maintenance supervisor.  



9. All work will be done during regular airport work hours Monday through Friday from 7:00am to 
8:00pm. 

10. The successful bidder is required to provide man-lifts as needed to complete the cleaning work.  

11. The successful bidder must check in with the building's maintenance supervisor before commencing 
work each time. Also, the successful bidder will wear the ID badge at all times while working. 

12. The successful bidder will invoice the airport at the end of the month's cleaning cycle. The invoice 
will state the month for which services have been rendered, and is to be payable within 30 days of receipt 
by the airport. No back drafting of invoices will be allowed. 

4.  WINDOW CLEANING REQUIREMENTS 

      Annual Cleaning to be Conducted Once Per Contract Term:  

1. The interior surfaces of the upper windows on the carpet side of the terminal overlooking the ramp 
area and the interior surface of the upper windows on the brick side of the terminal, and the interior 
and exterior surfaces of the uppermost windows in the four terminal entranceways.  

2. Exterior surfaces of all windows on the second floor of the terminal building overlooking the carpet 
side, and the exterior surfaces of the upper windows at the airline ticket counters.  

3. The interior surfaces of all windows on the second floor of the terminal building overlooking the 
carpet side including office spaces.  

4. The interior and exterior surfaces of the uppermost windows in the four terminal entranceways, 
and sterile side partitions near passenger gates three and eight.  

      Bi-Monthly Cleaning:  

1. Interior and exterior surfaces of windows in the four terminal entranceways, including glass 
doorways and above doors. This does not include the upper windows on the sides of the 
entranceways.  

2. Interior surfaces of all floor-level exterior windows in the terminal building on the main level, 
including all windows in the passenger gate stairwell areas and interior surfaces of second floor 
hallway windows overlooking the parking lot. This item does not include the short, upper windows 
(approx. 24-inches high).  

3. Exterior surfaces of all exterior windows on the main floor including all floor-level windows, upper 
windows brick side (excluding the airline ticket counter area covered by blinds), upper windows 
carpet side, all passenger gate stairwell windows, and all second-floor hallway windows overlooking 
the parking lot.  

      Windows Excluded:  

1. Glass block windows between carpet/sterile side and brick side of terminal.  

2. Revolving doors and fire exits adjacent to the revolving doors.  

3. Ramp level windows leading into office areas.  

4. Business center windows on carpet/sterile side of the building. 

5. Sliding glass doors between brick and carpet/sterile side of the building.  

6. Glass at entrance to bar/lounge area 



5.  INFORMATION SHEET FOR OBTAINING AIRPORT ID  

(ALL WINDOW CLEANING CREW MUST HAVE) 

1. Each member of the window cleaning crew must be in possession of a valid airport-issued security 

ID badge while working at the airport.  

2. The following items are required to obtain access for cleaning the windows at the Lubbock Preston 

Smith International Airport: 

• 10-year work history - All gaps of employment must be verified by the City of Lubbock. (City of 

Lubbock requirement.) 

• There is a $15 charge for the issuance of an ID badge. 

• Criminal history records check (CHRC) - An FBI-based background check will be conducted via 

fingerprinting. A $30 fee will be collected prior to the fingerprint appointment. The Airport 

reserves the right to disqualify applicants at their discretion including, but not limited to, the 

following convictions within the past 10 years: 

(1)   Forgery of certificates, false marking of aircraft, and other aircraft registration violation. 

(2)   Interference with air navigation. 

(3)   Improper transportation of a hazardous material. 

(4)   Aircraft piracy. 

(5)   Interference with flight crewmembers or flight attendants. 

(6)   Commission of certain crimes aboard aircraft in flight. 

(7)   Carrying a weapon or explosive aboard aircraft. 

(8)   Conveying false information and threats. 

(9)   Aircraft piracy outside the special aircraft jurisdiction of the United States. 

(10) Lighting violations involving transporting controlled substances. 

(11) Unlawful entry into an aircraft or airport area that serves air carriers or foreign air 

carriers contrary to established security requirements. 

(12) Destruction of an aircraft or aircraft facility. 

(13) Murder. 

(14) Assault with intent to murder. 

(15) Espionage. 

(16) Sedition. 

(17) Kidnapping or hostage taking. 

(18) Treason. 

(19) Rape or aggravated sexual abuse. 

(20) Unlawful possession, use, sale, distribution, or manufacture of an explosive or weapon. 

(21) Extortion. 

(22) Armed or felony unarmed robbery. 

(23) Distribution of, or intent to distribute, a controlled substance. 

(24) Felony arson. 

(25) Felony involving a threat. 

(26) Violence at international airports. 

(27) Conspiracy or attempt to commit any criminal acts. 

(28) Felony involving: 

(i)     Willful destruction of property;  

(ii)    Important or manufacture of a controlled substance;  

(iii)   Burglary;  

(iv)   Theft;  

(v)    Dishonesty, fraud, or misrepresentation;  

(vi)   Possession or distribution of stolen property;  



(vii)   Aggravated assault;  

(viii)  Bribery; or  

(ix)    Illegal possession of a controlled substance punishable by a maximum term of 

imprisonment of more than one year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Lubbock
ITB 25-18713-AE

Airport Window Cleaning
Bid Form

Location
Total 

# Item Description
Quantity
Required

(+/-)
UOM

Unit
Price

Total
Cost

1 Annual Cleaning
#1-1 The interior surfaces of the upper windows on the 

carpet side of the terminal overlooking the ramp 
area and the interior surface of the upper windows 
on the brick side of the terminal, and the interior 
and exterior surfaces of the uppermost windows in 
the four terminal entranceways.

1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

#1-2 Exterior surfaces of all windows on the second 
floor of the terminal building overlooking the 
carpet side, and the exterior surfaces of the upper 
windows at the airline ticket counters.

1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

#1-3 The interior surfaces of all windows on the second 
floor of the terminal building overlooking the 
carpet side including office spaces.

1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

#1-4 The interior and exterior surfaces of the uppermost 
windows in the four terminal entranceways, and 
sterile side partitions near passenger gates three 
and eight.

1 EA $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

2 Bi-Monthly Cleaning
#2-1 Interior and exterior surfaces of windows in the 

four terminal entranceways, including glass 
doorways and above doors. This does not include 
the upper windows on the sides of the 
entranceways.

6 EA $1,111.11 $6,666.66 

#2-2 Interior surfaces of all floor-level exterior 
windows in the terminal building on the main 
level, including all windows in the passenger gate 
stairwell areas and interior surfaces of second 
floor hallway windows overlooking the parking 
lot. This item does not include the short, upper 
windows (approx. 24-inches high).

6 EA $1,111.11 $6,666.66 

#2-3 Exterior surfaces of all exterior windows on the 
main floor including all floor-level windows, 
upper windows brick side (excluding the airline 
ticket counter area covered by blinds), upper 
windows carpet side, all passenger gate stairwell 
windows, and all second-floor hallway windows 
overlooking the parking lot.

6 EA $1,111.11 $6,666.66 

Clean and Bright Window 
Cleaning

$23,999.98
Wolfforth, TX



City of Lubbock, TX 

Purchasing and Contract Management 

Vendor Acknowledgement Form 

 

In compliance with the Invitation to Bid, the undersigned Bidder having examined the Invitation to Bid, 

instructions to bidders, General Conditions of the Agreement, Specifications, and being familiar with the 

conditions to be met, hereby submits the following bid for furnishing the material, equipment, labor and 

everything necessary for providing the items listed and agrees to deliver said items at the locations and for the 

prices set forth on the bid form and/or the bid table associated with this bid. 

 

A bid will be subject to being considered irregular and may be rejected if it shows omissions, alterations of 

form, conditional alternate bids, additions or alternates in lieu of the items specified, if the unit prices are 

obviously unbalanced (either in excess of or below reasonably expected values), or irregularities of any kind. 

The Invitation to Bid is by reference incorporated in this contract. 

 

Where applicable, prices are quoted as: F.O.B. Destination, Freight Pre-Paid and Allowed 

Where applicable, delivery days are: Days After Receipt of Order (ARO) 

Unless otherwise specified herein, the City may award the bid either item-by–item or on an all-or- 

none basis for any item or group of items shown on the bid. 

 

The City of Lubbock is seeking a contract for with one or more contractors. In order to assure adequate 

coverage, the City may make multiple awards, selecting multiple vendors to provide the products 

desired, if multiple awards are in the best interest of the City. A decision to make a multiple award of 

this Bid, however, is an option reserved by the City, based on the needs of the City. 

PAYMENT TERMS AND DISCOUNTS - Bidder offers a prompt payment discount of   %, net 

  calendar days. Discounts will not be considered in determining low bid. Unless otherwise indicated 

on the Bid Form, payment terms will be NET THIRTY DAYS. The City will pay the successful bidder within 

thirty days after the receipt of a correct invoice or after the date of acceptance, whichever event occurs later. 

Discounts for prompt payment requiring payment by the City within a stipulated number of days will be 

interpreted as applying within the stipulated number of calendar days after the date of receipt by the City of a 

correct invoice or after the date of acceptance that meets contract requirements, whichever event occurs later. 

Discounts for payment in less than ten days will not be considered. 

MOST FAVORED PRICING: The Bidder certifies that the price quoted is not in excess of the lowest price 

charged anyone else, including its most favored customer, for like quality and quantity of the 

products/services; does not include an element of profit on the sale in excess of that normally obtained by the 

Bidder on the sale of products/services of like quality and quantity; and does not include any provision for 

discounts to selling agents. If at any time during the contract period, the supplier should sell or offer for sale 

to any other customer, an equal or less quantity of similar contract products of like or better quality, at a lower 

net price(s) than provided herein, supplier agrees to notify the City and sell same product(s) at the lower 

price(s) on all deliveries made during the period in which such lower price(s) is effective. 

INTERLOCAL PURCHASING (optional): The City desires to make available to other local governmental 

entities of the State of Texas, by mutual agreement with the successful bidder, and properly authorized 

interlocal purchasing agreements as provided for by the Interlocal Cooperation Act (Chapter 791, Government 

Code), the right to purchase the same services, at the prices quoted, for the period of this contract. Each bidder 

shall indicate on the Bid Form in the space provided below if he/she will honor Political Subdivision orders 

in addition to orders from the City of Lubbock. Should these other governmental entities decide to participate 

in this contract, would you (the bidder) agree that all terms, conditions, specifications, and pricing would 

apply? 

1

15



Other governmental entities that might have interests in this contract are Frenship Independent School 

District, Lubbock Housing Authority, Lubbock County, Lubbock County Hospital District, Lubbock 

Independent School District, South Plains Association of Governments, City of Texarkana, Texas Tech 

University, West Texas Municipal Power Agency, Lynn County, and City of Wolfforth. 

 
YES   NO    

 

• If you (the bidder) checked YES, the following will apply: 

• Governmental entities utilizing Interlocal Agreements for Cooperative Purchasing with the City of 

Lubbock will be eligible, but not obligated, to purchase materials/services under the contract(s) 

awarded as a result of this solicitation. All purchases by governmental entities other than the City of 

Lubbock will be billed directly to that governmental entity and paid by that governmental entity. City 

of Lubbock will not be responsible for another governmental entity’s debts. Each governmental entity 

will order their own materials/service as needed. 

 
ADDENDA 

Bidder acknowledges receipt of addenda issued in regard to this solicitation: 

Addenda No.  Date   
Addenda No.  Date  
Addenda No.  Date  
Addenda No.  Date   

 

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

Federal Law (A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110) prohibits non-Federal entities from contracting 

with or making sub-awards under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose 

principals are suspended or debarred. Covered transactions include procurement contracts for goods or 

services equal to or in excess of $25,000 and all non-procurement transactions (e.g., sub-awards to sub-

recipients). 

 

Contractors receiving individual awards of $25,000 or more and all sub-recipients must certify that their 

organization and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 

Before an award of $25,000 or more can be made to your firm, you must certify that your organization 

and its principals are not suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 

I, the undersigned agent for the firm named below, certify that neither this firm nor its principals are 

suspended or debarred by a Federal agency. 

X

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

No addenda were issued.



TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2252.152 

The undersigned representative of the undersigned company or business, being an adult over the age of 

eighteen (18) years of age, pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252.152, certify that 

the company named above is not listed on the website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concerning the 

listing of companies that are identified under Section 806.051, Section 807.051 or Section 2253.153. I further 

certify that should the above-named company enter into a contract that is on said listing of companies on the 

website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas, which do business with Iran, Sudan or any Foreign Terrorist 

Organization, I will immediately notify the City of Lubbock Purchasing and Contract Department. 

 

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 2271.002 

 

Company hereby certifies the following: 

1. Company does not boycott Israel; and 

2. Company will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

 

The following definitions apply to this state statute: 

(1) "Boycott Israel" means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any 

action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with 

Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not 

include an action made for ordinary business purposes; and 

(2) "Company" means an organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited 

partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, 

majority-owned subsidiary, parent company, or affiliate of those entities or business associations that exists 

to make a profit. 

 

This Certification is required from a Company if the Company has 10 or more full-time employees and 

the contract for goods or services (which includes contracts formed through purchase orders) has a 

value of $100,000 or more that is to be paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental 

entity. 

TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE 2274 

 

By entering into this Agreement, Contractor verifies that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 

contract, have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm 

trade association or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does not 

apply to the contract. 

 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least 

$100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not 

have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association; and will not discriminate during the term of the contract against a firearm entity or firearm trade 

association. 

 

Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the contract, boycott 

energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of the Texas Government Code does 

not apply to the contract. 

 

If Contractor is a company with 10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least 

$100,000 or more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does not 

boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the Agreement. This 

verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity determines that these requirements 

are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, 

incurrence, or management of debt obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment 

of funds. 



INCOMPLETE INFORMATION 

 

Failure to complete or provide any of the information requested in this Request for Proposal, including 

references, and/or additional information as information as indicated, may results in disqualification by reason 

of “non-responsiveness”. 



CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 

In compliance with this solicitation, the undersigned bidder, having examined the bid documents, 

instructions to bidders, documents associated with the invitation to bid, and being familiar with the 

conditions to be met has reviewed the above information regarding: 

• Suspension and Debarment Certification 

• Texas Government Code Section 2252.152 

• Texas Government Code Section 2271.002 

• Texas Government Code 2274 

 

 

 
 

SUBMISSION INFORMATION 
 

An individual authorized to bind the company must sign the following section. Failure to execute this 

portion may result in bid rejection. 

 
THIS BID IS SUBMITTED BY  a 

corporation organized under the laws of the State of  , or a partnership consisting of 

  or individual trading as  of 

the City of     

Tax ID No.:    

Address:     

City:  State:  Zip:   

M/WBE Firm: 

 

 
 

Please complete the information below. 

 

By  Date:   

Authorized Representative - must sign by hand 

 

Officer Name and Title:   
 

Business Telephone Number  FAX:   
 

E-mail Address:   

 Woman  Black American  Native American 
 Hispanic American  Asian Pacific American  Other (Specify) 

 

Clean and Bright Window Cleaning

Texas

Lubbock

46-3212824

302 Hutcheson Ave

Wolfforth

Tx

79382

X

04/15/2025

Alex Hernandez Owner/Operator

806-448-8965

mywindowguy40@gmail.com



City of Lubbock, TX

Public Works Contracting Office

Bid Tabulation

# Items
Qty 

(+/-)
UoM

Unit 

Cost

Extended  

Cost

Unit 

Cost

Extended  

Cost

Unit 

Cost

Extended  

Cost
Unit Price

Extended  

Cost

Unit 

Cost

Extended  

Cost

Unit 

Cost

Extended  

Cost

1

#1-1

The interior surfaces of the upper windows on the carpet 

side of the terminal overlooking the ramp area and the 

interior surface of the upper windows on the brick side 

of the terminal, and the interior and exterior surfaces of 

the uppermost windows in the four terminal 

entranceways.

1 EA 3,642.82       3,642.82       1,000.00       1,000.00       4,628.75           4,628.75         2,050.00       2,050.00       750.00          750.00          1,400.00       1,400.00       

#1-2

Exterior surfaces of all windows on the second floor of 

the terminal building overlooking the carpet side, and 

the exterior surfaces of the upper windows at the airline 

ticket counters.

1 EA 7,115.12       7,115.12       1,000.00       1,000.00       2,512.75           2,512.75         3,640.00       3,640.00       1,950.00       1,950.00       1,500.00       1,500.00       

#1-3

The interior surfaces of all windows on the second floor 

of the terminal building overlooking the carpet side 

including office spaces.

1 EA 2,130.92       2,130.92       1,000.00       1,000.00       1,058.00           1,058.00         780.00          780.00          750.00          750.00          500.00          500.00          

#1-4

The interior and exterior surfaces of the uppermost 

windows in the four terminal entranceways, and sterile 

side partitions near passenger gates three and eight.

1 EA 2,130.92       2,130.92       1,000.00       1,000.00       1,851.50           1,851.50         700.00          700.00          1,500.00       1,500.00       450.00          450.00          

2

#2-1

Interior and exterior surfaces of windows in the four 

terminal entranceways, including glass doorways and 

above doors. This does not include the upper windows 

on the sides of the entranceways.

6 EA 2,130.92       12,785.52     1,111.11       6,666.66       1,058.00           6,348.00         1,560.00       9,360.00       1,495.00       8,970.00       850.00          5,100.00       

#2-2

Interior surfaces of all floor-level exterior windows in the 

terminal building on the main level, including all 

windows in the passenger gate stairwell areas and 

interior surfaces of second floor hallway windows 

overlooking the parking lot. This item does not include 

the short, upper windows (approx. 24-inches high).

6 EA 2,130.92       12,785.52     1,111.11       6,666.66       5,290.00           31,740.00      2,450.00       14,700.00     1,450.00       8,700.00       1,900.00       11,400.00     

#2-3

Exterior surfaces of all exterior windows on the main 

floor including all floor-level windows, upper windows 

brick side (excluding the airline ticket counter area 

covered by blinds), upper windows carpet side, all 

passenger gate stairwell windows, and all second-floor 

hallway windows overlooking the parking lot.

6 EA 2,130.92       12,785.52     1,111.11       6,666.66       8,199.50           49,197.00      3,080.00       18,480.00     1,950.00       11,700.00     1,850.00       11,100.00     

Bi-Monthly Cleaning (3)

Yosan Inc. DBA I.B.S.

Austin, TX

31,450.00$                           

ITB 25-18713-AE

TITLE: Airport Window Cleaning

Opening Date: April 17, 2025 at 2PM CST

Dept.: Airport

Dallas, TX Wolfforth, TX Lubbock, TX Lubbock, TX Wolfforth, TX

Annual Cleaning (4)

Total (Items 1-1 through 2-3) 53,376.34$                           23,999.98$                           97,336.00$                                49,710.00$                           34,320.00$                           

CCNG Building Services
Clean and Bright Window 

Cleaning & More
Kleen-Tech Services, LLC LN Pro Services LLC Squeegee squad



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
ITB 25-18713-AE  

Airport Window Cleaning 

 

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on March 23 & March 30, 2025. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  

Notice was published on Bonfire.com from March 23 to April 17, 2025. 

13 individuals attended the pre-bid meeting. 

23 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 

1 vendor were notified separately.  

6 vendors submitted bid(s). 

 



 AI# 13387 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 22. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18618, with Pland Collaborative, for analysis and redesign of the right-of-way
irrigation systems in the North Overton Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District boundary.

Item Summary
Staff issued a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for the analysis and redesign of the
right-of-way irrigation systems in the North Overton TIF, and received three responses. 

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: Team Organization and
Qualifications - 35 points, Experience on Relevant Projects - 35 points, Management
Approach - 25 points, and Overall Responsiveness to the RFQ - 5 points. The maximum point
value is 100 points. 

After the proposals were evaluated, the following ranking was obtained:  
 
Contractor Points

Pland Collaborative, Lubbock, Texas 85.33
SRH Landscapes LLC, Dallas, Texas 69.33
The Davey Tree Expert Company, Kent, Ohio 68.67

Staff recommends award to the highest ranked proposer, Pland Collaborative. 

This contract is for a term of three months, with the option of a one-month extension. The total
cost of the contract is $54,335. 

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18618 with Pland Collaborative, for $54,335, is funded in Capital Improvement
Project 95524, North Overton Capital Improvement Projects. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager



Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
North Overton Tax Increment Financing District Advisory Board 

Attachments
Resolution - Contract - North Overton TIF Irrigation 
Contract 18618 - Pland - North Overton TIF Irrigation 
CIP 92254 - Budget Detail 
CIP 92254 - Project Detail 
Project Summary Sheet - RFQ 25-18618-KM 































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Chipotle's Mexican Grill Development Agreement - Tract 1C-1 23,572$                 

McCanton Wood Water Loop Agreement - Tract 1C-1 22,000                   

LKM Matador Development Agreement - Tract 1B-2 161,765                 

Gold Properties, LLC Development Agreement - Tract 1C-3A 53,717                   

ACC OP (Tract 6) Contract 93,000                   

Racer Classic Car Wash 9,351                     

2401 9th Street LLC (Potbelly) 51,878                   

Jackie Moon Properties, LLC 78,547                   

MH Civic Constructors - GGB 292,572                 

Public improvements Reimbursement (55,719)                  

Landscaping in the Parkway 26,723                   

Haven Campus Communities - Lubbock, LLC 322,155                 

City of Lubbock Staff Time 4,079                     

ACC OP (Tracts 32 and 33) LLC 583,287                 

Haven Campus Communities 340,549                 

West Texas Services, Inc - GGB 514,856                 

West Texas Services, Inc - Ramirez 450,000                 

West Texas Services, Inc - 9th and 10th Street 192,210                 

West Texas Services, Inc - GGB Medians 606,209                 

West Texas Services, Inc. Mac Davis Roundabout $425,040

West Texas Services - 9th and 10th Street Amendment No.1 $44,911

West Texas Services - 9th and 10th Street Amendment No.2 $137,203

West Texas Services - 9th and 10th Street Amendment No. 3 $63,747

West Texas Services, Inc. Contract 17764 Amendment No.4 119,478                 

Agenda Item May 13, 2025

Pland Collaborative Contract 18618 - Irrigation Improvements 54,335                   

Encumbered/Expended to Date 4,615,465              

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Public Improvements 2,031,886              

Remaining Appropriation 2,031,886              

Total Appropriation To Date 6,647,351$            

92254

North Overton TIF Public Improvements

City of Lubbock, TX

May 13, 2025

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail



Project Scope

Construction of public improvements in the  right-of-way  for the  remaining undeveloped tracts.  Also included in the  project
is the  repair or replacement of public improvements in the  right of way  for already  developed areas,  such as the  re location
and replacement of bollards on Glenna Goodacre  Boulevard and any  other replacement of the  original construction that is
needed.

Project Justi�cation

The project is part of the ongoing redevelopment in the North Overton TIF to replace 70-year old
infrastructure.

Completed projects:

GGB Completion - $87,458.21

Chipotles Development Agreement - $23,571.60

LKM Matador Development Agreement (92254B) - $161,765

Golden Properties Agreement (92254C)- 53,716.92

Tract 6 Development Agreement (92254D) - 93,000

Racer Classic Car Wash Development Agreement (92254E) - $8,640

2402 9th Street Development Agreement (92254F) - $51,878

Jackie Moon Development Agreement (92254G) - 78,547

ACC OPP Development Agreement (92254H) - $583,287

Haven Campus Communities - 18Nineteen (92254I) - $322,155

Removal of Pedestrian Lights - $1800.96

Irrigation Water Line Relocate Tract 3 - $19,625

McCantonwood Agreement - $22,105

Haven II Development Agreement - $340,549

Completion of the landscaping in the parkway on the last two blocks of GGB - $514,855

2022-23: Completed a project to install public improvements on Glenna Goodacre Blvd. between Avenue U and Avenue T.

2023-24: Completed a landscaping project in the public right-of-way on 9th and 10th Streets between Avenue U and Avenue S. 

2023-24: Completed a landscaping project in the Glenna Goodacre medians. 

2023-24: Started a repair project in the roundabout and adjacent right-of-way at Mac Davis and Avenue X. 

CIP 92254CIP 92254 North Overton TIF Public North Overton TIF Public
ImprovementsImprovements

Installation and Repair of Public ImprovementsInstallation and Repair of Public Improvements

Project Manager: Brianna Brown - Business DevelopmentProject Manager: Brianna Brown - Business Development



Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement, Economic Development

Prior to FY 2016-17 $2,247,032 had been
appropriated
FY 2016-17 $150,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2016-O0135
FY 2017-18 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2017-O0111
FY 2021-22 $249,680 was reassigned by BCR
2022-26
FY 2022-23 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $750,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2023-24 $750,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0151

Project Dates Project Location

FY 2024-25: Complete a public improvement
project on the South side of Glenna Goodacre
Boulevard between Avenue Q and Avenue R;
Complete an irrigation optimization project
through the North Overton TIF District. 

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund CO Bonds $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

North Overton TIF Fund Cash $3,400,320 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

North Overton TIF Fund Bonds $747,031 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

 
RFQ 25-18618-KM 

North Overton Tax Increment Finance District (TIF)  
Irrigation Improvement Project  

 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from February 3, 2025 to March 4, 2025 
41 Firms downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
39 Firms were notified separately.  
3   Firms submitted statements of qualifications  

 



 AI# 13390 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 23. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 18607, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., for hardscape repairs in the public
right-of-way in the North Overton Tax Increment Financing District boundary. 

Item Summary
Staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for hardscape repairs in the North Overton Tax
Increment Financing (TIF) District, and received one response. 

The proposal was evaluated using the following criteria: Qualifications, Experience,
References, and Ability to meet the RFP Expectations - 30 points, Project Approach - 30
points, Price - 40 points. The maximum point value is 100 points. 

After the proposal was evaluated, the following ranking was obtained: 
  

Vendor Points
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Lubbock, TX 95.33

Staff recommends award to the highest ranked proposer, MH Civil Constructors. 

The contract is for a term of one year, with the option of 4, one-year extensions. The contract
was awarded based on an hourly rate, plus material costs. Actual expenditures will vary based
on usage. The North Overton TIF Advisory Board approved an amount not to exceed $500,000
for this contract. 

Fiscal Impact
Contract 18607, with MH Civil Constructors, Inc., is funded in Capital Improvement
Project 92254, North Overton TIF Public Improvement Projects.  

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager 
Brianna Brown, Business Development Director 
North Overton Tax Increment Financing District Advisory Board 



Attachments
Resolution 18607 North Overton TIF Hardscape Repairs 
Contract 
Project Summary Sheet - North Overton TIF Hardscape Repairs 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 





 

                                                                                                                                      Contract 18607 
City of Lubbock, TX 

North Overton Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) Right-of-Way Hardscape Repairs 

Agreement 

This Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the      day of                    
2025(“Effective Date”) by and between MH Civil Constructors, Inc. (the Contractor), and the City of 
Lubbock (the “City”).     

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City has issued a Request for Proposals 25-18607-KM North Overton Tax 
Increment Financing District (TIF) Right-of-Way Hardscape Repairs and 

WHEREAS, the proposal submitted by the Contractor has been selected as the proposal which best 
meets the needs of the City for this service; and 

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide North Overton 
Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) Right-of-Way Hardscape Repairs, upon terms and conditions 
maintained in this Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the City and 
Contractor agree as follows:  

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which are 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the event of 
inconsistent or contradictory provisions: 

1. This Agreement 
2. Exhibit A – General Requirements        
3. Exhibit B – Price Proposal 
4. Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements 

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the services that are specified in Exhibit A. The Contractor shall execute services 
as the named provider. The Contractor shall comply with all the applicable requirements set forth in Exhibit 
B and Exhibit C attached hereto. 

Article 1  

1.1 The contract shall be for a term of one (1) year, with the option of two (4), one-year 
extensions, said date of term beginning upon formal approval. This Contract will renew 
automatically for the additional terms, unless either Party gives 90-day written notice to 
terminate the Contract. Actual usage may be more or less. Order quantities will be determined 
by actual need. The City of Lubbock does not guarantee any specific amount of 
compensation, volume, minimum, or maximum amount of services under this bid and 
resulting contract. The Contractor must maintain the insurance coverage required during the 
term of this contract including any extensions. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to 
ensure that valid insurance is on file with the Purchasing and Contract Management 
Department as required by contract or contract may be terminated for non-compliance. 
 



 

1.2 Prices quoted shall be guaranteed for a period for six (6) months upon City approval. The 
rate may be adjusted at the City’s discretion for the effective change in Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) or Product Price Index (PPI) as appropriate. Further, if the Contractor can provide 
documentation for actual charges for material, labor, etc. that demonstrates that the change 
in CPI or PPI is not sufficient, the Contractor shall provide such documentation to the City, 
and at the City’s sole discretion, the contractual rate may be further adjusted. If agreement 
regarding a new rate cannot be reached, the City shall terminate at the end of the current 
contract period.  If an adjustment to pricing is granted under this section, the Contractor must 
provide the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management written, quarterly 
documentation to justify the ongoing adjustment.  If no such documentation is timely 
received, the rate will automatically revert to the initial, awarded rate. 

1.3 The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer any 
interest in the Agreement, whatsoever, without prior consent of the City.  

1.4 All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the availability of an 
annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds 
by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the 
Agreement, the City will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other 
liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for 
the then-current year for the goods or services covered by this Agreement is spent, whichever 
event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 
Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the contractor on 30 days prior written notice, 
but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under 
this Agreement beyond the date of termination. 

1.5 This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration 
date, (2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day 
written notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the 
next lowest and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

Article 2 Miscellaneous. 

2.1 This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed in 
accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law provisions. 

2.2 This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to this 
Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

2.3 This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City and 
Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, between the 
parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No amendment or modification of the terms of 
this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced to writing and signed by 
both parties. 

2.4       This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. 

2.5 In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

2.6 The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the failure of 
any parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not 
constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent failure to perform. 



 

2.7       This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by Contractor or the 
City to any successor only on the written approval of the other party. 

2.8 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed and negotiated 
between the Parties for resolution.  In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve the 
claims, disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days of written notification from the 
aggrieved Party to the other Party, the aggrieved Party shall be free to pursue all remedies 
available at law or in equity. 

2.9 At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 
representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, 
reserves the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to 
the City under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or 
overpayments by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such 
overpayments within 30 days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the 
right to deduct such amounts owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

    2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 
otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court 
of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process 
prior to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein 
are cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any 
conflict between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this do.  

     2.11    The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 
written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent 
be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance 
from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements document, this 
provision shall control.  

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 
descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 
Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 
agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 
conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 
provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 
agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 
descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 
Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 
agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 
conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 
provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 
agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.14 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 
Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, 



 

prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The 
Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service with 
Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 

2.15 Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 
Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be 
terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a 
requirement of that subchapter. To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code 
applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information 
related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the 
governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental 
body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession 
of the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract, 
either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to 
the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting 
information related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements 
applicable to the governmental body. 

2.16   No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, a) This 
section applies only to a contract that: (1) is between a governmental entity and a company 
with 10 or more full-time employees; and (2) has a value of $100,000 or more that is to be 
paid wholly or partly from public funds of the governmental entity. (b) A governmental entity 
may not enter into a contract with a company for goods or services unless the contract 
contains a written verification from the company that it: (1) does not boycott Israel; and (2) 
will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. 

2.17 Contractor represents and warrants that: (1) it does not, and will not for the duration of the 
contract, boycott energy companies or (2) the verification required by Section 2274.002 of 
the Texas Government Code does not apply to the contract.  If Contractor is a company with 
10 or more full-time employees and if this Agreement has a value of at least $100,000 or 
more, Contractor verifies that, pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 2274, it does 
not boycott energy companies; and will not boycott energy companies during the term of the 
Agreement. This verification is not required for an agreement where a governmental entity 
determines that these requirements are inconsistent with the governmental entity’s 
constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 
obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds. 

2.18  Confidentiality. The Contractor shall retain all information received from or concerning the 
City and the City's business in strictest confidence and shall not reveal such information to 
third parties without prior written consent of the City, unless otherwise required by law. 

2.19 Indemnify. The Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the city of Lubbock and its 
elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from all suits, actions, losses, damages, 
claims, or liability of any kind, character, type, or description, including without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, all expenses of litigation, court costs, and attorney's fees, for 
injury or death to any person, or injury to any property, received or sustained by any person 
or persons or property, to the extent arising out of, related to or occasioned by, the negligent 
acts of the Contractor, its agents, employees, and/or subcontractors, related to the 
performance, operations or omissions under this agreement and/or the use or occupation of 
city owned property. The indemnity obligation provided herein shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this agreement. 



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed the day and 
year first above written.  Executed in triplicate. 

 
CITY OF LUBBOCK  CONTRACTOR 

   
_____________________________________ BY: ___________________________________ 
Mark McBrayer, Mayor  Authorized Representative 
   
ATTEST:  ___________________________________ 

  Print Name 
_____________________________________   

Cortney Paz, City Secretary  ___________________________________ 
  Address 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:   

  ___________________________________ 
_____________________________________  City, State, Zip Code 
Brianna Brown, Business Development  
Director    
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM   
 

_____________________________________ 
Kelli Leisure, Senior Assistant City Attorney   

 
 

 

 

 



Exhibit A  
City of Lubbock, TX 
RFP 25-18607-KM 

North Overton Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) Right-of-Way Hardscape Repairs 
 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS  
 

1. INTENT  
The North Overton TIF is seeking proposals for a one-year contract for the inspection, repair, or replacement of 
all damaged hardscape, including concrete and brick pavers, in the TIF District’s right-of-way areas within the 
provided boundary. Vendors shall provide with bid submittal any and all necessary information regarding this 
specification. The duration of this agreement is one (1) year, with four (4) optional one (1) year extensions.  
 

2. BACKGROUND 

The North Overton TIF is a 300+ acre revitalization project in the heart of Lubbock in a previously blighted area 
known as North Overton. In the late 1990’s, a local developer approached the City to discuss plans to redevelop 
the area. The developer and other property owners submitted a petition requesting that the City establish a TIF to 
provide public funds for constructing public improvements. In response, in March of 2002, the City created the 
North Overton TIF. The public/private partnership provided a significantly enhanced redevelopment of the North 
Overton area by investing public funds in upgraded intersections, additional right‐of‐way landscaping, improved 
street lighting, park improvements, and street and utility replacement and reconstruction. The infrastructure 
projects replaced 70-year-old utilities, provided new street lighting and signalization, upgraded an existing park, 
and provided enhanced right‐of‐way landscaping, wider sidewalks, and street furniture. The City approved site 
design guidelines for the development in Overton Park to ensure the quality of the development project. Many of 
the public improvements are now aging, and are in need of repair and/or replacement.  
 

3. SCOPE OF WORK  
The Contractor shall have the ability to make repairs and/or replace existing hardscape material in the public right-
of-way areas. The types of repairs will vary based on the specific situations, and materials should reflect the 
requirements of the North Overton Public Improvement Guidelines. The Contractor must be able to mobilize and 
respond quickly, especially at times when an emergency type of repair is needed. 

Detailed Scope:  

 Provide all labor, materials, tools, supervision and equipment to fully perform the work of repair 
and/or replacement of hardscape repairs.  

 Provide traffic control as necessary in accordance with applicable TXDOT and TMUTCD 
regulations. 

 Furnish cleanup and restoration of the site to pre-construction conditions or better. 

 Carry out operations in accordance with local, state, federal and OSHA safety regulations. 

 Provide before and after photos of each project/repair. 

 
The Contractor is responsible for creating a systematic plan to replace or repair all damaged right-of-way concrete 
and brick pavers within 45-days of the contract’s Notice to Proceed. Brick pavers must match or be of similar 
color and style to existing pavers, and should follow the design specified in the North Overton Public 
Improvement Guidelines. The contractor will then submit cost estimates for each section of repairs to the Agent 
15-days prior to anticipated construction start. The cost estimates shall include all materials and labor to complete 



work. When appropriate or requested by the Agent, the Contractor shall install or remove safety fencing and the 
City of Lubbock reserves the right to add or negate right-of-way area to the contract. 

 
The vendor shall replace or repair damaged concrete or brick structures or paving including, but not limited to, 
sidewalks, curbs, tree planter boxes, and floral planter boxes. Pricing should include the purchase and delivery 
of all materials and labor needed to complete the project. Any freight or additional charges must be included in 
the quoted prices. 

 
4. SCHEDULING  

Time is of the essence for all work contemplated by the Contract.  Contractor will make a good faith effort to start 
repairs within fifteen (15) days of notification or in accordance with a written schedule approved by the City.  If 
repair cannot be completed within a timely period, Contractor shall provide written notification to the City 
detailing reasons for delay and anticipated completion schedule within two (2) days of notification.  Normal work 
hours are anticipated to be Monday through Friday 7:00 am to 5:00 pm. Any work outside of these times needs 
prior authorization from the City at least 48 hours in advance. 
 

5. PROCTECTION OF EXISTING FACILITIES 

5.1. RIGHTS-OF-WAY 

The Contractor shall not do any work that would affect any oil, gas, sewer, or water pipeline; any telephone, 
communication cable, fiber optic transmission line, or electric transmission line; any fence; or any other 
structure, unless approved by the Agent. After authority has been obtained, the Contractor shall give said 
party due notice of its intention to begin work, and shall give said party convenient access and every facility 
for removing, shoring, supporting, or otherwise protecting such pipeline, transmission line, ditch, fence, or 
structure, and for replacing same if necessary.  

 



                North Overton Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) Right-of-Way Hardscape Repairs

Bid/No Bid 
Decision

# Item
Quantity Required 

(+/-)
UOM Unit Price Total Cost

Bid #0-2
Concrete Cost per Square 

Feet
1 SF $ 15.00 $ 15.00 

Bid #0-1
Concrete Repairs per 

Hour
1 HR $ 1,100.00 $ 1,100.00 

Bid #0-3
Masonry Repairs per 

Hour
1 HR $ 1,300.00 $ 1,300.00 

Bid #0-4
Brick Paver Cost per 

Square Feet
1 SF $ 90.00 $ 90.00 

$ 2,505.00 

$ 2,505.00 

                                                                                   Price Proposal

Exhibit B



Exhibit C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

 

1. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  

1.1. Prior to the approval of this contract by the City, the Contractor shall furnish a 
completed Insurance Certificate to the City, which shall be completed by an agent 
authorized to bind the named underwriter(s) to the coverages, limits, and termination 
provisions shown thereon, and which shall furnish and contain all required 
information referenced or indicated thereon.  THE CITY SHALL HAVE NO DUTY 
TO PAY OR PERFORM UNDER THIS CONTRACT UNTIL SUCH 
CERTIFICATE SHALL HAVE BEEN DELIVERED TO THE CITY. 

1.2. The City reserves the right to review the insurance requirements of this section during 
the effective period of the contract and to require adjustment of insurance coverages 
and their limits when deemed necessary and prudent by the City based upon changes 
in statutory law, court decisions, or the claims history of the industry as well as the 
Contractor. 

1.3. Subject to the Contractor's right to maintain reasonable deductibles in such amounts 
as are approved by the City, the Contractor shall obtain and maintain in full force and 
effect for the duration of this contract, and any extension hereof, at Contractor's sole 
expense, insurance coverage written by companies approved by the State of Texas 
and acceptable to the City, in the following type(s) and amount(s): 

Commercial General Liability Requirements: $1M occurrence / $2M aggregate 
(can be combined with an Excess Liability to meet requirement). CGL is required 
in ALL contracts. It is perhaps the most important of all insurance policies in a 
contractual relationship. It insures the Contractor has broad liability coverage for 
contractual activities and for completed operations. 
 
Commercial General Liability to include Products – Completion/OP, Personal and 
Advertising Injury, Contractual Liability, Fire Damage (any one fire), and Medical 
Expenses (any one person). 
 
Automobile Liability Requirements: 
$1M/occurrence is needed  
Workers Compensation and Employer Liability Requirements: Statutory. If the 
vendor is an independent contractor with no employees and are exempt from 
providing Workers' Compensation coverage, they must sign a waiver (obtained 
from COL Purchasing) and include a copy of their driver's license. Employer 
Liability ($1M) is required with Workers Compensation. 

 
 The City of Lubbock (including its officials, employees and volunteers) shall 

be afforded additional insured status on a primary and non-contributory 
basis on all liability policies except professional liabilities and workers' comp. 

 Waivers of Subrogation are required for CGL, AL, and WC. 
 To Include Products of Completed Operations endorsement. 
 Carrier will provide a 30-day written notice of cancellation, 10-day written 

notice for non- payment. 
 
 
 



 
 

 Carriers must meet an A.M. Best rating of A- or better. 
 Subcontractors must carry same limits as listed above. 

 
IMPORTANT:  POLICY ENDORSEMENTS 

The Contractor will provide copies of the policies without expense, to the City and all 
endorsements thereto and may make any reasonable request for deletion, revision, or 
modification of particular policy terms, conditions, limitations, or exclusions (except where 
policy provisions are established by law or regulation binding upon either of the parties hereto 
or the underwriter of any of such policies).  Upon such request by the City, the Contractor shall 
exercise reasonable efforts to accomplish such changes in policy coverages, and shall pay the 
cost thereof. Any costs will be paid by the Contractor.  

REQUIRED PROVISIONS 

The Contractor agrees that with respect to the above required insurance, all insurance contracts 
and certificate(s) of insurance will contain and state, in writing, on the certificate or its 
attachment, the following required provisions: 

a. Name the City of Lubbock and its officers, employees, and elected 
representatives as additional insureds, (as the interest of each insured may appear) 
as to all applicable coverage; 

b. Provide for 30 days notice to the City for cancellation, nonrenewal, or material 
change; 

c. Provide for notice to the City at the address shown below by registered mail; 

d. The Contractor agrees to waive subrogation against the City of Lubbock, its 
officers, employees, and elected representatives for injuries, including death, 
property damage, or any other loss to the extent same may be covered by the 
proceeds of insurance; 

e. Provide that all provisions of this contract concerning liability, duty, and standard 
of care together with the indemnification provision, shall be underwritten by 
contractual liability coverage sufficient to include such obligations within 
applicable policies. 

NOTICES 

The Contractor shall notify the City in the event of any change in coverage and shall give such 
notices not less than 30 days prior the change, which notice must be accompanied by a 
replacement CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE. 

All notices shall be given to the City at the following address: 

    Marta Alvarez, Director of Purchasing & Contract Management 
    City of Lubbock 

1314Avenue K, 9th Floor 
    Lubbock, Texas  79401 

Approval, disapproval, or failure to act by the City regarding any insurance supplied by the 
Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of full responsibility or liability for damages and 
accidents as set forth in the contract documents.  Neither shall the bankruptcy, insolvency, or 
denial of liability by the insurance company exonerate the Contractor from liability. 

 



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
Project Summary 

 
RFP 25-18607-KM 

North Overton Tax Increment Financing District (TIF) Right-of-Way Hardscape Repairs 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on January 19, 2025 & January 26, 
2025. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on the State of Texas Electronic State Business Daily.  
Notice was published on Bonfire.com from January 17 to February 18, 2025 
23 vendors downloaded the documents using Bonfire.com. 
48 vendors were notified separately.  
 1 vendor submitted a proposal. 

 



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Chipotle's Mexican Grill Development Agreement - Tract 1C-1 23,572$                 

McCanton Wood Water Loop Agreement - Tract 1C-1 22,000                   

LKM Matador Development Agreement - Tract 1B-2 161,765                 

Gold Properties, LLC Development Agreement - Tract 1C-3A 53,717                   

ACC OP (Tract 6) Contract 93,000                   

Racer Classic Car Wash 9,351                     

2401 9th Street LLC (Potbelly) 51,878                   

Jackie Moon Properties, LLC 78,547                   

MH Civic Constructors - GGB 292,572                 

Public improvements Reimbursement (55,719)                  

Landscaping in the Parkway 26,723                   

Haven Campus Communities - Lubbock, LLC 322,155                 

City of Lubbock Staff Time 4,079                     

ACC OP (Tracts 32 and 33) LLC 583,287                 

Haven Campus Communities 340,549                 

West Texas Services, Inc - GGB 514,856                 

West Texas Services, Inc - Ramirez 450,000                 

West Texas Services, Inc - 9th and 10th Street 192,210                 

West Texas Services, Inc - GGB Medians 606,209                 

West Texas Services, Inc. Mac Davis Roundabout $425,040

West Texas Services - 9th and 10th Street Amendment No.1 $44,911

West Texas Services - 9th and 10th Street Amendment No.2 $137,203

West Texas Services - 9th and 10th Street Amendment No. 3 $63,747

West Texas Services, Inc. Contract 17764 Amendment No.4 119,478                 

Pland Collaborative Contract 18618 - Irrigation Improvements 54,335                   

Agenda Item May 13, 2025

MH Civil Constructors, Inc. Contract 18607 Hardscape Repair 500,000                 

Encumbered/Expended to Date 5,115,465              

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Public Improvements 1,531,886              

Remaining Appropriation 1,531,886              

Total Appropriation To Date 6,647,351$            

92254

North Overton TIF Public Improvements

City of Lubbock, TX

May 13, 2025

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail



Project Scope

Construction of public improvements in the  right-of-way  for the  remaining undeveloped tracts.  Also included in the  project
is the  repair or replacement of public improvements in the  right of way  for already  developed areas,  such as the  re location
and replacement of bollards on Glenna Goodacre  Boulevard and any  other replacement of the  original construction that is
needed.

Project Justi�cation

The project is part of the ongoing redevelopment in the North Overton TIF to replace 70-year old
infrastructure.

Completed projects:

GGB Completion - $87,458.21

Chipotles Development Agreement - $23,571.60

LKM Matador Development Agreement (92254B) - $161,765

Golden Properties Agreement (92254C)- 53,716.92

Tract 6 Development Agreement (92254D) - 93,000

Racer Classic Car Wash Development Agreement (92254E) - $8,640

2402 9th Street Development Agreement (92254F) - $51,878

Jackie Moon Development Agreement (92254G) - 78,547

ACC OPP Development Agreement (92254H) - $583,287

Haven Campus Communities - 18Nineteen (92254I) - $322,155

Removal of Pedestrian Lights - $1800.96

Irrigation Water Line Relocate Tract 3 - $19,625

McCantonwood Agreement - $22,105

Haven II Development Agreement - $340,549

Completion of the landscaping in the parkway on the last two blocks of GGB - $514,855

2022-23: Completed a project to install public improvements on Glenna Goodacre Blvd. between Avenue U and Avenue T.

2023-24: Completed a landscaping project in the public right-of-way on 9th and 10th Streets between Avenue U and Avenue S. 

2023-24: Completed a landscaping project in the Glenna Goodacre medians. 

2023-24: Started a repair project in the roundabout and adjacent right-of-way at Mac Davis and Avenue X. 

CIP 92254CIP 92254 North Overton TIF Public North Overton TIF Public
ImprovementsImprovements

Installation and Repair of Public ImprovementsInstallation and Repair of Public Improvements

Project Manager: Brianna Brown - Business DevelopmentProject Manager: Brianna Brown - Business Development



Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:
Community Improvement, Economic Development

Prior to FY 2016-17 $2,247,032 had been
appropriated
FY 2016-17 $150,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2016-O0135
FY 2017-18 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2017-O0111
FY 2021-22 $249,680 was reassigned by BCR
2022-26
FY 2022-23 $1,000,000 was appropriated by
Ord. 2022-O0136
FY 2023-24 $750,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0108
FY 2023-24 $750,000 was appropriated by Ord.
2023-O0151

Project Dates Project Location

FY 2024-25: Complete a public improvement
project on the South side of Glenna Goodacre
Boulevard between Avenue Q and Avenue R;
Complete an irrigation optimization project
through the North Overton TIF District. 

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

Construction $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

Project Funding

Funding to Date 2024 - 25 Budget 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget

General Fund CO Bonds $1,500,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

North Overton TIF Fund Cash $3,400,320 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

North Overton TIF Fund Bonds $747,031 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $5,647,351 $1,000,000 $750,000 $750,000 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2024-25 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13400 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 24. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 1 to Contract 18160, a Master Services Agreement with Vexus Fiber,
to add internet business services to additional City facilities.

Item Summary
Amendment No. 1 to Contract 18160, a Master Services Agreement with Vexus Fiber for
internet business services, will allow the City to add and remove various locations that require
internet services and upgrades.  New services will be added to the Health Department, Police
Property Room/Forensics, LP&L Engineering and the Burgess Rushing Tennis Center.  The
total installation and monthly charges shall not exceed $300,000.

This agreement is offered under the purchasing cooperative TIPS Contract 240303 -
Telephone and Communications Data Systems and Solutions.

Fiscal Impact
The Master Services Agreement with Vexus Fiber will be for 5-years through July 22, 2029,
and will be funded by various departments and the Information Technology Department
Operating Budget.  The total new and existing monthly charges will be $60,000 annually, and
will be budgeted in the Information Technology Operating Fund.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Jennifer Frescaz, Chief Information Officer

Attachments
Resolution _Vexus Fiber Amendment 
Amendment _Vexus Fiber 







 AI# 13432 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 25. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Fleet Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Purchase
Order 31089895, with Lake Country Chevrolet Inc., for the purchase of ten (10) Replacement
Vehicles for the Lubbock Police Department.

Item Summary
The ten vehicles will be replacements for vehicles lost in automobile accidents. The purchase
price of the vehicles includes the cost of the up-fit equipment and installation, which will be
performed by a third-party vendor.
 
Nine (9) new Police SUVs will be for LPD Police Patrol and one (1) Pickup Truck will be for
LPD Police Training.
 
Lake Country Chevrolet submitted a quote made under TIPS Contract 240901 (Transportation
Vehicles):
 
LPD Police Patrol (5735) – SUV with Equipment & Up-Fitting (9 Units)
  

Vehicle Unit Price Total Vehicle Cost
2025/2026 Chevrolet Tahoe PPV 4x4 $80,368.32 9 vehicles - $723,314.88

 
LPD Police Training (5713) – Pickup Truck with Equipment & Up-Fitting (1 Unit)
 

Vehicle Unit Price Total Vehicle Cost
2024 Chevrolet Silverado Crew Cab, 4x4 $61,242.80 1 vehicle - $61,242.80

The total cost of the purchase from Lake Country Chevrolet is $784,557.68 ($723,314.88 +
$61,242.80) for the 10 vehicles.

Fiscal Impact
Purchase Order 31089895, with Lake Country Chevrolet, Inc., of Jasper, Texas,



Purchase Order 31089895, with Lake Country Chevrolet, Inc., of Jasper, Texas,
for $784,557.68, for the vehicles, their equipment, and the up-fitting services, will be funded
from the following 3 accounts:
  

Risk Management Account - $172,926.29
LPD Insurance Deductible - $10,000.00
LPD Wrecked Vehicle Account - $601,631.39         

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
Dominic Esperat, Director of Fleet Operations
 

Attachments
Resolution 
Purchase Order 













 AI# 13412 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 26. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Service
Contract 18847, with Scott-Merriman, Inc., for document scanning and reproduction services
in regard to City of Lubbock birth and death records. 

Item Summary
This contract with Scott-Merriman, Inc. will restore approximately 250,000 of the most
severely damaged records. As part of the restoration process, the company will conduct on-site
scanning of the affected records and recreate them as new, permanent documents. These
scanned records will be printed on archival-quality paper, assembled into new binders, and
delivered back to the Vital Statistics Office.

Additionally, the project includes the replacement of 505 books to address the remainder of the
damaged birth and death volumes. The transition of these records into the new books will be
carried out by the Vital Statistics staff. Furthermore, six large red binders containing
hand-written birth certificates from the 1940s and 1950s will be carefully removed from their
current bindings and transferred into updated archival binders to preserve their integrity.

The project will be executed in two phases to ensure quality and satisfaction.

Phase 1 will involve the restoration of 73 volumes of death records, totaling approximately
50,000 images, with anticipated completion before the end of 2025.
Phase 2 will focus on 373 volumes of birth records, encompassing an estimated 200,000
images.

Upon completion of each phase, the final restored records will be hand-delivered by Scott
Merriman, Inc.

Following a comprehensive audit by the Vital Statistics staff to ensure accuracy and
completeness, the original damaged records will be securely and properly destroyed.

Fiscal Impact
Service Contract 18847 for $450,000, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 8665.



Service Contract 18847 for $450,000, is funded in Capital Improvement Project 8665.

These funds were paid to the City of Lubbock by MCCi, LLC and DRS Imaging Services,
LLC in connection with a settlement agreement, concerning damage to the City of Lubbock's
Vital Statistics records. The settlement agreement was approved by the City Council on
December 10, 2024 (Resolution No. 2024-R0582).

Staff/Board Recommending
Courtney Paz, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution - Scott Merriman 
Agreement - Scott Merriman 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 



























City of Lubbock, TX
Capital Project

Project Cost Detail
May 13, 2025

Capital Project Number: 8665
Capital Project Name: Document Management System

Budget
Encumbered/Expended

MCCI,LLC  $                214,142
Office Supplies                           568
Professional Services                             45

Agenda Item May 13, 2025
Scott-Merriman Inc. Contract #18847                    450,000

  Encumbered/Expended To Date                    664,755

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation
Document Management                           246

  Remaining Appropriation                           246

Total Appropriation  $                665,000



Project Scope

To comply with state laws and regulations; to facilitate access and retention of vital records; and to

provide a backup for the city’s vital records in case of disaster. Local Government Records Act, Chapter

201, requires the efficient management of local government records; the preservation of local

government records of permanent value; convenient access to local records; and uniform records and

procedures for the maintenance, preservation, and disposition of local government records for public

purposes. Local government records created or received in the transaction of official business or the

creation or maintenance of which were paid for by public funds are declared to be public property, are

subject to the provisions of Chapter 201 Local Government Code and to Subchapter J, Chapter 441

Government Code. The process for obtaining a birth or death record requires a staff member to visit

the records vault, which contains over 100 years of vital records stored in binders, and spend time

searching for that specific record. The current process for processing a birth application for a long

form or when a record is not available in TxEVER or for all death certificates is: 1) Review and accept

an application 2) Verify identity/relationship of request 3) Look up a file number using the an Access

database 4) Pull certificates from binders in the records vault 5) Copy certificates on certified paper (if

an amendment has been filed, documents must be shrunk and manipulated to fit the security paper) 6)

Write issuance information on back of the original certificate 7) Issue certificate to the citizen, collect

payment 8) Refile original certificate. An improved process would be to store the records in the

Laserfiche repository, which the City of Lubbock currently uses to house documents in a variety of

departments. The retrieval process of obtaining a birth or death record would be a much simpler

process. Rather than checking a variety of logs and databases that have been maintained and

continued by the department, Vital Statistics would be able to go to one uniform location, Laserfiche,

to look up the document being requested. Also, this would easily allow the department to track the

number of times a record has been issued (records can only be issued 10 times in a lifetime for

security purposes). Likewise, there are a variety of reports and logs that are required by the state, and

housing birth and death records in Laserfiche would simplify these processes and streamline the

reporting process. The Vital Statistics department currently maintains approximately 400,000 records,

and those numbers are growing daily with continued births and deaths occurring in Lubbock County.

We are seeking to outsource the scanning and indexing of the birth and death records into Laserfiche.

Once this process is complete, the department will index all new records into Laserfiche and make

Laserfiche a part of their everyday processes. The Vital Statistics conversion to Laserfiche would

support the ongoing City of Lubbock project for departments to utilize the database. Currently, we have

the following City departments using Laserfiche for various reasons: Accounting, Airport, Budget,

Building Safety, City Attorney, City Manager, City Prosecutor, City Secretary, Community Development

Finance, Civic Center, Codes, Engineering, Fire Administration, Fire Marshall, Health Department,

Human Resources, Municipal Court, Police Records, Planning, Purchasing, Public Information Office,

Risk Management, Traffic, Vital Statistics, and Water Utilities. These are positive results since

upgrading to the Laserfiche Rio platform in 2018. Currently, the City of Lubbock holds 93 licenses, and

70 additional licenses would need to be purchased to serve all of the users currently using Laserfiche.

At present, we have departments sharing licenses, but this is not good practice as it is a requirement

of Laserfiche for each user to have their own license. The Human Resources department currently has

15 people utilizing Laserfiche on 1 license. Purchasing the much-needed additional licenses would

allow the City of Lubbock to be in compliance with Laserfiche and vastly improve the audit trail behind

every record. This is especially important since we now have a policy that allows for the destruction of

permanent documents as long as they are digitized and housed in the Laserfiche repository.

CIP 8665CIP 8665 Document Management System Document Management System
AdministrativeAdministrative

Project Manager: Courtney PazProject Manager: Courtney Paz   - City Secretary- City Secretary



Project Justification

Once the records have been scanned, the Vital Statistics department will be extensively trained and

the process of saving all new certificates in Laserfiche will be implemented. The process for issuing

birth and death records will greatly improve, therefore improving the customer service in the

department. The process of scanning and indexing approximately 400,000 records would take years to

finish due to the volume of customers the Vital Statistics Department assists on a daily basis. By

employing an outside party to scan these records, it would take approximately 2-3 weeks to complete.

If funded, Vital Statistics could be utilizing this new process by the end of 2021. Furthermore, once the

licensing has been acquired, the Office of the City Secretary and I.T. Department will begin working to

ensure all individuals utilizing Laserfiche are all using their own license. Currently, whenever a new

department is interested in Laserfiche, they are informed that they will need to purchase licenses in

order to be able to utilize the repository.

Project Highlights Project History

Council Priorities Addressed:

The City acquired a document management

system (Laserfiche) in 2015 and has continued to

expand and add additional departments. The

2018 upgrade to Laserfiche has given us the

ability to add more departments and provide more

documents on public portals (example –

Resolutions and Ordinances are now available to

the public through the City of Lubbock website).

Since more departments are utilizing Laserfiche,

storage requirements have decreased, records are

more accessible, and the City of Lubbock has

been able to become more transparent with its

citizens. Devising Vital Statistics as a fully

operational department on Laserfiche would

stream line the process for obtaining a birth or

death record and dramatically increase the

customer experience in the Vital Statistics

department. Serving over 1,000 customers per

month, the Vital Statistics Department becoming

fully operational on Laserfiche would modernize

the process for obtaining a birth or death record

and dramatically improve the customer

experience.

FY 2021-22 $215,000 was appropriated by Ord.

2021-O0126+

FY 2024-25 $450,000 was appropriated by Ord

2025-O0022

Project Dates Project Location

Project Start Date: October 1, 2021

Project End Date: September 30, 2026

Internal Project

Project Appropriations

Appropriation to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Construction $665,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $665,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0



Project Funding

Funding to Date 2025 - 26 Budget 2026 - 27 Budget 2027 - 28 Budget 2028 - 29 Budget 2029 - 30 Budget 2030 - 31 Budget

Proceeds from Settlement Agreement $450,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

General Fund Cash $215,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $665,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Operating Budget Impacts

Description 2025-26 2026-27 2027-28 2028-29 2029-30 2030-31 Total

No Impact Anticipated $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Powered by OpenGov

https://opengov.com/


 AI# 13370 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 27. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 1): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0055, for
Zone Case 3520, a request of Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. for D & T Farms, for a zone
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Light Industrial District (LI),
generally located north of East Bluefield Street and east of North Guava Avenue, on 404.5
acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 43.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance, unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report
attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the request. The Planning and
Zoning Commission heard this case on April 3, 2025, and recommended approval of the
request by a unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3520 
Staff Report 3520 
Documentation 3520 











Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3520 
City Council Meeting April 22, 2025 

Applicant Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc. 

Property Owner D & T Farms 

Council District 1 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• March 25, 2025, Ordinance No. 2025-O0042: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned

Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2).

• April 3, 2025, Zone Case 3520: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a request

for a zone change from SF-2 to Light Industrial District (LI) by a vote of 7-0-0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 14

• Received In Favor: 0

• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 404.5 acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 43. Currently, the property 

is vacant.  

Adjacent Property Development  

The property is adjacent to the city limits to the east and south. The property to the north and west is zoned 

Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and is being used as an airport.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is generally located north of East Bluefield Street and east of North Guava Avenue, on 404.5 

acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 43. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Low Density 

Single-Family District (SF-2) to Light Industrial District (LI). 

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Requested zoning: Light Industrial District (LI) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the existing Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide for two types of residential 

subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 

on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 



Page 2 of 2 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resource protection. 

The intent of the requested Light Industrial District (LI) is to “provide for industrial uses (non-retail) that are 

less intensive than what can be accommodated into General Industrial and that may include office, 

warehousing, distribution, and light assembly of parts, materials, and equipment, with operations conducted 

primarily indoors without the creation of smoke, gas, odor, dust, soot, or other noxious elements.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The location is along Olive Avenue and North Guava Avenue which are designated as a Minor Arterial and 

Collector, respectively, by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials provide connectivity across the 

transportation network and are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs to local traffic 

and regional traffic. Collectors are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds, and 

provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Industrial land uses. The request does conform to this 

designation, and would be appropriate, considering the existing adjacent zoning districts and land uses. 

Therefore, this request is in complete conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the uses allowed in the LI Distirct. 

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Aerial Map 

D. Zoning Map 

E.  Future Land Use Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and Supporting Documentation 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer   Greg Hernandez 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2103  806-775-3147 

sspencer@mylubbock.us  ghernandez@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3520 

 

Allowable Uses:  Light Industrial District (LI) 

Transportation:   The proposed development has a point of access from North Guava Avenue and 
Olive Avenue. 

Thoroughfare  Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

North Guava Avenue, 
Collector, Partial 

R.O.W. 20 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 46 feet, 4 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

Olive Avenue, Minor 
Arterial, Partial 

R.O.W. 36 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, unpaved 

R.O.W. 66 feet, 5 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

   

Engineering Comments:   No comments. 

Public Works Comments:   No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:   No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:   No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 1 

3.1       Zone Case 3520: Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., for D & T Farms, request for a zone change from 
Low Density Single‐Family District (SF‐2) to Light Industrial District (LI), at:  

 Generally  located north of East Bluefield Street and east of North Guava Avenue, on 404.5 
acres of unplatted land out of Block A, Section 43. 

PLANNER SHANER SPENCER gave a presentation and answered questions  from  the Commission.  Staff has no 
objection to the request. 

APPLICANT TERRY HOLEMAN, 1601 Avenue N, with Hugo Reed and Associates, Inc., gave comments about the 
request and answered questions from the Commission. 

APPLICANT MONT McCLENDON, 1500 Broadway, gave comments about the request and answered questions 
from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3520, a motion was made by ROBERT WOOD and seconded by BRANDON HARDAWAY 
to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 











3520 

 

 

View east. Subject property. 

 

  

View south.  

View north.  

 

View west. 



Lubbock Planning Department 
PO Box 2000 / 1314 Avenue K 

Lubbock, TX 79457 
APPLICATION FOR ZONING CHANGE 

 Project Information 

Location or Address:__________________________________________________________________________ 

Lots/Tracts:_________________________________________________________________________________ 

Survey & Abstract:___________________________________________________________________________ 

Metes and Bounds Attached:     Yes     �      No     � Total Acreage of Request:_______________________ 

Existing Land Use:___________________________ Existing Zoning:_______________________________ 

Requested Zoning:___________________________________________________________________________ 

If property is not subdivided, will a preliminary plat be submitted?   Yes     �       No     � 

    Representative/Agent Information (if different from owner) 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Applicant’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:_______________________________________ 

 Owner Information 

Firm Name:________________________________________________________________________________ 

Owner:___________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address:____________________________________  City:__________________________  State:__________ 

ZIP Code:_________________ Telephone:______________________ Email:___________________________ 

Property Owner’s Signature:__________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

    Preparer Information 

Preparer’s Signature:________________________________________________________________________ 

Date:________________________________ Printed Name:________________________________________ 

 For City Use Only 

Zone Case No:__________________________ Planning and Zoning Commission Date: __________________ 

Request for zoning change from:____________________________ To:________________________________ 

Lots:___________________________________ Blocks:_____________________________________________ 

Addition:__________________________________________________________________________________ 

If you have any questions pertaining to the zoning process, please contact the City of Lubbock Planning Department 
by phone at (806) 775 - 2108 or by e-mail at cityplanning@mylubbock.us.  

By signing this application, Applicant agrees and warrants that any and all materials submitted to the City in support or reference to this application are not 
protected by copyrights or, in cases of potential copyrighted materials, the Applicant is the sole owner of any copyrighted interest and grants to the City 
permission and license to reproduce, publish, distribute and utilize such materials.

mailto:cityplanning@mylubbock.us
Mont McClendon





 AI# 13371 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 28. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 3): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0056, for
Zone Case 1901-A, a request of 7B Building and Development, LLC for Buslon, Inc., for a
zone change from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) and Neighborhood
Commercial District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC), at 5106 Slide Road,
located west of Slide Road and south of 51st Street, Buster Long Addition, the west 95.16 feet
of Lot 103, and the west 95.16 feet of the north 7 feet of Lot 102.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance, unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report
attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the request. The Planning and
Zoning Commission heard this case on April 3, 2025, and recommended approval of the
request by a unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 1901-A 
Staff Report 1901-A 
Documentation 1901-A 







Page 1 of 3 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 1901-A 
City Council Meeting April 22, 2025 

Applicant 7B Building and Development, LLC 

Property Owner Buslon, Inc. 

Council District 3 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958, Ordinance No. 2535:  The subject property was annexed into city limits.

• April 23, 1959, Zone Case 763, Ordinance No. 2760: The subject property was zoned Single-Family District

(R-1).

• February 1, 1968, Zone Case 1511, Ordinance No. 5396: The subject property was rezoned from R-1 to

Local Retail District (C-2).

• November 11, 1971, Zone Case 1771, Ordinance No. 6216: The subject property was rezoned from C-2 to

Family Apartment District (A-1).

• June 14, 1973, Zone Case 1901, Ordinance No. 6646: A portion of the subject property was rezoned from

A-1 to Local Retail District (C-2).

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned

from A-1 to Medium Density Residential District (MDR), and from C-2 to Neighborhood Commercial District

(NC) with the adoption of the Unified Development Code.

• April 3, 2025, Zone Case 1901-A: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request for a zone change from MDR and NC to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) by a vote of 7-0-0.

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 26

• Received In Favor: 5

• Received In Opposition: 1

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was platted on May 15, 1973, as Buster Long Addition, Lots 102 and 103. The existing 

structure was constructed in 1973. 

Adjacent Property Development  

The surrounding property is zoned NC to the west, south and north, with Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) to 

the east. The surrounding properties are all developed with commercial structures.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 5106 Slide Road, located west of Slide Road and south of 51st Street, Buster 

Long Addition, the west 95.16 feet of Lot 103 and the west 95.16 feet of the north 7 feet of Lot 102. The applicant 

is requesting a zone change from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) and Neighborhood Commercial 

District (NC) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC). 

Current zoning: Medium Density Residential District (MDR) 

Current zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

Requested zoning: Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the existing Medium Density Residential District (MDR) is “to provide for a village neighborhood 

environment of smaller-sized lots, to include dwellings such as duplexes, townhouses, and multiplexes.” 

 

The intent of the existing Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) is “to provide for small-scale retail and 

moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 

standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

 

The intent of the requested Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) is “to provide for a broad range of single-use 

and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service and office uses typically with 

on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased 

intensity.  

 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  

The location is along 51st Street which is designated as a Local Street by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. 

Local Streets provide access to smaller, destination oriented areas, such as neighborhoods, subdivisions or local 

business districts. 

 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. The request conforms to this designation 

and would be appropriate, considering the existing adjacent zoning districts and land uses. Therefore, this 

request is in complete conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance.  

 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the uses allowed in the AC District.  

 

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

 

Attachments 

A. Case Information      

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Replies  

  

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Staff Contacts 

Shane Spencer     Greg Hernandez 

Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department   Planning Department 

806-775-2103    806-775-3147 

sspencer@mylubbock.us   ghernandez@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sspencer@mylubbock.us
mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 1901-A 

 

Allowable Uses:  Auto‐Urban Commercial District (AC) 

Transportation:   The proposed development has a point of access from 51st Street. 

Thoroughfare  Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

51st Street, Local 
Street, Complete 

R.O.W. 40 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 40 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

   

Engineering Comments:   No comments. 

Public Works Comments:   No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:   No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:   No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes  

District 3 

3.2       Zone Case 1901‐A: 7B Building and Development, LLC, for Buslon, Inc., request for a zone change 

from Medium Density Residential District (MDR) and Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) to 

Auto‐Urban Commercial District (AC), at:  

 5106 Slide Road, located west of Slide Road and south of 51st Street, Buster Long Addition, 

the west 95.16 feet of Lot 103, and the west 95.16 feet of the north 7 feet of Lot 102. 

PLANNER SHANER SPENCER gave a presentation and answered questions  from  the Commission.  Staff has no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT SUSAN CROSSI, 13105 Dover Avenue, with 7B Building and Development, LLC, gave comments 

about the request and answered questions from the Commission. 

IN FAVOR SCOTT HICKS, 4513 13th Street, owner of Grime Scene Car Wash, gave comments about the request 

and answered questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition to the request. 

In  the matter of Zone Case 1901‐A, a motion was made by DREW GRAY and seconded by TANNER NOBLE  to 
approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 













1901-A 

 

 

View south. Subject property. 

 

  

View east.  

View north.  

 

View west. 





S
L

ID
E

 R
O

A
D

5 1 S T  S T R E E T
12

8'

11
3'

EXIT

T

130' WASH TUNNEL

ENTRANCE

235'

24'

1 STD
ADA STALL12 VACUUM STALLS

28
'

18
'12'

(TYP)

26'

BA
IL

O
U

T

A
L

L
E

Y

3 STANDARD STALLS

9'
(T

YP
)

18'

26'

24
'

24' 220'

24
'

Sheet No.:
1 of 1

Sheet:
Preliminary Site Plan

Date:
01.29.2025

No. Revision Desc. Date

N

25-xxx

Plan By: Development By:

Phone: 937.388.0060
www.burkhardtinc.com

Prepared For:

7B Commercial Construction
13105 Dover Avenue
Lubbock, TX 79424

Phone: 806.368.7843

1      Original Issue Preliminary Site Plan Issue. 01.14.25

1" = 60'

0 30 60

Site Plan for this property is based solely on information provided by the seller of said property
and public data. Plan accuracy depends entirely upon information provided and is made without
benefit of topographic or boundary survey, imposed building setbacks, restrictive development
covenants, availability of public utilities, and location of any types of easement which may affect
the utilization of the property.
This plan is for schematic purposes only and is not to be understood or construed as having
provided engineering or surveying services.

LEGEND

Lot Size = 0.69±acres

Parking:
Employee: 5 spaces
Vacuum: 12 spaces

NOTES

Slide Road and 51st Street
Lubbock, Lubbock County, TX 79414

Location:

2      Revised per Developer's Comments. 01.23.25
3      Revised per Developer's Comments. 01.29.25
4      Revised per Developer's Comments. 01.29.25

 GRIME SCENE



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To whom it may concern, 

7B Building and Development, LLC (“7BD”) is the preferred developer and general 
contractor for Grime Scene Car Wash (“Grime Scene”), a locally owned and operated 
tunnel-styled express car wash that has entered the Lubbock Market to compete with the 
national chains and provide a high-quality, community-focused car wash experience to 
Lubbock residents. 

Grime Scene Car Wash is under contract to purchase an approximately 0.731 acre +/- 
property located at the southwest corner of 51st Street and Slide Road (the “Property”). 
  
According to the City of Lubbock Zoning Map, the Property is comprised of a mixture of 
Auto-Urban Commercial (“AC”), Medium Density Residential (“MDR”), and 
Neighborhood Commercial (“NC”) zoning designations. To align with the existing Auto 
Urban Commercial (“AC”) zoning on the parcel fronting Slide Rd, we are requesting to 
rezone the remaining portion of the property from MDR and NC to AC. This will 
allow for the development of Grime Scene Car Wash and its proposed use as an automated 
tunnel-styled car wash. 
 
This project represents a multi-million-dollar investment in the community, bringing new 
development to an area that has not seen significant new construction in quite some time. 
We believe this will help revitalize the corridor while providing valuable service to residents 
and businesses nearby. 

Best regards, 
 

 
 

BUILDING 
DEVELOPMENT 

& 





















 AI# 13372 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 29. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 4): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0057, for
Zone Case 3519, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Red Canyon Development, LLC, for
a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial
District (AC), at 16002 Quaker Avenue, located west of Quaker Avenue and north of
Woodrow Road, on 14.123 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance, unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report
attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the request. The Planning and
Zoning Commission heard this case on April 3, 2025, and recommended approval of the
request by a unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3519 
Staff Report 3519 
Documentation 3519 













Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3519 
City Council Meeting April 22, 2025 

 
Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 
 
Property Owner  Red Canyon Development, LLC 
 
Council District   4 
 
Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 13, 2022, Ordinance No. O0173: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned 
Transition District (T). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned 
from Transition District (T) to Low Density Single-Family (SF-2), with the adoption of the Unified 
Development Code. 

• April 3, 2025, Zone Case 3519: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 
request for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial (AC) by a 
vote of 7-0-0.  
 

Notification Summary   
• Notifications Sent: 22 
• Received In Favor: 5 
• Received In Opposition: 0 

 
Site Conditions and History 
 The subject property consists of 14.123 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6. Currently, the 
property is vacant. 
 
Adjacent Property Development  
The surrounding properties are zoned SF-2 to the west, north, and south, with the remainder of the surrounding 
property to the east and south being outside of the city limits.  To the north and west is Lubbock-Cooper Liberty 
High School.  There is an electrical substation to the north, and there is vacant property and homes to the east 
and south.  
 
Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 16002 Quaker Avenue, located west of Quaker Avenue and north of 
Woodrow Road, on 14.123 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6.  The applicant is requesting a zone 
change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC).  
 
Current zoning:   Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 
 
Requested zoning:   Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) 
 
Intent Statements 
The intent of the existing Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) District is to provide for two types of residential 

subdivisions: 
 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is located 
on private lots. 



Page 2 of 2 
 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 
space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the district 
while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well as for 
recreational amenities and resource protection. 

 
The intent of the requested Auto-Urban Commercial District (AC) is to provide for “a broad range of single-use 
and multi-tenant centers that vary in scale, and that provide for retail, service, and office uses typically with 
on-site surface parking. The district may be located along major thoroughfares or at nodes with increased 
intensity.” 
 
Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along Quaker Avenue and Woodrow Road designated as Principal Arterial Streets by the Master 
Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterial streets are continuous routes whose function is to serve high volume needs of 
local traffic and regional traffic. 
 
Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development.  
 
Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Low Density Residential land uses. Although the proposed zone 
change to AC would not be in conformance with this designation, the property is on the corner of two Principal 
Arterial Streets creating a retail node. Therefore, this request is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 
Principles.  
 
Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located on two Principal 
Arterial streets and is appropriate adjacent to nearby land uses.  
 
Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed zone change, and the uses allowed in the AC District. The property 
will need to be platted before further development can take place.   
 
Conclusion 
Staff has no objection to the request. 
 
Attachments 
A. Case Information      
B. Thoroughfare Plan Map 
C. Notification Map  
D. Aerial Map 
E. Zoning Map 
F. Future Land Use Map 
G. Photos 
H. Application and Supporting Documentation 
I. Response Letters 
 
 
Staff Contacts 
Sam Brackeen     Gregory Hernandez 
Planner     Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department   Planning Department 
806-775-2120    806-775-3147 
sbrackeen@mylubbock.us  ghernandez@mylubbock.us 

mailto:sbrackeen@mylubbock.us
mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3519 

 

Allowable Uses:  Auto‐Urban Commercial (AC)  

Transportation:   The  proposed  development  has  points  of  access  from  Quaker  Avenue  and 

Woodrow Road. 

Thoroughfare  Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Quaker Avenue, 
Principal Arterial 

(partial) 

R.O.W. 24 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, unpaved. 

R.O.W. 66 feet, 5 lane, 
divided, paved. 

Woodrow Road, 
Principal Arterial 

(partial) 

R.O.W. 24 feet, 2 lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W. 88 feet, 7 lane, 
divided, paved. 

   

Engineering Comments:   No comments. 

Public Works Comments:   No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:   No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:   No comments. 

 

 

Draf Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 4 

3.3       Zone Case 3519: AMD Engineering, LLC, for Red Canyon Development, LLC, request for a zone change 

from Low Density Single‐Family District (SF‐2) to Auto‐Urban Commercial District (AC), at:  

 16002 Quaker  Avenue,  located west  of  Quaker  Avenue  and  north  of Woodrow  Road,  on 

14.123 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 6. 

PLANNER  SAM  BRACKEEN  gave  a  presentation  and  answered  questions  from  the  Commission.  Staff  has  no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, gave comments about the request and 

answered questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3519, a motion was made by TANNER NOBLE and seconded by ROBERT WOOD to 

approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 

The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 













3519 

View west. Subject property. View north. 

View east. View south. 















 AI# 13373 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 30. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0058, for
Zone Case 3518, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Redeemer Church of Lubbock, for a
zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Heavy Commercial District
(HC), at 6303 and 6305 130th Street, located south of 130th Street and east of Milwaukee
Avenue, on 3.486 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance, unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report
attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the request. The Planning and
Zoning Commission heard this case on April 3, 2025, and recommended approval of the
request by a unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3518 
Staff Report 3518 
Documentation 3518 











Page 1 of 2 
 

 
Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 
 

Staff Report  Zone Case 3518 
City Council Meeting   April 22, 2025 

 
Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC  
 

Property Owner  Redeemer Church of Lubbock 

 

Council District   5 

 

 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• December 4, 2008, Ordinance No. 2008-O0104: The subject properties were annexed into the city limits 

and zoned Transition District (T). 

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject properties were 

rezoned from T to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified 

Development Code. 

• April 3, 2025, Zone Case 3518: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a 

request for a zone change from SF-2 to Heavy Commercial District (HC) by a vote of 7-0-0. 

 

Notification Summary   

• Notifications Sent: 19 

• Received In Favor: 0 

• Received In Opposition: 0 

 

Site Conditions and History 

The subject properties were annexed into the city December 4, 2008, and are currently undeveloped, unplatted 

land.  

 

Adjacent Property Development  

Properties to the west are outside the city limits and are developed with single-family homes. The land to the 

east, south, and north are zoned SF-2 and undeveloped.  

 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject properties are addressed as 6303 and 6305 130th Street located south of 130th Street and east of 

Milwaukee Avenue, on 3.486 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9. The applicant is requesting a 

zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2), to Heavy Commercial District (HC). 

 

Current zoning:  Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

 

Requested zoning:  Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Intent Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family (SF-2) district, is to provide two types of residential subdivisions: 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is 

located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with in increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resources protection.” 



Page 2 of 2 

The intent of the proposed HC zoning is “…to provide for development of heavy vehicle repair, wholesale trade, 

and warehousing and freight movement uses that typically are characterized by outside storage of materials or 

merchandise. The district should be located away from residential areas or, if unavoidable, should be heavily 

buffered.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts  
The location is along the future Loop 88 frontage road, which the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, designates as 

a freeway. Freeways are intended to move high volumes of automobile traffic at relatively high speeds over long 

distances.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 

existing development.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for Commercial land uses. This request is consistent with this 

designation and is in complete conformance with the Comprehensive Plan principles. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance. The property is located along future 

loop 88 and is appropriate adjacent to nearby land uses. 

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zoning, though additional improvements may be necessary. 

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request 

Attachments 

A.  Case Information 

B.  Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C.  Aerial Map 

D.  Zoning Map 

E.  Future Land Use Map 

F.  Photos 

G.  Application and Supporting Documentation 

Staff Contacts 

Cassie Bermea   Gregory Hernandez 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2103  806-775-3147 

cassiebermea@mylubbock.us ghernandez@mylubbock.us  

mailto:cassiebermea@mylubbock.us
mailto:ghernandez@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3518 

 

Allowable Uses:     Heavy Commercial District (HC) 

Transportation:   The proposed development has an access point from North Interstate 27.  

Thoroughfare  Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Freeway, Future  
Loop 88 

Future 
R.O.W. 110 feet, six‐
lane, undivided, paved 

   

Engineering Comments:   No comments.    

Public Works Comments:   No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:   No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:   No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

3.4       Zone Case 3518: AMD Engineering, LLC, for Redeemer Church of Lubbock, request for a zone change 

from Low Density Single‐Family District (SF‐2) to Heavy Commercial District (HC), at:  

 6303 and 6305 130th Street, located south of 130th Street and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 

3.486 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 9. 

PLANNER  CASSIE  BERMEA  gave  a  presentation  and  answered  questions  from  the  Commission.  Staff  has  no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, gave comments about the request and 

answered questions from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3518, a motion was made by BRANDON HARDAWAY and seconded by DREW GRAY 
to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 











3518

East View 

North View.—Subject Property 

South View

West View.



02/26/2025

02/26/2025



 AI# 13374 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 6. 31. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 2nd Reading - Planning (District 5): Consider Ordinance No. 2025-O0059, for
Zone Case 3521, a request of AMD Engineering, LLC for Barbara Beck, for a zone change
from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC),
at 6602 104th Street, located west of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 104th Street, on 15 acres
of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 22.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance, unanimously.

For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report
attached hereto. As noted in the report, staff has no objection to the request. The Planning and
Zoning Commission heard this case on April 3, 2025, and recommended approval of the
request by a unanimous vote of 7-0-0.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3521 
Staff Report 3521 
Documentation 3521 













Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3521 
City Council Meeting April 22, 2025 

Applicant AMD Engineering, LLC 

Property Owner Barbara Beck 

Council District 5 

Prior Board or Council Action 

• January 14, 1999, Ordinance No. 10117: The subject property was annexed into city limits and zoned
Transition District (T).

• May 9, 2023, Ordinance No. 2023-O0054 (effective October 1, 2023): The subject property was rezoned

from Transition District (T) to Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) with the adoption of the Unified

Development Code.

• April 3, 2025, Zone Case 3521: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a

request for a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood Commercial

District (NC) by a vote of 7-0-0

Notification Summary 

• Notifications Sent: 25

• Received In Favor: 4

• Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property consists of 15 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 22, and is currently vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 

Properties to the north are zoned Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) and are either undeveloped or 

developed with single-family residences. To the east and west, the properties are zoned Low Density Single-

Family District (SF-2) and are undeveloped. To the south, properties are zoned Low Density Single-Family District 

(SF-2) and Medium Density Residential District (MDR) and are developed with a mix of single-family and multi-

family residences. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 6602 104th Street, located west of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 104th 

Street. The applicant is requesting a zone change from Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) to Neighborhood 

Commercial District (NC).   

Current zoning: Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) 

Requested zoning: Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

Purpose Statements 

The purpose of the Low Density Single-Family District (SF-2) is to provide for two types of residential 

subdivisions: 



Page 2 of 2 

A. Conventional. Smaller to moderately-sized lots for dwellings on public utilities. Any open space is 

located on private lots. 

B. Cluster. Clustering of smaller-sized lots for dwellings with an increased percentage of common open 

space compared to cluster developments in the SF-1 district to maintain the intended character of the 

district while providing for buffering between lower and higher density adjacent neighborhoods, as well 

as for recreational amenities and resources protection.  

The purpose of the Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) zoning is “…to provide for small-scale retail and 

moderate density residential uses located away from major intersections (nodes), with building and site design 

standards that are compatible and have adjacent residential uses.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The subject property is located on 104th Street. The Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018, designates 104th Street as 
a Collector Street. Collectors provide access and movement within residential, commercial and industrial areas. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

Although the property is currently surrounded by SF-2 zoning, it is in close proximity to Milwaukee Avenue. The 

subject property is buffered from Milwaukee Avenue by City of Lubbock owned properties and a 1.54-acre tract 

of SF-2 zoned property at the southeast corner of 104th Street and Milwaukee Avenue. The property’s proximity 

to Milwaukee Avenue contributes to the proposed zone change being compatible with the character of other 

commercial properties in the area with similar access to Milwaukee Avenue.    

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The Future Land Use Map designates this area for low-density single family land uses. Although the proposed 

zone change to Neighborhood Commercial District is not in conformance with the residential designation, its 

proximity to Milwaukee Avenue combined with the undeveloped City of Lubbock property serving as a buffer 

makes a zoning change to commercial use appropriate. 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zone change is compatible with the zoning ordinance and will be appropriate at the proposed 

location.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed zone change and the uses allowed in the NC District. The property will 

need platted before further development can take place. 

Conclusion 

Staff has no objection to the request. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information 

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map  

C. Notification Map 

D. Aerial Map 

E. Zoning Map 

F. Future Land Use Map 

G. Photos 

H. Application and Supporting Documentation 

I. Notification Replies 

Staff Contacts 

Jamie Magar  

Planner  

Planning Department 

806-775-2107  

jmagar@mylubbock.us 

Greg Hernandez 

Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department 

806-775-3147 

ghernandez@mylubbock.us  



Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3521 

 

Allowable Uses:  Neighborhood Commercial District (NC) 

Transportation:   The proposed development has a point of access from 104th Avenue. 

Thoroughfare  Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

104th Street, 
Collector Street, 

Incomplete 

R.O.W 64 feet, two‐lane, 
undivided, paved. 

R.O.W 64 feet, two‐lane,
undivided, paved. 

   

Engineering Comments:   No comments. 

Public Works Comments:   No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:   No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:   No comments. 

 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

District 5 

3.5       Zone Case 3521: AMD Engineering, LLC, for Barbara Beck, request for a zone change from Low 

Density Single‐Family District (SF‐2) to Neighborhood Commercial District (NC), at:  

 6602 104th Street, located west of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 104th Street, on 15 acres 

of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 22. 

PLANNER  JAMIE  MAGAR  gave  a  presentation  and  answered  questions  from  the  Commission.  Staff  has  no 

objection to the request. 

APPLICANT WILL STEPHENS, 6515 68th Street, with AMD Engineering, gave comments about the request and 

answered questions from the Commission. 

IN OPPOSITION KEVIN KENNY, 6619 100th Street, gave comments about the request and answered questions 

from the Commission. 

No one appeared to speak in favor to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3521, a motion was made by ROBERT WOOD and seconded by BRANDON HARDAWAY 
to approve the request as presented. The Commission voted 7 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to approve the motion. 
The case will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 
 













3521 

View north. Subject property. View south. 

View west. View east. 













City of Lubbock, TX 
Planning Department 

Planning and Zoning Coin . . m1ss10n 
Reply Form 

If for any reason you will be unable to attend th . . and wish to present your comment d' e pubhc hearmg advertised by this notice, 
return it to the Secretary of th s ;~gar. mg the case,_ please complete this form and 
Department, P.O. Box 

20
~

0 
an~m;b and Zonmg Commission, c/o Planning 

CityPlanning@mylubbock.us. ' u ock, TX 79457 or email to 

g;;~~::t :~~i~~;;i;_;sl ~;~aining to the case, please call the City of Lubbock Planning 

Please check one of the following to indicate if you are in favor of, or opposed to, the 

zone change requ~ed by: P&Z Case No.: 3521 
In Favor ✓ 

Opposed 

Print Name 

Signature: 
Address: I\?. et e /UI I le~ (~O 
Address of Property Owned: ) q C.. R 3D Lvbbock- ~ 79 l.,Q. Y ( R :l 'l ~ s&) 
PhoneNumber: 5J?------nS- (ot\]t\ 

zone Case Number: 3521 
BROCK, STEPHEN PATE 
21120 SECRETARIAT LN 
PFLUGERVILLE TX 78660 

R29838 Recipient 22 of 25 



 AI# 13408 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance for a request for
annexation, from Nicolett Land Company, LLC, to annex an area of approximately 121.80
acres, adjacent to the southwestern city limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 130th Street
(Loop 88) and west of Milwaukee Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits.

Item Summary
On April 22, 2025, the City Council approved a resolution adopting the Municipal Service
Plan for the request, which was agreed upon by the City of Lubbock and the property owner.

The next step in the voluntary annexation process is to hold a public hearing. Following the
public hearing, the City Council may consider an ordinance annexing approximately 121.80
acres, adjacent to the southwestern city limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 130th Street
(Loop 88) and west of Milwaukee Avenue, into Lubbock's corporate limits, along with the
adjacent right-of-way.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Erik Rejino, Assistant City Manager
Kristen Sager, Director of Planning

Attachments
Ordinance - Loop 88 & Milwaukee 
Municipal Services Agreement - Loop 88 & Milwaukee 
Petition - Loop 88 & Milwaukee 
Map - Loop 88 & Milwaukee 















































 AI# 13397 

 

Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2. 
05/13/2025:  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider an ordinance of the City of Lubbock, Texas,
authorizing the issuance and sale of City of Lubbock, Texas, Tax Notes, in one or more series;
levying a tax in payment thereof; and enacting other provisions relating to the subject.

Item Summary
This ordinance authorizes the issuance of the Tax Note, in one or more series, for Fiscal Year
2025. The purpose of the Tax Note is to pay contractual obligations incurred or to be incurred
to provide funds for:
  

(a) renovations, additions, expansions and improvements to the Lubbock Preston Smith
International Airport facilities and
(b) renovations, and improvements to the City cemetery, and
(c) improve property, acquire, purchase, or finance personal property, appliances,
equipment, facilities, furnishings or interests therein, whether movable or fixed, as
described in the Ordinance, or such other property deemed by the City Council to be
necessary, useful and/or appropriate for its purposes (collectively, the "Project")
(d) paying the costs of issuance related to the tax note.

The Note will be payable from the levy and collection of a continuing, direct ad valorem tax,
within the limits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within the City. The Note is being
issued pursuant to the general laws of the State of Texas, particularly Chapter 1431, Texas
Government Code, as amended, and an ordinance to be passed by the City Council of the City
on May 13, 2025, authorizing the issuance of the Note. Annual payments of principal will be
due on February 15 in the years 2026 through 2032 inclusive, with semi-annual interest
payments beginning on February 15, 2026, and on each August 15 and February 15 thereafter
until stated maturity or prior redemption. Interest will be calculated on the basis of a 360-day
year consisting of twelve 30-day months and will accrue from the date of delivery of the Note
to the winning bidder.

The Note will be awarded to the proposal producing the lowest interest cost to the City and
terms most advantageous to the City (including, but not limited to, paying agent fees,
underwriting fees, bank counsel fees, and early redemption provisions). The recommended
lender will be presented to the City Council for approval at the May 13, 2025, City Council
meeting. The City anticipates the closing date to be June 10, 2025, subject to approval from the
Texas Attorney General.



Fiscal Impact
The total par amount of issuance is estimated at $14,820,000. 

Airport - $5,600,000
Cemetery - $2,000,000
Vehicle Replacements - $7,220,000

Staff/Board Recommending
Joe Jimenez, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Ordinance 






























































	Agenda
	5.01.__Minutes
	       ATT_4.8.2025
	6.01.__Budget Amendment 17
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 17
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	6.02.__Budget Amendment 18
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 18
	6.03.__Budget Amendment 19
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 19
	6.04.__Budget Amendment 20
	       ATT_Budget Amendment 20
	6.04.1.__Purchase Order 33001977 with SHI Government Solutions, Inc. for Getac Rugged Laptops
	       ATT_Resolution _SHI Government Solutions PO 33001977
	       ATT_Purchase Order 33001977_SHI Government Solutions
	6.05.__Budget Amendment 21
	       ATT_Budget Amendment _21
	6.06.__Interlocal Agreement between the City and Purchasing Cooperative City of Austin
	       ATT_Resolution 18857
	       ATT_Master Agreement 18857
	6.07.__Interlocal Agreement between City of Slaton
	       ATT_Resolution - Contract 18896
	       ATT_Agreement with Slaton
	6.08.__Closure - June Estates Road Closure
	       ATT_June Estates - Ordinance
	       ATT_June Estates - Metes and Bounds
	       ATT_June Estates - GIS Map
	6.09.__Street Use License - Vestis Uniform
	       ATT_Vestis - Resolution
	       ATT_Vestis - Street Use License
	       ATT_Vestis - Metes and Bounds
	       ATT_Vestis - GIS Map
	6.10.__Street Use License - Smaze Investments LLC
	       ATT_Smaze Investments - Resolution
	       ATT_Smaze Investments - Street Use License
	       ATT_Smaze Investments - Survey
	       ATT_Smaze Investments - GIS Map
	6.11.__Update - 2018 Master Thoroughfare Plan
	       ATT_Ordinance 
	       ATT_Location Exhibit A
	       ATT_Location Exhibit B
	6.12.__Change Order No. 1 for Contract 18190
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Change Order No. 1
	       ATT_Contract 18190
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_CIP 92654 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92654 - Project Detail
	6.13.__Contract 18697 Utility Relocations Ahead of Upland Avenue
	       ATT_Resolution 18697
	       ATT_Contract 18697
	       ATT_Location Map
	MiscellaneousUtilityImprovements_Contract18697_26thto43rd
	MiscellaneousUtilityImprovements_Contract18697_43rdto63rd

	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_18697 - Project Summary (c)
	6.14.__Avenue P, 130th Street to 146th Street - 24B
	       ATT_Resolution 18843
	       ATT_Contract 18843
	       ATT_Location Exhibit
	       ATT_CIP 92898 - Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP 92898 - {Project Detail
	6.15.__Specialty Cleaning and Pumping Services
	       ATT_Resolution - Riley Industrial Services, Inc.
	       ATT_Contract - Riley Industrial Services, Inc
	       ATT_Resolution - Johnson Pumping
	       ATT_Contract - Johnson Pumping
	       ATT_Tabulation Sheet
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.16.__Welding and Fabrication Services
	       ATT_Resolution -  Pro Serv
	       ATT_Contract - Pro Serv Industrial
	       ATT_Tabulation Sheet
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.17.__Contract 18639 - Concrete Materials
	       ATT_Resolution - Contract 18639
	       ATT_Contract - Contract 18639
	       ATT_Bid Tab Sheet - Contract 18639
	       ATT_Project Summary - Contract 18639
	6.18.__Guadalupe - Parkway Neighborhood Centers, Inc. Deed 
	       ATT_Resolution - Guadalupe Parkway Neighborhood Center
	       ATT_Notice of Abandonment 
	Notice of Abandonment of Purpose and Reversion (Guadalupe-Parkway Neighborhood Center) (002).pdf
	ACKNOWLEDGMENTS


	       ATT_Executed Deed without Warranty December 28, 2017
	6.19.__DSHS PHEP Cooperative Agmt.- Amendment No. 2, Contract HHS001439500038 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Amendment No. 2 PHEP
	6.20.__JOC - Henthorn Commercial Construction - Wind Cone Project Airport
	       ATT_Resolution - Henthorn Commercial Construction
	       ATT_JOC Contract Henthorn Commercial Construction
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.21.__Window Cleaning Services at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.
	       ATT_Resolution - Clean and Bright
	       ATT_Contract - Clean and Bright
	       ATT_Bid Tabulation
	       ATT_Project Summary 18713
	6.22.__North Overton TIF Irrigation Analysis 
	       ATT_Resolution - Contract - North Overton TIF Irrigation
	       ATT_Contract 18618 - Pland - North Overton TIF Irrigation
	       ATT_CIP 92254 - Budget Detail 
	       ATT_CIP 92254 - Project Detail 
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet - RFQ 25-18618-KM
	6.23.__North Overton TIF Hardscape Repair 
	       ATT_Resolution 18607 North Overton TIF Hardscape Repairs
	       ATT_Contract 
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet - North Overton TIF Hardscape Repairs
	       ATT_Budget Detail 
	       ATT_CIP Detail 
	6.24.__Amend Contract 18160 to a Internet Services Agreement with Vexus Fiber
	       ATT_Resolution _Vexus Fiber Amendment
	       ATT_Amendment _Vexus Fiber
	6.25.__Purchase of (10) LPD Vehicle Replacements.
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Purchase Order
	6.26.__Scott Merriman Agreement - Vital Stats
	       ATT_Resolution - Scott Merriman
	       ATT_Agreement - Scott Merriman
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.27.__ZC 3520
	       ATT_Ordinance 3520
	       ATT_Staff Report 3520
	       ATT_Documentation 3520
	3520 Staff Report Shane - GH Edit
	3520 case info
	3520_1locator
	3520_2imag
	3520_3zoning2
	3520_4flup2
	3520 photos
	Zone App SHM Signed
	PZC Application

	MB Zoning Sec 43 Blk A
	Affidavit Designating Representative

	6.28.__ZC 1901-A
	       ATT_Ordinance 1901-A
	       ATT_Staff Report 1901-A
	       ATT_Documentation 1901-A
	1901-A Staff Report Shane - GH edit
	1901-A case info
	1901A_1locator
	1901A_2imag
	1901A_3zoning
	1901A_4flup
	1901-A photos
	1901-A Application
	SITE PLAN APPLICANT
	Sheets and Views
	Burk 8.5x11


	Rezone Writeup by APPLICANT
	Google Earth St View
	APPLICANT ZONING MAP
	APPLICANT ZONING MAP 2

	6.29.__ZC 3519
	       ATT_Ordinance 3519
	       ATT_Staff Report 3519
	       ATT_Documentation 3519
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 32
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 33
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 34
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 35
	PZC 3519 notification (updated 3-31-25)
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 37
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 38
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 39
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 40
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 41
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 42
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 43
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 44
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 45
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 46
	4.03.2025 PZC Packet - Final_Redacted 47
	Lee and Jo Beth Lowery - Reply Forms

	6.30.__ZC 3518
	       ATT_Ordinance 3518
	       ATT_Staff Report 3518
	       ATT_Documentation 3518
	6.31.__ZC  3521
	       ATT_Ordinance 3521
	       ATT_Staff Report 3521
	       ATT_Documentation 3521
	applicant site plan.pdf
	SD100 - PRESENTATION SHEET

	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	7.01.__Annx - Loop 88
	       ATT_Ordinance - Loop 88 and Milwaukee
	       ATT_Municipal Services Agreement - Loop 88 and Milwaukee
	       ATT_Petition - Loop 88 and Milwaukee
	       ATT_Map - Loop 88 and Milwaukee
	7.02.__Authorize the Issuance and Sale of Tax Notes, Series 2025
	       ATT_Ordinance


{"type":"Form","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":false}


